
1

Committee Administrator: Sally Gabriel
Tel: 01884 234229

Email: sgabriel@middevon.gov.uk
This document is available on the Council's Website at: www.middevon.gov.uk

Mid Devon District Council

Cabinet
Thursday, 27 September 2018 at 2.15 pm

Exe Room, Phoenix House, Tiverton

Next ordinary meeting
Thursday, 25 October 2018 at 2.15 pm

Those attending are advised that this meeting will be recorded

Membership
Cllr C J Eginton Leader and Environment
Cllr R J Chesterton Deputy Leader and Planning and Economic 

Regeneration
Cllr P H D Hare-Scott Finance
Cllr C R Slade Community Well Being
Cllr Mrs M E Squires Working Environment and Support Services
Cllr R L Stanley Housing

A G E N D A

Members are reminded of the need to make declarations of interest prior to any 
discussion which may take place

1.  Apologies  
To receive any apologies for absence.

2.  Declarations of Interest under the Code of Conduct  
Councillors are reminded of the requirement to declare any interest, 
including the type of interest, and reason for that interest, either at this 
stage of the meeting or as soon as they become aware of that interest.

3.  Public Question Time  
To receive any questions relating to items on the Agenda from members 
of the public and replies thereto.

4.  Minutes of the Previous Meeting  (Pages 5 - 12)
Members to consider whether to approve the minutes as a correct 
record of the meeting held on 30 August 2018.

5.  Exe Valley Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty  (Pages 13 - 34)
To consider a report of the Head of Planning, Economy and 
Regeneration  regarding the feasibility of obtaining Area of Outstanding 
Natural Beauty (AONB) status for the Exe Valley.

Public Document Pack

http://www.middevon.gov.uk/


2

Committee Administrator: Sally Gabriel
Tel: 01884 234229

Email: sgabriel@middevon.gov.uk
This document is available on the Council's Website at: www.middevon.gov.uk

6.  Review of Building Services Recharges Policy  (Pages 35 - 52)
Arising from a report of the Group Manager for Building Services, the 
Homes Policy Development Group has recommended that the revised 
Recharges Policy be approved.

7.  Review of Building Services Gas Safety Policy  (Pages 53 - 70)
Arising from a report of the Group Manager for Building Services, the 
Homes Policy Development Group has recommended that the revised 
Gas Safety Policy be approved subject to the following amendments 
providing legal clarification:

a) Section 9.2 – remove the words ‘No mutual exchange is to take 
place’ from the second sentence.

b) Section 13.1 – Amend the penultimate sentence to read: After 
court action and we receive the Injunction Notice, where a tenant 
does not provide access, we will seek to commit the tenant to 
prison for contempt of Court. Remove the following words from 
the same sentence ‘….if necessary force entry into the property 
to carry out the safety check and leave the property secure.’

c) Section 13.2 – amend the wording of this section to read: ‘In 
addition to an injunction Mid Devon District Council may also 
seek possession of the property, which will run concurrently with 
the injunction.

d) Section 13.3 – Is an additional paragraph and reads: ‘The 
Council, provided it is in its interests to do so, will continue with 
the legal proceeding(s) to reach a successful conclusion.’

e) New Section 13.4 – insert new wording to state: ‘Under these 
circumstances it is the intention to ensure that a new LGSR is 
issued no longer than four months after the existing certificate 
has expired.’

f) The previous Section 13.4 to now become Section 13.5 and all 
numbers to follow thereafter as before. 

8.  Neighbourhood Management Policy  (Pages 71 - 82)
Arising from a report of the Group Manager for Building Services, the 
Homes Policy Development Group has recommended that the revised 
Neighbourhood Management Policy be approved.

9.  Historic Local Improvement Schemes - recommendation from the 
Scrutiny Committee  (Pages 83 - 114)
Arising from a report of the Group Manager for Corporate Property and 
Commercial Assets, the Scrutiny Committee has made the following 
recommendation: that the work procedure detailed in paragraph 4 of the 
report be implemented.

10.  Customer Care Policy  (Pages 115 - 124)
Arising from a report of the Group Manager for Business Transformation 
and Customer Engagement, the Community Policy Development Group 

http://www.middevon.gov.uk/


3

Committee Administrator: Sally Gabriel
Tel: 01884 234229

Email: sgabriel@middevon.gov.uk
This document is available on the Council's Website at: www.middevon.gov.uk

has made the following recommendation: that the content of the revised 
Customer Care Policy be approved subject to:

Page 4 of the policy – Item 6, first bullet point to read: 

 An office that is open 39½ hours a week -  9am – 5pm (Mon-Thu) 
and 9am – 4.30pm (Fri)

Page 6 - Appendix 1 – Telephone to Call Centre - Agreed Targets to 
read: 85% answered, the contact centre is staffed from 8.30am to 
5.00pm, calls are put into a queue.

11.  Channel Access Strategy  (Pages 125 - 148)
To consider a report of the Group Manager for Business Transformation 
and Customer Engagement providing Members with the revised 
Channel Access Strategy: Creating Efficient Customer Channels to our 
Services.  

12.  Financial Monitoring  
To receive a verbal report from the Deputy Chief Executive (S151) 
presenting a financial update in respect of the income and expenditure 
so far in the year.

13.  Performance and Risk  (Pages 149 - 180)
To consider a report of the Director of Corporate Affairs and Business 
Transformation providing Members with an update on the performance 
against the Corporate Plan and local service targets.

14.  Cabinet Member Decision  
To note that the Cabinet Member for Planning and Economic 
Regeneration has made the following decision that:

The Authority’s Monitoring Report for 2017 be approved for publication.

15.  Notification of Key Decisions  (Pages 181 - 194)
To note the contents of the Forward Plan.

Stephen Walford
Chief Executive

Wednesday, 19 September 2018

http://www.middevon.gov.uk/


4

Committee Administrator: Sally Gabriel
Tel: 01884 234229

Email: sgabriel@middevon.gov.uk
This document is available on the Council's Website at: www.middevon.gov.uk

Anyone wishing to film part or all of the proceedings may do so unless the press 
and public are excluded for that part of the meeting or there is good reason not 
to do so, as directed by the Chairman. Any filming must be done as 
unobtrusively as possible from a single fixed position without the use of any 
additional lighting; focusing only on those actively participating in the meeting 
and having regard also to the wishes of any member of the public present who 
may not wish to be filmed. As a matter of courtesy, anyone wishing to film 
proceedings is asked to advise the Chairman or the Member Services Officer in 
attendance so that all those present may be made aware that is happening. 

Members of the public may also use other forms of social media to report on 
proceedings at this meeting.

Members of the public are welcome to attend the meeting and listen to 
discussion. Lift access the first floor of the building is available from the main 
ground floor entrance. Toilet facilities, with wheelchair access, are also 
available. There is time set aside at the beginning of the meeting to allow the 
public to ask questions.

An induction loop operates to enhance sound for anyone wearing a hearing aid 
or using a transmitter. If you require any further information, or

If you would like a copy of the Agenda in another format (for example in large 
print) please contact Sally Gabriel on:
Tel: 01884 234229
E-Mail: sgabriel@middevon.gov.uk

Public Wi-Fi is available in all meeting rooms.

http://www.middevon.gov.uk/


Cabinet – 30 August 2018 32

MID DEVON DISTRICT COUNCIL

MINUTES of a MEETING of the CABINET held on 30 August 2018 at 2.15 pm

Present 
Councillors C J Eginton (Leader)

R J Chesterton, P H D Hare-Scott, 
C R Slade, Mrs M E Squires and 
R L Stanley

Also Present
Councillor(s) Mrs E M Andrews, Mrs B M Hull and T W Snow

Also Present
Officer(s): Stephen Walford (Chief Executive), Andrew Jarrett (Deputy 

Chief Executive (S151)), Jill May (Director of Corporate 
Affairs and Business Transformation), Andrew Pritchard 
(Director of Operations), Jenny Clifford (Head of Planning, 
Economy and Regeneration), Catherine Yandle (Group 
Manager for Performance, Governance and Data Security), 
Philip Langdon (Solicitor), John Bodley-Scott (Economic 
Development Team Leader), Tina Maryan (Area Planning 
Officer) and Sally Gabriel (Member Services Manager)

56. APOLOGIES 

There were no apologies.

57. PUBLIC QUESTION TIME (00-01-10) 

Honorary Alderman David Pugsley referring to Item 5 (Cullompton Town Centre 
Relief Road Route Options, Public Consultation) on the agenda stated that: The 
original intention was to improve Junction 28. That needs to be done and presumably 
everyone was in favour, in Cullompton itself and in the surrounding villages. The 
Council then decided to transfer the money to a relief road which does nothing at all 
to improve the situation at Junction 28. That is such a radical change as to justify 
public consultation on that issue, and not merely on the route of the proposed road. 
There are 3 possibilities.

Option A: Combine it with the consultation on the preferred route by adding a further 
option, “None of the above,” or “Give the money back to Junction 28 improvements,” 
or something similar. Or at least allow option D, which would take some pressure off 
Junction 28 and would therefore probably be supported by many users of the 
junction. That would have the advantage of having one consultation only.

Option B: Hold a public consultation on the principle of transfer after the preferred 
route has been chosen. That would have the advantage that everyone knew the 
details when they voted on the basic principle of the transfer between Junction 28 
and the relief road.

Page 5

Agenda Item 4.



Cabinet – 30 August 2018 33

Option C: Ignore public opinion on this issue altogether by not holding a public 
consultation at all on the transfer between Junction 28 and the relief road.

And my question to the Cabinet is: which of these options would you prefer?

Catherine Penharris also referring to item 5 on the agenda asked how are you able to 
make decisions when you are not in possession of all the reports from Arcadis and if 
you do have them why have you not circulated them to CCA?

In the flood risk assessment why are there only the 5 recommendations listed and 
none of the appendices available?

With regard to Options a), b), c) and d) – how can you put forward 4 options with d) 
already being discounted because of flood issues and possibly c) because of 
financial issues, therefore it looks like a) or b) are the only options, the public are 
being misled on the choice available, you are putting the options through 
Cullompton’s greatest asset.

58. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST UNDER THE CODE OF CONDUCT (00-07-58) 

Members were reminded of the need to declare any interests when appropriate.

59. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING (00-08-16) 

The minutes of previous meeting were approved as a correct record and signed by 
the Chairman.

60. CULLOMPTON TOWN CENTRE RELIEF ROAD ROUTE OPTIONS PUBLIC 
CONSULTATION (00-09-13) 

The Cabinet had before it a * report of the Head of Planning, Economy and 
Regeneration seeking agreement to go out to public consultation over route options 
for the town centre relief road for Cullompton.

The Cabinet Member for Planning and Economic Regeneration outlined the contents 
of the report reminding the meeting of the previous report considered in May 2018  
which identified the current opportunity to progress planning for the delivery of a relief 
road in connection with the available funding stream via the Council’s Housing 
Infrastructure Fund (HIF). The delivery of a relief road for Cullompton had been a 
long term objective receiving policy support within both the adopted and submitted 
Local Plans which would deliver benefits to the operation of J28 of the motorway and 
would also enable the reduction of traffic flows through the town centre resulting in air 
quality and town centre amenity benefits.  Significant highway improvements would 
be required to serve the proposed garden village to the east of J28 and a relief road 
would form the first part of such improvements.

Since the meeting in May, officers had worked closely with Devon County Council 
Highway Authority to assess potential options for a relief road. He identified the 
options (and plans) outlined in the report explaining the reasons why option d) had 
been discounted due to flood risk.  Therefore options a), b) and c) were proposed to 
be taken forward for public consultation. Following the public consultation period the 
preferred option would be considered at a future meeting of the Cabinet.

Page 6



Cabinet – 30 August 2018 34

The Head of Planning, Economy and Regeneration provided responses to questions 
raised in Public Question Time: with regard to whether the relief road would benefit 
J28, advice had been sought from the Highway Authority and Highways England and 
it was felt that a relief road would give some improvements to Junction 28 with regard 
to issues with AM peak traffic, it would help distribute queuing and aid the PM traffic 
issues of queuing back on to the north bound off slip of the motorway which was of 
concern to Highways England; the fact that the original improvements to J28 were no 
longer supported by either the Highway Authority or Highways England, as it was felt 
that those original plans would not benefit traffic flow and junction operation as 
initially expected and they had expressed strong concern over the ability to construct 
the scheme.  Accordingly neither wished to take responsibility for its delivery and 
favoured the delivery of a relief road. Therefore it was felt that consulting on directing 
funds to J28 was not really an option as this was undeliverable.

With regard to questions relating to the flood risk assessment, work was still being 
undertaken to assess the flood implications of each option, however a flood risk 
assessment was available for the main flood corridor which considered a highway 
intervention, all the necessary information would be available when a final decision 
was made on the preferred option. All the information relating to the flood risk 
assessment was on the website and therefore was publically available.  Option d) 
had been discounted, however option c) would form part of the consultation package 
along with options a) and b).

The Chairman read a representation from Cllr Mrs Woollatt who had been unable to 
attend the meeting which highlighted:

 The route to the east of the motorway would not meet with the HIF funding 
requirements and the need to state the reasons why

 Previous consultation events (in particular the Crediton Link Road) and the 
fact that information pamphlets had been distributed as part of the consultation 
process and that the pamphlet had included lots of frequently asked questions 
and whether a similar approach could be incorporated into the consultation for 
Cullompton.

The Head of Planning, Economy and Regeneration informed the meeting that it was 
the view of the highway consultant and the Highway Authority that option c) would 
not be able to be delivered by 2021 because of bridging structures, the more involved 
design, permissions and construction that would be needed and would not be 
completed in time for the funding opportunity.  She stated that she would liaise with 
Devon County Council with regard to the distribution of pamphlets, although the 
Crediton consultation had taken place 10 years earlier and today the majority of 
consultations were more web based, however this issue would be considered.  She 
agreed that an FAQ document would be produced and that Members may like to 
consider extending the consultation period to 6 weeks.

Consideration was given to the views of local Ward Members:

 Whether the options were all about funding and whether additional funding 
streams could be considered

 Whether the options should consider the Garden Village
 Why should Cullompton have the cheapest options

Page 7



Cabinet – 30 August 2018 35

 The need to consider other options
 Safety issues in Meadow Lane
 Whether cycle routes would be included in the options
 Whether a junction at Willand was feasible
 The need to look at an integrated transport plan

Further consideration was given to:

 Whether the relief road would benefit J28
 Whether the relief road would be a short term option
 The possibility of further available funding
 Concerns for the CCA fields
 Whether additional roundabouts could be used for options c) and d) and 

whether the established bridges at the Duke Street end attributed to the 
flooding issues

 Whether consultation material could be made available in the Hayridge and 
Leisure Centre and possibly through the local magazine

 The impact of the relief road on Duke Street
 Whether to extend the consultation period to 6 weeks
 The intention to hold the meeting in Cullompton to agree the preferred option

RESOLVED that

a) The Cullompton town centre relief road route options be approved for public 
consultation.

b) Delegated authority be given to the Head of Planning , Economy and 
Regeneration in consultation with the Cabinet Member for Planning and 
Regeneration to prepare and finalise consultation material.

c) The consultation period to consider the options available for a relief road be 
extended to 6 weeks.

(Proposed by Cllr R J Chesterton and seconded by Cllr C R Slade)

Note:  * Report previously circulated, copy attached to minutes.

61. BLACKDOWN HILLS - AREA OF OUTSTANDING NATURAL BEAUTY (AONB) 
MANAGEMENT PLAN REVIEW (1-03-59) 

The Cabinet had before it a * report of the Head of Planning, Economy and 
Regeneration updating Members on the proposed review of the Blackdown Hills 
(AONB) Management Plan and requesting approval to undertake a public 
consultation with regard to this.

The Cabinet Member for Planning and Economic Regeneration outlined the contents 
of the report stating that the Council had together with other local authorities 
authorised the Blackdown Hills AONB Partnership to undertake a review of the 
Management Plans for the AONB by April 2019 as required under Section IV of the 
Countryside and Rights of Way Act 2000.  The past year had seen a period of review 
with key partners and partnership members in advance of a wider public consultation 
on a draft plan.

Page 8



Cabinet – 30 August 2018 36

The meeting welcomed Mr Youngs (AONB Manager) who explained by way of 
presentation the background to the AONB in the Blackdown Hills and the make-up of 
the partnership, the work that had taken place, the key facts and special qualities 
with regard to the area, the primary and secondary purposes of AONB’s and 
photographs highlighting some of the locations within the area.  He also explained 
the work that was taking place to review the management plan.

Consideration was given to funding streams and the possibility of setting up an 
AONB for the Exe Valley.

RESOLVED that the public consultation on the review of the Blackdown Hills AONB 
Management Plan be agreed.

(Proposed by Cllr R J Chesterton and seconded by Cllr Mrs M E Squires)

Note:  *Report previously circulated, copy attached to minutes.

62. CULM GARDEN VILLAGE  - GOVERNANCE, DECISION MAKING AND UPDATE 
ON PROJECT PROGRESS AND PROPOSED CHANGES TO GOVERNANCE 
THROUGH REFINED DECISION MAKING POWERS OF THE DELIVERY BOARD. 
(1-20-00) 

The Cabinet had before it a * report of the Head of Planning, Economy and 
Regeneration providing an update on the implementation of the Culm Garden Village 
governance arrangements since the Cabinet decision of July 2017 and the 
establishment of clear lines of decision making for the project going forward.

The Cabinet Member for Planning and Economic Regeneration outlined the contents 
of the report highlighting how the Culm Garden Village had been awarded its status 
and the work that had taken place to date which included a number of key milestones 
which had been reached.  Community and stakeholder engagement had been 
supporting the locally led project and master planning work was being progressed as 
was work relating to the delivery of key pieces of infrastructure.  He outlined the 
governance arrangements in place which included the delivery board (and its 
decision making powers), the community/stakeholder forum, the 
landowner/developer forum and the project team.  The delivery board now included 
representation from Highways England and the local MP.  The next steps would be to 
produce a framework masterplan for long term growth of the garden village and a 
Supplementary Planning Document.  A bespoke website would be launched which 
would form the basis for engagement with the stakeholders and the local community.  
He also mentioned the funding from the HIF for a relief road which has been 
discussed earlier in the meeting and the long term requirement for a new motorway 
junction.

Consideration was given to:

 The need for an integrated transport plan to include a bus station in the vicinity 
of the proposed railway station

 The wider community benefits that would come from the Garden Village
 The Greater Exeter Strategic Plan being the intended policy vehicle to allocate 

the remainder of the Garden Village

Page 9



Cabinet – 30 August 2018 37

RESOLVED that

a) The project process and implementation of the previously agreed governance 
arrangements be noted;

b) The decision making powers and framework for the Culm Garden Village 
project and its Delivery Board be agreed as set out in 2.3.7 and 2.3.8 of the 
report.

(Proposed by Cllr R J Chesterton and seconded by Cllr P H D Hare-Scott)

Note:  * Report previously circulated, copy attached to minutes.

63. PROJECT MANAGEMENT CONTRACT AWARD FOR CULM GARDEN VILLAGE, 
CULLOMPTON (1-41-23) 

The Cabinet had before it a * report of the Head of Planning, Economy and 
Regeneration seeking approval to extend the Culm Garden Village project 
management contract for a further year and to establish delegated authority for 
further extensions to the contract (subject to sufficient funding being in place).

The Cabinet Member for Planning and Economic Regeneration outlined the contents 
of the report stating that in August 2017 the contract for project management 
services for the Garden Village was awarded; this was initially for 1 year.  He outlined 
the remit of the project manager and his work to date.  It was therefore proposed that 
the contract be extended for a further year and that delegated authority be sought to 
award subsequent annual one year extensions to the contact.

Consideration was given to the work of the project manager and how his work was 
managed.

RESOLVED that

a) A 1 year extension to the Culm Garden Village project management contract be 
awarded to the existing supplier with an agreed annual cost of £66,000.

b) Delegated authority be given to the Head of Planning, Economy and 
Regeneration in consultation with the Cabinet Member for Planning and 
Regeneration to award subsequent annual one year extensions to the contract 
subject to:

i)Funding being in place to cover the cost of the provision of this service. 

ii) Continuing to be satisfied with the quality of the service provided.

(Proposed by Cllr R J Chesterton and seconded by Cllr C R Slade)

Note:  * Report previously circulated, copy attached to minutes.

Page 10



Cabinet – 30 August 2018 38

64. WORKFORCE PLANNING/HUMAN RESOURCES STRATEGY UPDATE  (1-46-12) 

The Cabinet had before it and NOTED a * report of the Group Manager for Human 
Resources updating the meeting on the Workforce Plan/Human Resources Strategy.

The Cabinet Member for the Working Environment and Support Services outlined the 
contents of the report stating that the Workforce Plan was developed and adopted by 
Council in 2010 this gave a foundation on which to build  and identify improvements 
therefore shaping the workforce to ensure that it was capable of delivering the 
Council’s objectives.  She highlighted the contents of the H R Strategy and ways for 
developing the workforce.

Consideration was given to: the importance of having such a document to set the 
pathway for the organisation and the need to have the ability to adapt to changing 
circumstances.

Note: *Report previously circulated, copy attached to minutes.

65. REVISED FREEDOM OF INFORMATION AND ENVIRONMENTAL INFORMATION 
REGULATIONS POLICY (1-52-00) 

The Cabinet had before it a * report of the Group Manager for Performance, 
Governance and Data Security providing an update to the existing policy to reflect 
current best practice and an increase in the scope of the Environmental Information 
Regulations (EIR).

She outlined the contents of the report stating that since the last review the scope of 
the Environmental Information Regulations had been expanded by case law, it was 
expected that the revision to the policy would result in more requests for information 
being treated under the EIR which was not subject to the same time limitations as 
Freedom of Information requests.

RESOLVED that the revised Freedom of Information and Environmental Information 
Regulations Policy be approved.

(Proposed by the Chairman)

Note:  * Report previously circulated, copy attached to minutes.

66. FINANCIAL MONITORING (1-54-00) 

The Deputy Chief Executive (S151) informed the meeting that there had been no 
significant deterioration in the proposed budget gap for end of year however it had 
increased to over £100k, this was mainly down to a decrease in car parking income 
specifically the multi-storey car park and an overspend in the waste service due to 
vehicle hire costs, planning income was also down.  However, this was more likely to 
be more than compensated by the additional income from being part of the business 
rates pool pilot.

Page 11



Cabinet – 30 August 2018 39

67. NOTIFICATION OF KEY DECISIONS (1-56-45) 

The Cabinet had before it and NOTED, its rolling plan * for September 2018 
containing future key decisions.

Note:   * Plan previously circulated, copy attached to minutes.

(The meeting ended at 4.15 pm) CHAIRMAN

Page 12



MDDC Report [title]
v

1

CABINET
27TH SEPTEMBER 2018

REPORT OF THE HEAD OF PLANNING, ECONOMY AND REGENERATION

CONSIDERATION OF WHETHER TO SEEK DESIGNATION AS AN AREA OF 
OUTSTANDING NATURAL BEAUTY FOR THE EXE VALLEY. 

Cabinet Member(s): Cllr Richard Chesterton
Responsible Officer: Jenny Clifford, Head of Planning and Regeneration

Reason for Report: Members requested the Economic Development Team look into 
the feasibility of obtaining Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB) status for the 
Exe Valley.

RECOMMENDATION: That Cabinet:

i) Consider the different options presented for conserving the 
environmental quality of the Exe Valley and resolve a way forward;

ii) And further that, in the event of Cabinet seeking to progress option 1 or 
2 as set out in the report (requiring commitment of resources), that this 
is then recommended to council to seek approval and the reallocation of 
funding to progress the work. 

Or:

iii) That in the light of views from the council’s policy development groups 
for the Environment and Economy being substantially different, that 
officers are asked to bring back a revised options paper once the 
Government’s review of National Parks and AONBs has concluded, in 
order to reconsider the options in light of any recommendations or 
changes that arise from this.   

Relationship to Corporate Plan: Obtaining AONB designation for the Exe Valley 
could provide benefits that would further a number of aims in the corporate plan 
including,   protecting the natural environment and encouraging biodiversity; looking 
after our heritage assets; growing existing businesses and growing the tourism 
sector.

Financial Implications: Seeking AONB designation under Option 1 would have an 
immediate cost of £40k for the first 6 months, followed by project development work 
of approximately £200- £250k over three years and would if finally approved create 
liabilities of £150-£200k annually to fund the ongoing delivery of an AONB 
management plan. Option 2 may cost up to £71k annually to resource, while the 
financial implications of Option 3 would be determined by the projects pursued. 
Option 4 has no immediate financial implications.

Legal Implications: There are no legal implications resulting from this report with 
the exception that Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty status is a national landscape 
designation that is a material planning consideration for both plan making and 
application decision purposes.

Page 13

Agenda Item 5.



MDDC Report [title]
v

2

Risk Assessment: Risks associated with different options are addressed under 
each in section 3.0 of this report.

Equality Impact Assessment: The final designation of any AONB would have a 
range of equality impacts, some of these being touched on by the PDGs in their 
consideration of the issue. However, as this report is only considering the earliest 
feasibility work associated with exploring this possibility, it is not considered that any 
decision arising from this report has a negative equality impact. 

1.0 Introduction

At the meeting of Council on 6th November 2013 Motion 476 from Councillor 
Roach ‘This Council resolves to seek AONB status for the Exe Valley’ was 
considered. It was resolved that further investigation take place and that a 
report be considered at the next Cabinet meeting where further consideration 
would be given to the motion. The motion was discussed further at the 
Cabinet meeting of 6th February 2016 together with a briefing paper. At this 
meeting Cabinet resolved the Council be recommended to support the 
amended motion: ‘This Council resolves to seek AONB status for the Exe 
Valley at no cost to the Council’. This motion as amended was subsequently 
returned to Council and approved. 

In January 2017 the Economic Development Team was asked to explore the 
potential for seeking Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB) designation 
for the Exe Valley and identifying the advantages and disadvantages of 
achieving this status. In order to progress this report background research 
was undertaken together with a series of meetings being conducted with 
relevant bodies including Natural England, Devon County Council 
Environment Service, Blackdown Hills AONB, Environment Agency, Exmoor 
National Park, National Trust and Devon Wildlife Trust. Members will need to 
consider the nature of AONB designation, its benefits and detriments in 
relation to their aspirations for the Exe Valley area and the resource 
implications in terms of officer time and budget in terms of applying for AONB 
designation and in the longer term in the event of designation success.  

This report was discussed at the Environment PDG on the 4th September and 
the Economy PDG on the 6th September. The Environment PDG was asked 
to make a recommendation to cabinet on a way forward. A report on the 
discussions at both Policy Development Group including the recommendation 
to Cabinet from Environment PDG is attached at Appendix D.

1.1 Background Information about Areas of Outstanding Natural Beauty.

An AONB is land of outstanding natural quality protected by statute in order to 
conserve and enhance its natural beauty.  AONBs were originally established 
under the National Parks and Access to the Countryside Act 1949, though this 
legislation was updated and largely reformulated in the Countryside and 
Rights of Way Act 2000 (CROW Act). There are currently 46 AONBs 
throughout the UK.1

1 See the National Association of Areas of Outstanding Natural Beauty’s website at,  
www.landscapesforlife.org.uk/ 

Page 14

http://www.landscapesforlife.org.uk/
http://www.landscapesforlife.org.uk/
http://www.landscapesforlife.org.uk/


MDDC Report [title]
v

3

Under the CROW Act, Natural England has the role of considering proposals 
for designation, and assessing whether they meet the requisite criteria. In 
order to designate an AONB, Natural England must:

 decide if a proposal meets the natural beauty criterion
 decide if it’s desirable to designate for the purpose of conserving and 

enhancing natural beauty
 define a detailed boundary

Natural Beauty is assessed on a combination of factors (see Appendix B), 
including:

 landscape quality, where natural or man-made landscape is good 
quality

 scenic quality, such as striking landforms
 relative wildness, such as distance from housing or having few roads
 relative tranquility, where natural sounds, such as streams or birdsong 

are predominant
 natural heritage features, such as distinctive geology or species and 

habitat
 cultural heritage, which can include the built environment that makes 

the area unique, such as archaeological remains or historic parkland

Natural England prioritises its workload by considering whether, proposals are 
likely to have sufficient evidence to meet the natural beauty criterion; there is 
local authority agreement that designation is appropriate; that at this moment 
the proposal is more important than other corporate priorities; and most 
importantly, it has the available resources to evaluate the proposal. 

In a preliminary meeting with Natural England in January 2017 it was made 
clear that due to a lack of available resources and more pressing corporate 
priorities for the organisation in the form of a number of boundary changes for 
existing National Parks and other AONBs, there would be a significant delay 
in looking at any new proposals for designation. In order to make it into their 
prioritised list it will be important that any initial submission is well formulated, 
has significant consensus amongst local stakeholders including neighbouring 
authorities and is fully backed up with evidence.

In May 2018 the Environment Secretary, Michael Gove announced a review 
of National Parks and AONBs. As well as looking at how well National Parks 
are meeting their statutory purposes, the review will also be looking at the 
process of designation, with a view “to improving and expediting the process.” 
This gives some hope that the process for designation could be speeded up. 
The Review is to report back to Parliament in 2019.

1.2 Benefits of AONB designation

There have been a number of academic studies on the benefits and 
detriments of AONB designation2, which have been verified in interviews with 
local key stakeholders. These can be summarised as follows:

Page 15



MDDC Report [title]
v

4

 It affords protection and opportunities to conserve and enhance the unique 
environmental and cultural quality of the area (which is the primary 
function of an AONB)

 It focuses local and national attention on the environmental, social and 
economic needs of the area 

 AONB status brings national recognition as one of the nation’s best 
landscapes

 This can provide important ‘brand image’ for the designated area and 
therefore potentially helps promote the area to visitors and potential 
residents

 There are increased opportunities for gaining resources for the area 
(external funding, expertise and support) – However, the effectiveness of 
gaining this support is dependent on the vigour and vitality of the bodies 
and partner organisations pursuing these opportunities.

 There are increased opportunities for landowners to gain funding for 
environmental schemes / support for marginal land.

 Designation provides a marginal competitive advantage in gaining 
resources.

 It can provide leverage to support the growth of the green economy – 
creating brand value and environmental opportunities

 It creates increased planning constraints against inappropriate 
development 

 It creates a statutory duty on all public bodies to have regard to the 
purposes – to ‘protect and enhance the natural beauty’, thereby giving 
further protection.

Detriments

 The cost of designation (estimated in the order of £100s of thousands) – 
including preparatory work, commissioned studies, community 
engagement, political consensus building)

 It creates significant financial liabilities for the council in the shape of 
continuing maintenance costs (developing a management plan, and 
delivering the actions that flow from it)

 There are greater restrictions on landowners / house-owners on how they 
develop their land / property 

 There are increased pressures on the landscape generated by designation 
– increased footfall, increased demand for access2

 Increased desirability – putting greater pressure on housing and other 
resources. This could see an increase in houses being used as holiday or 
weekend homes, reducing the vitality of existing villages and contributing 
to a decline in demand-based service provision 

2 Impacts of AONB designation
http://cambrian-mountains.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/2014/01/aonb-pathfinder-report.pdf 

 “Concern has been voiced for decades that designation will increase the level of visitation in National 
Parks and AONBs. No AONB has remarked on this as an impact of designation. Those interviewed by 
us pointed out that the beauty of these areas means that as a tourism and recreation destination they 
pre-date designation. Two remarked that, on the contrary, the local tourism industry did not perform 
especially strongly, partly because “brand awareness”, in terms of the area, was often poor and in no 
way associated with the designation.” 

Page 16

http://cambrian-mountains.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/2014/01/aonb-pathfinder-report.pdf


MDDC Report [title]
v

5

 ‘The National Park Premium’ – there is an inflationary effect on house 
prices from national park and AONB status, that then puts further pressure 
on young people needing accommodation3 and increases the challenges 
of affordability for local people

1.3 SWOT of the Exe Valley as an AONB

Looking at the case for seeking AONB status for the Exe Valley, it can be 
summarised using the SWOT (Strengths, Weaknesses, Opportunities and 
Threats) analysis below.

Strengths
 Recognisably beautiful landscape
 Numerous Ancient woodland habitats
 The northern fringe of the area 

shares common landscape 
characteristics with Exmoor NP

 The Exe is an important river system
 Strong village identities
 The majority of the proposed area is 

within one local authority
 Significant heritage features

Weaknesses
 Lack of flagship environmental sites / 

habitats / species
 Lack of public access – very little (if 

any) common land and limited 
footpath system

 Modern agricultural practices leading 
to water quality issues

 Limited extent of area
 Limited narrative tying the area 

together, leading to a weak sense of 
place (Exe Valley).

Opportunities
 Focus attention on the environmental 

and historic / cultural quality of the 
area

 To enhance the environmental quality 
of the area

 To promote tourism and leisure 
opportunities 

 Opportunity to create a brand linking 
the open moorland of Exmoor NP to 
the (nationally / internationally 
important) Exe Estuary and the sea

Threats
 Modern agricultural practices leading 

to soil and water quality issues
 Potential for unsympathetic village 

development across the area 
 Changes in agriculture due to post 

Brexit settlement
 Unknown direction of agricultural 

subsidies
 Threats to tranquility and remoteness 

from growth of villages and towns
 Live-work patterns – commuting to 

places of work, breaking down links 
between community and locality 
(dormitory villages)

 Environmental change due to effects 
of global climate change

3 House prices in designated landscapes is considerably higher than the average for the 
area. http://www.knightfrank.co.uk/blog/2017/06/13/the-national-park-premium 
“Oliver Knight, an Associate in Knight Frank’s Residential Research team, said: “The high quality of life 
connected with living in some of the most distinctive landscapes in England and Wales is an obvious attraction 
for many home buyers, but this often comes with a premium. More restrictive planning regimes in place within 
National Parks and Areas of Outstanding Natural Beauty means supply can often fall short of demand and this – 
along with the nature of existing stock, which tend towards older, larger homes with land - has underpinned 
pricing.”

Page 17

http://www.knightfrank.co.uk/blog/2017/06/13/the-national-park-premium


MDDC Report [title]
v

6

 Increasing number of 2nd homes / 
holiday cottages 

2.0      Key Emergent Issues

From the work carried out so far, some key issues are emerging that need to 
be resolved if the Council is to pursue AONB designation. 

2.1 Proving that the ‘natural beauty’ of the area is ‘outstanding’ 

The key concept Natural England uses to assess applications for designation is 
‘natural beauty’. This concept combines a number of factors - environmental 
quality, biodiversity, landscape quality, tranquillity, scenic quality, heritage and 
culture. Informal feedback from key informants indicates that there is probably 
a sufficient basis to build a case for designation for the Exe Valley, but this 
would need to be substantiated. There are a number of existing sources of 
evidence, but these are far from comprehensive, and much of what is 
available needs revising. The first stage of any designation process must be 
to undertake a full gap analysis of available evidence in order to identify what 
further studies, surveys and reports need to be commissioned. This will 
largely determine the time and cost needed to develop a case for designation. 
One of the key documents necessary for proving the case for designation is 
the Mid Devon Landscape Character Assessment which was last revised in 
2011. This would need to be fully revised as part of an application process.

2.2 Defining the Area 

The initial concept map (see Appendix A) shows the extent of the River Exe 
catchment within the Mid Devon District Council boundaries. The primary 
consideration by Natural England for deciding the extent of an AONB is the 
integrity of the natural landscape character of the proposed area. Political 
boundaries do not necessarily form part of their considerations. From a 
natural landscape perspective there is an argument to expand the area under 
consideration beyond the boundaries of Mid Devon District Council to take in 
small areas of neighbouring districts (North Devon to take in areas of the 
moorland on its western border that feed the tributaries to the Exe; East 
Devon particularly towards the Killerton Estate and to Cowley Bridge; and 
Taunton Deane around the headwaters of the Batherm). This will add 
complexity to the process, but may be a necessary part of obtaining 
designation.

There will also need to be considerations as to whether to exclude areas of 
significant planned or potential development. Again, the primary consideration 
for such exclusions must be natural landscape character and not just 
expediency. Even if an argument was made to exclude Tiverton from a 
proposal, major developments may be subject to greater scrutiny due to their 
proximity to an AONB (see section 2.6 on planning implications). The exact 
boundary for a proposed AONB would be decided as part of finalising a 
submission to Natural England.

Page 18



MDDC Report [title]
v

7

2.3 Creating a Vibrant, Economically Active and Living Community

The primary and only criterion for AONB designation as set out in legislation is 
‘to conserve and enhance the environment’. Although there may very well be 
important benefits to the local economy through AONB designation, these 
economic benefits are not part of Natural England’s considerations. Initial 
discussions with key stakeholders have already underlined the need to 
balance protection for the environment with ensuring a vibrant, economically 
active and living community. As part of any process to seek designation the 
Council should set out a comprehensive vision for how it can facilitate 
regeneration and economic growth in the rural areas affected by potential 
designation. This is particularly important given the uncertainties caused by 
Brexit, and the resulting possible effects on the agricultural sector. 
Landowners may be unwilling to support an AONB designation if their options 
for growth and development are curtailed through planning restrictions or 
perception of such.

2.4 Cost of gaining designation

It is difficult at this stage to estimate the final costs of a process that could 
take up to 10 years to complete. However, an initial estimate of the cost of 
collecting evidence and doing the work necessary to obtain designation over a 
three year period is over £200k.

Estimated Cost for initial work of designation 
Item Assumptions Cost
Initial work on Expression of 
Interest

£40,000

AONB Project worker 3 years of 0.6 fte at Grade 10 +  
on costs (+ 2% year on year 
inflation)

£94,510

Landscape Character 
Assessment Revision

£20,000

Commissioning Detailed 
Survey Work

The total amount needed for 
detailed survey work would be 
determined by a detailed gap 
analysis. 

£40,000 - 
£60,000

Partnership Activity £10,000
Community Engagement £10,000

TOTAL £234,510

2.5 Ongoing AONB management costs

Once established an AONB’s main statutory responsibility is to develop and 
deliver a management plan. Looking locally for comparable costs, in 17-18 the 
core costs for the Blackdown Hills (BH) AONB Unit were £178k, of which 75% 
is funded by DEFRA and 25% by local authority contributions. Even assuming 
that the level of government grant remains the same, and that Mid Devon was 
the main contributing authority, at current values the cost to the District 
Council would be £44.5k pa. There could be other management models that 

Page 19



MDDC Report [title]
v

8

might reduce these costs, for instance sharing core staff with other designated 
areas, but this gives a base figure to work with.

In recent years funding for National Parks and AONBs has been under 
pressure, and there is an expectation that come the end of the current 
government funding settlement and the new post Brexit funding landscape, 
funding for designated areas may be less generous. Many National Parks and 
AONBs are actively looking at ways of becoming more self-sustaining, by 
setting up as a social enterprise and developing potential funding streams. 
Setting up an AONB in today’s funding climate without some form of 
sustainable income stream, may create problems for the future. 

Expenditure Income
AONB Unit costs £178k Defra Funding 

(under current 
settlement)

75%

Local Authority Funding 25% £44.5k

Estimated per annum management costs (Based on BH AONB at current 
values)

Should DEFRA funding for areas of activity such as this be reduced or 
removed, the cost would fall on the Council. The financial exposure in such 
circumstances would be approximately £178k per year. 

2.6 Planning Implications (see Appendix C) 

Under Section 85 of the Countryside and Rights of Way Act 2000 local 
authorities have a general duty to ‘have regard to the purpose of conserving 
or enhancing the natural beauty’ of AONBs when coming to any decisions or 
carrying out activities relating to or affecting land within these areas. Activities 
and developments outside the boundaries of AONBs that have an impact 
within the designated area are also covered by the ‘duty of regard’. 

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 2018 indicates that AONBs 
are equivalent in planning status to National Parks in terms of their landscape 
quality and scenic beauty. At paragraph 11, the NPPF indicates that where 
there are no relevant development plan policies or the most relevant policies 
to determine an application  are out of date, permission should be granted 
unless the conditions in either of two specific criteria occur. One of these 
criteria is where a protected area provides a clear reason for refusing the 
development proposed. An AONB is one such protected area where reasons 
may exist to refuse planning permission which override the presumption to 
approve permission in such circumstances.  

The NPPF states that local authorities should support the development of 
entry-level exception housing sites for first time buyers (or those looking to 
rent their first homes) in certain circumstances on land which is not already 
allocated for housing. Such sites should be adjacent to settlements, 
proportionate in size to them and not compromise the protection given to 
areas of particular importance including AONBs. 

Page 20



MDDC Report [title]
v

9

The NPPF identifies that greater weight should be given to conserving and 
enhancing the landscape and scenic beauty in National Parks, the Broads 
and AONBs which have the highest status of protection in relation to these 
issues. The scale and extent of development within such areas should be 
limited and planning permission should be refused for major development 
other than in exceptional circumstances where it can be demonstrated that 
the development is in the public interest. 

Adopted planning policies within Mid Devon relating to AONBs are as follows:
Core Strategy policy COR2 which refers to the preservation and enhancement 
of the distinctive qualities of Mid Devon’s natural landscape and that within 
AONBs the primary objection will be to protect the special environmental 
qualities of that landscape and its setting. Development management policies 
within the Local Plan Part 3 policy DM29 relate to protected landscapes and 
states that:

Development proposals within or affecting the Blackdown Hills Area of
Outstanding Natural Beauty, Dartmoor National Park, Exmoor National
Park and the North Devon Biosphere Reserve must demonstrate that:
a) Cultural heritage and the character, appearance, setting and other 
special qualities of the landscape will be conserved or, where possible, 
enhanced; and
b) Biodiversity will be conserved and enhanced where possible through 
improved linking of habitats, appropriate landscaping and habitat 
creation.

Major developments within or adjoining the Area of Outstanding 
Natural Beauty and Dartmoor or Exmoor National Parks will only be 
permitted in exceptional cases.

The Local Plan Review 2013-2033, currently at examination, contains similar 
policies at S1 Sustainable Development Priorities, S9 Environment and DM27 
Protected Landscapes together with specific references to the Blackdown 
Hills AONB within two site allocations: CU9 East Cullompton environmental 
protection and green infrastructure and CL2 Hunter’s Hill, Culmstock. 

AONB designation also acts to limit certain permitted development rights in 
relation to buildings within the curtilage of a dwelling house, the size of 
residential and non-domestic extensions, residential alterations, changes of 
use and certain works by statutory undertakers. 

2.7 Resource implications

The Growth, Economy and Delivery Team (GED) is currently developing an 
Economic Strategy, which will detail the Council’s priorities for economic 
growth within the district. There are currently a number of ambitious projects 
flagged up within the strategy which will require considerable resourcing. All 
three options outlined below will require staffing and funding for specific 
projects, this has the potential to reduce the Council’s ability to proceed with 
other economic / corporate priorities and reduce the impact of the emerging 
Economic Strategy. 

Page 21



MDDC Report [title]
v

10

AONB designation is fundamentally and specifically an environmental 
designation -‘to conserve and enhance the natural beauty’ of an area. To 
successfully take designation forward it will need people with technical 
expertise in environmental services to develop the bid. This is currently not 
available within the Planning and Regeneration Service. If the Council decides 
to move towards seeking designation, consideration should be given to the 
most appropriate service area to take the initiative forward.

3.0      Options for future action

The following paragraphs set out options for taking this initiative forward;

Option 1 – Seek full AONB Designation

Option 2 – Form a delivery partnership of key stakeholders 

Option 3 - Develop specific schemes to enhance the area economically 
and environmentally

Option 4 – Take no further action at this stage, but look for other 
opportunities to enhance the economy of the area

3.1 Option 1 – Seek full AONB Designation

This would involve a three stage process:

 Submission of an initial expression of interest 
 Submission of a full bid for AONB designation
 Assessment and Determination by Natural England

Phase 1: Initial Submission – 6 months

An initial submission would need to include:
 A description of the evidence sources which have been used to support 

the assertion that the area in question may satisfy the statutory 
designation criteria and that it is desirable that it be designated for the 
purpose of conserving and enhancing the area’s natural beauty.

 A statement on the extent and nature of the local consensus for 
designation. This should make specific reference to which local 
authorities are supporting the suggestion and highlight any national 
bodies that have expressed support.  It would also be helpful to note 
any significant expressions of opposition from any quarter.

 A map showing the boundary of the area being suggested for 
designation.  This needs to be Ordnance Survey based and of a 
suitable scale to allow an approximate boundary to be plotted into 
Natural England’s GIS system.

An initial map has been produced, although it would need to be verified in 
discussion with neighbouring authorities. A list of readily available evidence 
has also been produced, but further work needs to be done to ensure this is 
sufficiently robust. The main piece of work needed before an initial submission 

Page 22



MDDC Report [title]
v

11

is to formally approach neighbouring authorities to seek their views on a 
proposed designation.

The cost of the initial work to cover staff costs, meeting costs and any initial 
evidence collecting could be £40,000 to support the initial 6 months of the 
process.

Phase 2: Development of a full bid for designation – 3 years

If an initial submission was received favourably by Natural England, then a full 
bid would need to be developed. This process could take anything up to 3 
years and requires a part-time project officer in order to undertake the work 
necessary to build a robust case for designation. This would include 
undertaking a detailed gap analysis of available evidence, commissioning 
further studies and surveys as identified through the gap analysis, partnership 
development and community engagement. A major piece of work that we 
know would need updating for this purpose is the Mid Devon Landscape 
Character Assessment, which would need to be completed to inform the rest 
of the process. The cost for this phase could be between £200 – £250k (see 
more detailed costings above).

Phase 3: Assessment and Determination by Natural England – Up to 10 
years.

The timing of this will be governed by Natural England’s capacity to manage 
its workload and the prioritisation of its caseload and may take anything up to 
ten years. This period would also need to be resourced to ensure any further 
information needed by Natural England was collected and submitted in a 
timely manner. 

3.2 Option 2 – Form a delivery partnership of key stakeholders

Some of the beneficial outcomes of AONB status could be achieved by 
developing an active, delivery partnership for the Exe Valley cf. the Exe 
Estuary Management Partnership (https://www.exe-estuary.org). An active 
partnership would be a necessary stage towards achieving AONB status, as 
reaching consensus about the needs of the area would be an important 
element to making the case for designation in the first place. If the partnership 
proved effective and was demonstrably delivering, it could itself provide the 
focus and partner input necessary. An active delivery partnership may thus be 
able to deliver many of the benefits of designation without undergoing the 
lengthy process of seeking AONB designation.

There would also be a cost to maintaining an active partnership. The working 
of the partnership would need to be managed, and partnership projects would 
need to be driven forward. This would need a part-time staff resource 
estimated at 1–2 day a week, depending on the activity of the partnership, 
costing up to £21,000 per annum, as well as match funding for partnership 
projects, and seed funding to attract further funding for any initiatives it 
decided to support. The amount of match funding would be as large as the 
ambition of the partnership but could be estimated at £50,000.

Page 23

https://www.exe-estuary.org/


MDDC Report [title]
v

12

However, there are risks associated with this approach. Without an active 
core group and officer support to develop and deliver initiatives, it is unlikely 
that such a partnership would be able to demonstrate its value, making it 
more difficult to sustain partners’ involvement. With no designation, there may 
be a lack of focus and direction to the group, unless they could create a 
strong vision for themselves. Equally, without AONB designation, access to 
funding and other resources may be more difficult to achieve, making it harder 
for a partnership to deliver. 

3.3 Option 3 – Develop specific schemes to enhance the area economically 
and environmentally

One of the main benefits of seeking AONB designation is the focus of 
attention and resources on the needs of an area. Given the right intention and 
effort, this can be achieved with or without AONB designation, but at a pace 
determined by the Council’s and other partners’ capacity to respond.

If the Council so wishes, it could initiate and develop projects and initiatives 
with partners to further the environmental protection and enhancement of the 
area and its economic growth without any of the obligations and costs of 
AONB designation, or the costs of a formal partnership. For instance, seek 
funding to extend environmental schemes available on Exmoor, such as the 
‘Headwaters of Exe Project’, to the Exmoor fringe areas of the Exe; work with 
Exmoor National Park and Exeter City Council to create a brand for the Exe 
Valley (from ‘Moor to Sea’) to promote local food and drink producers 
cf?‘Dorset Food’4 and to promote the area to visitors.  Projects could then be 
prioritised against other calls on the Council’s resources. The cost of this 
option would be determined by the type and extent of the project pursued. 
The projects themselves would need to be prioritised against other work 
streams.

One disadvantage of this approach is that it could raise expectations for 
similar initiatives across the District which would have further significant staff 
and resource implications.

3.4 Option 4 - Take no further action at this stage 

Accepting that the Exe Valley is an area of great beauty and an important 
natural asset to the District, the Council could decide not to actively pursue 
designation but to continue to take opportunities as they arise to enhance and 
protect the area through joint initiatives with other partners. We are already 
actively working with partners on a couple of initiatives which could have a 
significant effect on the natural environment and create economic benefits to 
the area such as Culm Catchment Project currently being pursued with 
Blackdown Hills AONB, which will potentially bring in substantial funding into a 
whole river approach to managing the river Culm and create a series of 
natural flood mitigation interventions; the Hydromills project, piloting the use of 
innovative micro-hydro schemes to create community-based energy 
production and improve active management of waterways. If successful this 
project may have the potential for expanding into areas of the river Exe. 
These and other opportunities could be pursued alongside, and prioritised 

4 http://www.landscapesforlife.org.uk/resource/dorset-food-and-drink/ 

Page 24

http://www.landscapesforlife.org.uk/resource/dorset-food-and-drink/


MDDC Report [title]
v

13

with, other economic initiatives without the extra costs incurred by seeking 
formal AONB designation.

4.0 Consideration at policy development group meetings. 

4.1 The contents of this report were considered at the meeting of the Environment 
PDG on 4th September 2018. A summary of the points discussed is attached 
at Appendix D. The recommendation from this PDG to Cabinet was that the 
Council seek Option 1: full AONB designation. 

4.2 The contents of this report were also considered that the meeting of Economy 
PDG on 6th September. Again, a summary of the discussion is at Appendix D. 
Whilst not making a formal recommendation to Cabinet, the preferred option 
for the majority of Members was Option 4 –Take no further action at this 
stage. 

Contact for more Information: John Bodley Scott, Economic Development 
Team Leader 01884 234363 
jbodleyscott@middevon.gov.uk 

Circulation of the Report: Cllr Richard Chesterton

List of Background Papers: 

Appendices A, B and C attached

Page 25

mailto:jbodleyscott@middevon.gov.uk


MDDC Report [title]
v

14

Appendix A – Initial Concept Map (an A1 copy of the map will be available at the meeting).
The area being considered initially stretches from the District Council boundary to the north, 
to the confluence with the river Culm in the south, taking in the majority of the Exe River 
catchment (excluding those parts that cross into Somerset). It is bounded by a light green 
line very hard to see! on the map.Font size

Page 26



MDDC Report [title]
v

15

Appendix B – Elements of Natural Beauty (from Natural England Guidance)

Factor Example sub-factor Example Indicator
Landscape quality Intactness of the landscape 

in visual, functional and 
ecological perspectives

Characteristic natural and 
man-made elements are well 
represented throughout

The condition of the 
landscape‘s features and
elements

Landscape elements are in 
good condition

The influence of incongruous 
features or elements 
(whether man-made or 
natural) on the perceived 
natural beauty of the area

Incongruous elements are not 
present to a significant degree, 
are not visually intrusive, have 
only localised influence or are 
temporary in nature

Scenic quality A distinctive sense of place Landscape character lends a 
clear and recognisable sense 
of place

Striking landform Landform shows a strong 
sense of scale or contrast
There are striking landform 
types or coastal configurations

Visual interest in patterns of 
land cover

Land cover and vegetation 
types form an appealing 
pattern or composition in 
relation to each other and/or to 
landform which may be 
appreciated from either a 
vantage point or as one travels 
through a landscape

Appeal to the senses Strong aesthetic qualities, 
reflecting factors such as scale 
and form, degree of openness 
or enclosure, colours and 
textures, simplicity or diversity, 
and ephemeral or seasonal 
interest
Memorable or unusual views 
and eye-catching features or 
landmarks
Characteristic cognitive and 
sensory stimuli (e.g. sounds, 
quality of light, characteristic 
smells, characteristics of the 
weather)

Relative wildness A sense of remoteness Relatively few roads or other 
transport routes

Distant from or perceived as 
distant from significant 
habitation

A relative lack of human Extensive areas of semi-

Page 27



MDDC Report [title]
v

16

influence natural vegetation
Uninterrupted tracts of land 
with few built features and few 
overt industrial or urban 
influences

A sense of openness and 
exposure

Open, exposed to the 
elements and expansive in 
character

A sense of enclosure and 
isolation

Sense of enclosure provided 
by (eg) woodland, landform 
that offers a feeling of isolation

A sense of the passing of 
time and a return to nature

Absence or apparent absence 
of active human intervention

Relative 
tranquillity

Contributors to tranquillity Presence and/or perceptions 
of natural landscape, birdsong, 
peace and quiet, natural-
looking woodland, stars at 
night, stream, sea, natural 
sounds and similar influences

Detractors from tranquillity Presence and/or perceptions 
of traffic noise, large numbers 
of people, urban development, 
overhead light pollution, low 
flying aircraft, power lines and 
similar influences

Natural heritage 
features

Geological and geo-
morphological features

Visible expression of geology 
in distinctive sense of place 
and other aspects of scenic 
quality
Presence of striking or 
memorable geo-morphological 
features

Wildlife and habitats Presence of wildlife and/or 
habitats that make a particular 
contribution todistinctive sense 
of place or other aspects of 
scenic quality
Presence of individual species 
that contribute to sense of 
place, relativewildness or 
tranquillity

Cultural heritage Built environment, 
archaeology and designed 
landscapes

Presence of settlements, 
buildings or other structures 
that make a particular 
contribution to distinctive 
sense of place or other 
aspects of scenic quality
Presence of visible 
archaeological remains, 

Page 28



MDDC Report [title]
v

17

parkland or designed 
landscapes that provide 
striking features in the 
landscape

Historic influence on the 
landscape

Visible presence of historic 
landscape types or specific 
landscape elements orfeatures 
that provide evidence of time 
depth or historic influence on 
the landscape.
Perceptions of a harmonious 
balance between natural and 
cultural elements in the 
landscape that stretch back 
over time 

Characteristic land 
management practices

Existence of characteristic land 
management practices, 
industries or crafts which 
contribute to natural beauty 

Associations with written 
descriptions

Availability of descriptions of 
the landscape in notable 
literature, topographical 
writings or guide books, or 
significant literature inspired by 
the landscape.

Associations with artistic 
representations

Depiction of the landscape in 
art, other art forms such as 
photography or film, through 
language or folklore, or in 
inspiring related music

Associations of the 
landscape with people, 
places or events

Evidence that the landscape 
has associations with notable 
people or events, cultural 
traditions or beliefs

Page 29



MDDC Report [title]
v

18

Appendix C – Planning Implications5

The Government has confirmed that AONBs are equivalent in planning status to 
National Parks in terms of their landscape quality and scenic beauty.

AONBs were originally established under the National Parks and Access to the 
Countryside Act 1949, though the legislation was reformulated in the Countryside 
and Rights of Way Act 2000. Section 85 of the Act contains a general duty on all 
relevant authorities to ‘have regard to the purpose of conserving or enhancing the 
natural beauty’ of AONBs when coming to any decisions or carrying out activities 
relating to or affecting land within these areas. Activities and developments outside 
the boundaries of AONBs that have an impact within the designated area are also 
covered by the ‘duty of regard’. The duty is relevant in considering development 
proposals that are situated outside National Park or Area of Outstanding Natural 
Beauty boundaries, but which might have an impact on the setting of, and 
implementation of, the statutory purposes of these protected areas.

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF 2018) is the principal document 
setting out the Government’s national policies on land use planning, and contains 
policies specific to protected landscapes (including AONBs) at paragraph 172 (NPPF 
July 2018). These make a distinction between major developments and other 
proposals. Planning Practice Guidance (PPG) helps provide further clarity on policies 
set out in the NPPF.

The NPPF also emphasises that for all areas, including AONBs, the local plan is the 
starting point for deciding planning applications, and that it is highly desirable for 
local planning authorities to have an up-to-date local plan in place. Where a local 
plan is ‘absent, silent, or relevant policies are out-of-date’, the NPPF’s presumption 
in favour of sustainable development applies in most areas – meaning that the 
proposal should normally be granted unless the adverse impacts would ‘significantly 
and demonstrably’ outweigh the benefits of the proposal, when assessed against the 
policies in the NPPF taken as a whole. However, in AONBs (and in other protected 
areas), separate policies – in paragraph 172 – apply instead of the presumption in 
favour of granting permission. This is made clear in paragraph 11 (d) and footnote 6 
of the NPPF (July 2018).

In addition, AONBs are required to have Management Plans, and Planning Practice 
Guidance states that these should be taken into account in local plans and 
neighbourhood plans, and may also be material considerations in determining 
individual planning applications.

NPPF policy on AONBs

172. Great weight should be given to conserving and enhancing landscape and 
scenic beauty in National Parks, the Broads and Areas of Outstanding Natural 
Beauty, which have the highest status of protection in relation to these issues. The 
conservation and enhancement of wildlife and cultural heritage are also important 
considerations in these areas, and should be given great weight in National Parks 
and the Broads. The scale and extent of development within these designated areas 

5 https://www.nationaltrust.org.uk/documents/national-trust-areas-of-outstanding-natural-beauty-and-
development.pdf 

Page 30

https://www.nationaltrust.org.uk/documents/national-trust-areas-of-outstanding-natural-beauty-and-development.pdf
https://www.nationaltrust.org.uk/documents/national-trust-areas-of-outstanding-natural-beauty-and-development.pdf


MDDC Report [title]
v

19

should be limited. Planning permission should be refused for major development 
other than in exceptional circumstances, and where it can be demonstrated that the 
development is in the public interest. Consideration of such applications should 
include an assessment of:

a) the need for the development, including in terms of any national considerations, 
and the impact of permitting it, or refusing it, upon the local economy; 

b) the cost of, and scope for, developing outside the designated area, or meeting the 
need for it in some other way; and 

c) any detrimental effect on the environment, the landscape and recreational 
opportunities, and the extent to which that could be moderated.

NPPF (July 2018)

Page 31



MDDC Report [title]
v

20

APPENDIX D

CONSIDERATION OF WHETHER TO SEEK DESIGNATION AS AN AREA OF 
OUTSTANDING NATURAL BEAUTY FOR THE EXE VALLEY. 

1.0 The Exe Valley AONB report was discussed at the Environment PDG on the 
4th September and the Economy PDG on the 6th September. The Environment 
PDG was asked to make a recommendation to cabinet on a way forward.

2.0 Environment PDG, 4th September

During discussions the following issues were raised. 

 Members discussed their disappointment that the public consultation 
exercise that had been conducted by Members, which showed 
overwhelming support from the local Towns and Parishes, had not 
been included within the report. It was felt that the report concentrated 
too much on the negative aspects of pursuing AONB status rather than 
the positives.

 The Committee discussed the current Blackdown Hills AONB and the 
management structure which had been set up and that a different 
arrangement would need to be made for an Exe Valley AONB. They 
also discussed the difficulties that it may have on future infrastructure 
requirements.

 Members acknowledged that there would be a cost of pursuing the 
AONB status but they felt that this would not outweigh the benefits.

 With regard to the concept map of the AONB, the Committee felt that it 
should be amended further to the south and include Brampford Speke, 
Upton Pyne, Rewe and Stoke Canon.

 Members acknowledged that there was a Government Review of 
AONB’s due in 2019 but they felt that this should not delay the pursuit 
of the Exe Valley AONB despite uncertainties about what the 
Government Review would actually mean.

 Officers confirmed that if AONB was achieved it would have the same 
effect on planning as National Parks but the difference being that 
National Parks had their own planning committees but MDDC would 
still be the planning authority in an AONB.

 The Committee felt that the time was right to pursue full AONB 
Designation for the Exe Valley even if this came at a financial cost to 
the Council.

RECOMMENDED to the Cabinet that the Council consider option 1 - ‘To 
seek full AONB Designation.

Page 32



MDDC Report [title]
v

21

3.0 Economy PDG 6th September

The Economy PDG also discussed the report at their meeting on the 6th 
September, focusing in particular on the economic factors associated with 
seeking AONB designation. The discussion that resulted covered the 
following issues:

 Concern was expressed regarding the inflationary effect on house 
prices.

 Some of the people who had grown up in the Blackdown Hills area 
could not

 now afford to buy property in this area.

 There were not as many attractive elements to the proposed area as 
there

 were in places like Exmoor or Dartmoor and concern was expressed 
that not

 all of the area proposed would qualify for this status even if small 
pockets

 might.

 The substantial cost implications in terms of project development work 
and the ongoing delivery of a possible AONB management plan.

 The difficulties involved in quantifying the return on any investment.

 The effect upon agriculture, in particular the milk industry.

 Members expressed concern about whether the proposed area of 
coverage

 was the right one in size and geography given the qualities of the 
natural area, the need to consider the appropriate scale of any 
designation, and the

 proximity to other existing AONBs in the area.

No formal Recommendation was made by the Economy PDG, as this 
was apportioned to the Environment PDG, but the preferred option of 
the majority of group was Option 4 ‘Take no further action at this stage’.

Page 33



This page is intentionally left blank



Recharges Policy Report 2018

Page 1 of 3

Recharges Policy Report 09/18

HOMES POLICY DEVELOPMENT GROUP    
11 SEPTEMBER 2018             

REVIEW OF BUILDING SERVICES RECHARGES POLICY

Cabinet Member:        Cllr Ray Stanley
Responsible Officer: Mark Baglow, Group Manager for Building Services

Reason for Report: To advise members of the revised Recharges Policy 

RECOMMENDATION(S):  That Cabinet adopts the revised Recharges Policy                                    

Relationship to Corporate Plan: The Recharges Policy will be key to managing the 
council housing stock efficiently.

Financial Implications: The financial implications will be contained within the 
Housing Revenue Account (HRA). It is important to prioritise financial management 
of this account to ensure the all available funds are used to the best possible effect.

Legal Implications: It will be necessary to ensure that the Recharges Policy 
addresses all the legal obligations the Council has as a Landlord for the housing 
estate.

Risk Assessment: The management of circa 3000 homes for some of our most 
vulnerable tenants contains many risks. These risks are managed at a service level. 

1.0 Introduction

1.1 During the 2016/17 financial year, the repairs service invoiced for 
rechargeable repairs to a value of £54,545 of which £11,378 was recovered 
and £15,681 ‘written off’ by the end of that period. The remainder of the debt 
is still current and in some cases payment plans have been put in place.

1.2 During the 2016/17 financial year, the repairs service invoiced for handyman 
repairs to a value of £18,857 or which £18,090 was recovered and £244 
‘written off’ by the end of that period.

1.3 The Housing Revenue Account processes and allocates any payments 
received in line with a previously agreed hierarchy. The ‘rent account’ always 
takes priority, therefore if a tenant is in arrears and make a payment towards 
rechargeable repairs that have been carried out by the Building Services team 
the payment will automatically be diverted to the rent account in order to pay 
off any arrears. Therefore although the tenant may have paid the debt due, 
the rechargeable repairs income cost centre will show a loss as the money 
has been diverted elsewhere.

1.4 Due to the nature of our business it is very difficult to get a former tenant to 
pay their debts; this is particularly prevalent where a void property has been 
left in poor condition. A high proportion of our unrecovered debt relates to void 

Page 35

Agenda Item 6.



Recharges Policy Report 2018

Page 2 of 3

Recharges Policy Report 09/18

properties and although we endeavour to allocate the ex-tenant this can be 
very difficult. Add in the fact that the tenant may be deceased with no estate 
and the debt ends up being written off.

1.5 The rechargeable repairs and the handyman service is a significant part of the 
annual budget, in terms of both income and expenditure. As such, it is 
important that this money is efficiently managed. 

1.6 The main aim of this review is to action recent feedback from both tenants 
and officers alike, particularly that the policy should include clear examples for 
reference. 

1.7 The timing of this review has been brought forward to coincide with the 
recently reviewed Compensation Policy, in order to ensure that the balance of 
responsibility borne by both the tenants and also Mid Devon District Council is 
fair and transparent.

2.0 Proposed Changes to the Policy

2.1 If accepted, the proposal is for the minor changes to the policy to be published 
for officer use and tenant reference. 

2.2 This policy has been better aligned with the tenant compensation policy. 

2.3 We have also addressed tenant feedback, comments and complaints 
received since this policy was last reviewed. The main area of improvement is 
to clarify and give more examples of typical recharges, as well as clarifying 
that any lists are non-exhaustive. 

2.4 The proposed policy addresses and clarifies our new position and practice of 
charging for missed appointments. 

3.0 Tenant Consultation

3.1 The Housing ‘Tenants Together’ group have been consulted on this policy 
and their comments taken into consideration.

4.0 Implementation of the Recharges Policy

4.1 There is little change to the policy content, only a clarification of existing policy 
details. The points of clarification are intended to benefit tenants as much as it 
is the council.  

4.2 Implementation of this policy will be supported by action from both the 
Building Services and Housing teams. 

5.0 Financial Context

5.1 Maintaining the Councils housing stock is the largest ongoing element of the 
Councils capital programme. 

Page 36



Recharges Policy Report 2018

Page 3 of 3

Recharges Policy Report 09/18

5.2 Within the annual budget there are increasing targets relating to income 
generation from handyman chargeable repairs. 

5.3 Clarification of this policy and strict adherence to it should contribute to high 
levels of chargeable repair income recovery, improvement in recovery rates 
for rechargeable repairs, and a reduction in recharge write-offs. There are no 
additional resource implications as a direct result of this policy.

Contact for more Information:

Mark Baglow, Group Manager Building Services
mbaglow@middevon.gov.uk
Tel 01884 233011

Circulation of the Report: 

Director of Operations
Cabinet Member for Housing
Tenants Together Group
Group Managers
Leadership Team
Homes Policy Development Group

Page 37



This page is intentionally left blank



Recharges Policy 2018

Page 1 of 14

Recharges Policy V3.2 09/18

Mid Devon District Council

Recharges Policy

Policy Number: OBS 002

September 2018

Page 39



Recharges Policy 2018

Page 2 of 14

Recharges Policy V3.2 09/18

Version Control Sheet

Title: Recharges Policy

Purpose: To review the Recharges Policy in accordance with good practice and relevant 
legislative requirements.

Owner: Group Manager for Building Services 
mbaglow@middevon.gov.uk 
01884 233011

Date:  September 2018

Version Number: V3.2

Status: Policy Review 

Review Frequency: Every 4 years or sooner if required, and in accordance with changes in 
good practice and legislation.

Next review date:  September 2022

Consultation: This document was sent out for consultation to the following:

Director of Operations
Cabinet Member for Housing
Tenants Together Group
Group Managers
Leadership Team

Document History: This document obtained the following approvals.

Title Date Version 
Approved 

Director of Operations
Cabinet Member for Housing
Tenants Together Group 12 October 2017 V3.1

Group Managers
Leadership Team 
Homes Policy Development Group
Cabinet

Page 40

mailto:mbaglow@middevon.gov.uk


Recharges Policy 2018

Page 3 of 14

Recharges Policy V3.2 09/18

Index

Reference Item Page

  1.0 Introduction 4
  2.0 Scope 4
  3.0 Related Documents 4
  4.0 Definitions 5
  5.0 Tenant’s Responsibility 6
  6.0 Unauthorised and Substandard Alterations 6
  7.0 Neglect, Misuse of the Property 6
  8.0 Accidental, Deliberate or Criminal Damage 6
  9.0 Damage Caused by the Police or Emergency Services 7
10.0 Misuse of Reporting Repairs 7
11.0 ‘No Access’ and ‘Carded’ Appointments 8
12.0 Assignments – Mutual Exchanges 8
13.0 Other Recharges 9
14.0 Key Components – Life Spans 10
15.0 Collection of Charges 11
16.0 Exceptions 12
17.0 Reducing Occurrences 13
18.0 Appeals / Disputes 13
19.0 Complaints 13
20.0 References 13
21.0 Equality & Diversity 14
22.0 Review 14

Page 41



Recharges Policy 2018

Page 4 of 14

Recharges Policy V3.2 09/18

1.0. Introduction

1.1. This policy statement outlines Mid Devon District Councils, Building Services approach 
to the recovery of recharges. These are costs for any repairs/work that the Council 
have been required to carry out to a Council property following damage, unauthorised 
or non-compliant DIY, neglect, misuse or abuse by tenants, residents, members of 
their household, or visitors to their home, and leaseholders or the leaseholders 
tenants.

1.2. In addition, it covers the cost of clearing redundant possessions left when a property is 
vacated, any work carried out by Mid Devon District Council ‘the Council’ to repair or 
maintain the property that is the resident’s responsibility, or any costs relating to non-
statutory works requested by the tenant or leaseholder such as the Handyman 
Scheme.

2.0. Scope

2.1. This policy explains how we will deal effectively with recharges, including those arising 
from damage, non-standard alterations, or for the cost of clearing redundant 
possessions left by tenants. The rationale behind this policy is to ensure that payment 
is received for services carried out on behalf of the tenant, resident or leaseholder.

2.2. This policy covers the following items:

 Tenant’s responsibilities 

 Unauthorised and substandard alterations 

 Neglect, misuse and wilful damage to property

 Accidental, deliberate or criminal damage 

 Misreporting of repairs 

 No access given / ‘carded’ appointments

 Assignments – mutual exchanges 

 Other recharges 

 Collection of recharges 

 Exceptional circumstances 

 Reducing occurrences 

 Appeals

 Complaints

3.0 Related Documents

Page 42



Recharges Policy 2018

Page 5 of 14

Recharges Policy V3.2 09/18

 Tenancy agreement

 Lease

 Garage and GGRP (Garage Ground Rent Plot ) Tenancy Agreement

 Income Management Policy 

 Improvements to Council Properties Policy 

 Garage Management Policy 

 Car Park Management Policy 

 Pets and Animals Policy 

 Hoarding Policy 

 Fire risk in Communal areas Policy 

 Anti-social Behaviour Policy 

 Neighbourhood Management Policy 

 Tenancy Changes Policy 

 Leaseholder’s Handbook 

 Tenant’s Handbook 

 Repairs Handbook 

 Former Tenant Procedure 

 Gas Safety Policy and Electrical Safety Policy

 Corporate Debt Policy and Debt Recovery Procedure 

4.0 Definitions

4.1 For the purposes of this policy, the following definitions apply:

 Tenant – means any person,  or registered provider of social housing that has a 
tenancy agreement with the Council or is a leaseholder with the Council 

 Council Property – means any land/property owned by the Council either as the 
freehold or leasehold owner 

 Wilful Damage – damage caused to Council Property intentionally 

 Neglect – damage caused to Council Property due to neglect 

 Misuse – damage caused to Council Property/land by incorrect or improper use, 
for example, damage to doors and graffiti to walls 

 Accidental damage – damage caused to Council Property/land accidentally, for 
example, knocking a light fitting with a ladder when decorating 

 Emergency repair – a repair that is required to remove immediate danger to 
people, avoid flooding or major damage to the property, make the property 
secure, or restore total loss of heating in the winter

Page 43

https://www.middevon.gov.uk/media/114980/income-management-policy.pdf
https://www.middevon.gov.uk/media/201717/garage-management-policy-v43.pdf
https://www.middevon.gov.uk/media/201716/car-park-management-policy-v37.pdf
https://www.middevon.gov.uk/media/85030/pets-and-animals-policy-v45-approved-at-pdg-160615.pdf
https://www.middevon.gov.uk/media/114712/hoarding-policy-v04.pdf
https://www.middevon.gov.uk/media/344294/mddc-fire-risk-in-communal-areas-policy.pdf
https://www.middevon.gov.uk/media/1184/asb-policy-v1-4-approved-by-pdg-160615.pdf
https://www.middevon.gov.uk/media/85031/neighbourhood-management-policy.pdf
https://www.middevon.gov.uk/media/205916/tenancy-changes-policy-v47.pdf
https://www.middevon.gov.uk/media/201701/mid-devon-district-council-leaseholders-handbook.pdf
https://www.middevon.gov.uk/media/201700/tenant-handbook.pdf
https://www.middevon.gov.uk/media/1241/tenant-repairs-handbook.pdf


Recharges Policy 2018

Page 6 of 14

Recharges Policy V3.2 09/18

 Tenancy Agreement – any tenancy agreement with the Council’s Housing 
Service, including Council house/flat tenancies, garage tenancies, garage 
ground rent plot agreements, tenancy at will agreements and any other 
agreement whereby a person is in occupation of housing land owned by the 
Council

 Uncontainable leak – a leak that cannot be contained by the largest container 
capable of being placed underneath the leak or cannot be contained by using an 
isolation valve (excluding the mains stop tap). NB. If the container is filling to the 
top within 12 hours this is deemed to be uncontainable

5.0 Tenant’s Responsibilities 

5.1 Tenancy Agreements relating to Council houses set out which repairs Tenants are 
responsible for. It advises Tenants that they must keep their home in a reasonable 
condition, and leave it clean and tidy when they end their tenancy. It states that we will 
recharge the Tenant for the cost of making good any damage they have caused and 
clearing any damage they may have caused and cleaning any items left behind.

5.2 All other types of Tenancy Agreements set out the Tenant’s responsibilities for repair 
and maintenance of land/property they are occupying 

6.0 Unauthorised and Substandard Alterations

6.1 If a Tenant undertakes any alterations to a Council property without prior written 
consent from the Council, works must cease immediately and the Tenant must seek 
retrospective consent. Where the Council deems that the intended work is not suitable 
or acceptable then the Tenant must reinstate the property to its original condition.

6.2 If works are carried out by a Tenant that do not meet an acceptable standard, the 
Tenant will be required to rectify the matter and make good any issue identified. 

6.3 If a Tenant fails to complete works to an acceptable standard after being notified of the 
matter then the Tenant will be recharged for any costs incurred by the Council.

6.4 There will be an expectation that whoever undertakes the work on behalf of the Tenant 
is competent to do so, in the case of Solid Fuel, Gas, or Electric, qualified and 
registered with the appropriate governing body at the time such as HETAS, NICEIC or 
Gas Safe is a necessity. Certification will be required for the work and failure to provide 
such certification will deem the work potentially dangerous and as such unacceptable.

7.0 Neglect, Wilful Damage and Misuse of the Council Property

7.1 Where the Council has clear evidence that a defect or damage to any Council Property 
has been caused by Neglect, Misuse or Wilful Damage by the Tenant, or by members 
of the household including visitors to their home, the Tenant will be held responsible 
and will be recharged for costs incurred. In extreme cases the Council will commence 
legal proceedings. Neglect for example would include failing to dispose of rubbish 
properly, losing keys, putting nappies, baby wipes and other inappropriate items down 
the toilet. Wilful damage for example would include damaged doors or windows, DIY 
which has damaged the fabric/ structure of the property or its internal parts. 

Page 44



Recharges Policy 2018

Page 7 of 14

Recharges Policy V3.2 09/18

8.0 Accidental, Deliberate or Criminal Damage

8.1 Where works are required because the Tenant, a member of their household or a 
visitor to their home has deliberately or accidently caused damage to the property, the 
Tenant will be recharged. This includes damage to any Council property for example 
fixtures and fittings in their home, gardens, garages or any communal fixtures or 
fittings owned by the Council and that are the responsibility of the Tenant to replace or 
repair if lost and/or damaged.

8.2 If the property has been damaged due to criminal activity for example a damaged 
window or door, provided there is a valid crime reference (not a call log number) from 
the Police, the repair will not be recharged to the Tenant.

8.3 We will liaise with the Police after the crime has been logged to ensure that they are 
satisfied that a crime has been committed, but if the incident has been incorrectly 
reported, and the crime was committed by a Tenant or the Tenant refuses to press 
charges , the Council will recharge the Tenant for the repair.

9.0 Damage Caused by the Police or Emergency Services

9.1 Where the Police are executing a warrant and/or have a justified reason to forcibly 
enter a property, any damage caused during this process will be recharged to the 
Police, unless a criminal activity is discovered during the entry of the property. In this 
case the Tenant would be recharged for any damage caused in executing the warrant.

9.2 Where the Police or other emergency services undertake a forced entry of the property 
for the health and welfare of any adult occupant(s), then no recharge will be applied 
and the cost will be absorbed by the Council.

9.3 Where the Police or other emergency services undertake a forced entry of the property 
for animal or child welfare reasons then the Tenant will be recharged for any damage 
caused during the entry.

10.0 Misuse of Reporting Repairs

10.1 Genuine emergencies must be reported to ensure Tenants are safe and secure in their 
homes. However, if the repair is not an emergency or not as urgent as they stated, or it 
is for work which is not considered to be the Council’s responsibility, the Council will 
recharge the Tenant any additional costs incurred for making this visit.

10.2 Tenants are referred to the ‘Repairs Handbook’ for further information on the 
definitions of emergency and urgent repairs. Alternatively, further information can be 
found on the Council’s website site at www.middevon.gov.uk .

10.3 Examples of misuse of reporting repairs could include*:

Page 45

http://www.middevon.gov.uk/


Recharges Policy 2018

Page 8 of 14

Recharges Policy V3.2 09/18

 Requesting an emergency repair for a loss of power where trip switches have not 

been reset or appliance check has not been completed

 Requesting an emergency repair for a loss of power where there is no credit on 

the meter

 Requesting an emergency repair for a boiler repair where there is no credit on 

the gas meter

 Requesting an emergency repair for a boiler where the system has been over 

pressurised by the Tenant, Tenant’s family or other member of the household or 

friend/visitor 

 Describing a containable leak as un-containable

 Reporting a blocked waste where the Tenant has not tried clearing it themselves 

with a plunger and the visiting operative is able to clear it with a plunger

 Reporting an emergency repair to a door that is secure and functional

 Requesting an emergency or urgent repair on the basis that there is no 

secondary source of heating or hot water when there is 

 Requesting a repair to a light fitting, where the Tenant has not yet attempted to fit 

a new bulb, tube or starter

 Reporting a faulty lock where the issue is actually a lost key

*Please note that this is not an exhaustive list

10.4 The customer service team or housing technical support team member will issue a 
verbal recharge warning during the repair reporting process in order to allow the 
Tenant to consider their description/request. This will enable to Tenants to avoid 
unnecessary recharges or alternatively employ the services of the ‘Handyman 
Service’.

11.0 ‘No Access’ and ‘Carded’ Appointments

11.1 Where the Tenant has had suitable notice and refused access for the Council or its 
appointed contractor to carry out our statutory obligations, for example the annual gas 
service or cyclical electrical test, the Council will recharge the Tenant for any costs 
incurred with the aborted visit and any subsequent attempts to gain access. This will 
include lost officer time, travel costs, administration fees, and court costs where 
applicable.

11.2 If a Tenant is out or does not answer the door when we visit for a pre-arranged repair 
appointment, the Council will recharge the Tenant for any costs incurred with the 
aborted visited.

12.0 Assignments – Mutual Exchanges

Page 46



Recharges Policy 2018

Page 9 of 14

Recharges Policy V3.2 09/18

12.1 Prior to Tenants mutually exchanging Council properties, the Council will carry out an 
inspection of the property to identify necessary repairs and any Tenant improvements, 
fixtures or fittings, and potential damage which are not the Council’s responsibility and 
also comply with any statutory duties.

12.2 The Council will advise the incoming Tenant that in assigning or surrendering their old 
tenancy they accept the new property in its existing condition. The Tenant will be 
required to sign a disclaimer to this effect that places the costs of works arising from 
the exchange to fall on them as the in-coming Tenant. In particular the Tenant will be 
informed in writing of:

 Any fixtures and fittings installed by the outgoing Tenant which are not the 
Council’s responsibility 

 Defects caused by the outgoing Tenant which are not the Council’s 
responsibility, for example broken door handles or holes in walls

12.3 It will not always be possible for Council Officers to identify every non-standard fixture 
and fitting, poor DIY job or damage to property. The responsibility therefore lies with 
the incoming Tenant to carry out a full inspection with the outgoing Tenant.

12.4 The Council will not accept liability for non-standard items, DIY or damage on the basis 
that it was not apparent during the inspection.

13.0 Other Recharges

13.1 We will recharge the Tenant for any costs incurred by the Council in*: 

 Replacing any lost or broken door entry key fobs or keys and for changing locks 

 Storing Tenant’s belongings following vacating the Council Property

 Removing graffiti and rectifying any damage 

 Relation to vandalism to Council Property, where the Court has prosecuted the 

perpetrator or where the individual has admitted the damage 

 Taking legal action where the Tenant has prevented us from carrying out our 

legal obligations 

 Clearing items from communal areas 

 Damage identified following routine property inspections 

 Removal of trees or hedges which are not the Council’s responsibility, if these 

are deemed to be dangerous or overgrown 

 Tidying of gardens including shrubs and trees that have been neglected or are 

overgrown 

 Wilful damage caused to the solar PV system where it is installed 

Page 47



Recharges Policy 2018

Page 10 of 14

Recharges Policy V3.2 09/18

 Use of the Council’s Handyman scheme to carry out specified works on the 

Tenant’s behalf 

 Damage caused by excessive hoarding of items within the property/land 

 Clearing dog fouling 

 Garage or garage ground rent plot evictions (to include clearance costs and lock 

changes)

 Damage to car parking areas and the removal of unauthorised vehicles 

 Removing abandoned or non-roadworthy vehicles 

 Damage to fences and gates owned by the Council

 Damage to the structure of the building 

 Attending a power failure caused by blown light bulbs or faulty appliances 

 Attending a blocked waste where the Tenant has not tried to clear it themselves, 

or where the cause of the blockage is deemed to be through neglect or misuse 

 Removing rubbish or items left at the property/land on ending a Tenancy 

Agreement

 Damage to communal TV aerials 

 Excessive cleaning required to a property/land due to Neglect 

 Emptying septic tanks and associated costs, such as administration costs

 Unnecessary water damage caused to a Council property where a Tenant has 

refused to turn the stop tap, or refused access to remedy a leak

 Carrying a gas safety check as a result of two or more Tenants wishing to 

undertake a mutual exchange

 Carrying an electrical safety check as a result of two or more Tenants wishing to 

undertake a mutual exchange

 Any other circumstances that cause an unreasonable cost to the Council 

*Please note that this is not an exhaustive list

13.2 Private property owners- may be responsible for payments towards the cost of the 
upkeep of paths, car parking areas, roads, general ground maintenance and the 
upkeep and maintenance of septic tanks. This will be dependent on the clauses 
specified in the private property owner’s conveyance or transfer. Leaseholders will be 
responsible for paying any costs included in their annual service charges.  

13.3 The Council reserves the right to refuse to carry out rechargeable works provided that 
by doing so, we are not putting Tenants at risk. This may be due to previous non-
payment of a debt or where it is unlikely that repayment arrangements will be kept.

Page 48



Recharges Policy 2018

Page 11 of 14

Recharges Policy V3.2 09/18

14.0 Key Component Lifespans

14.1 Two of the key components within a property have a recognised lifespan as laid down 
by the ‘Decent Homes Standard’.

14.2 Under the ‘Component lifetimes and definition of ‘in poor condition’ used in the national 
measurement of the disrepair criterion’ table at Annex A of the Decent Homes 
Standard, a kitchen is deemed to require replacement at30 years and a bathroom at 
40 years. However it is recognised that in reality social landlords and Tenants prefer 
these amenities to be replaced more frequently, to enable them to be maintained at a 
reasonably modern standard.

14.3 Taking this into consideration and in order to have reasonably modern facilities the 
legislation set a replacement date at 20 years for a kitchen and 30 years for a 
bathroom.

14.4 Provided that the Tenant regularly cleans, looks after, and does not subject the 
component to abuse or misuse, there is no reason why these two components should 
not last the lifespan stated.

14.5 Examples of actions that could reduce the lifespan of the component are:

 The use of incorrect cleaning products

 Lack of cleaning

 Excessive water on or around the kitchen units or worktop

 Failure to use a chopping/cutting board, and cutting directly onto the worktop

 Placing hot pans onto the worktop

 Slamming kitchen unit doors and drawers

 Swinging/hanging off kitchen doors and drawers

14.6 Where it is evident that an early replacement is required and this is likely to be due to 
misuse or abuse, the Tenant will be recharged. However due to the lifespan of the 
components this will be done based on the age of the component to be replaced, for 
example:

 Kitchens 1 to 5 years old =  100% of replacement cost

 Kitchens 5 to 10 years old =    75% of replacement cost

 Kitchens 11 to 14 years old =    50% of replacement cost

 Kitchens 15 & 17 years old =    25% of the replacement cost

 Kitchens 18 to 20 years old =  No Charge

 Bathrooms 1 to 7 years old = 100% of replacement cost

 Bathroom 8 to 16 years old =   75% of replacement cost

 Bathroom 17 to 21 years old =   50% of replacement cost

Page 49



Recharges Policy 2018

Page 12 of 14

Recharges Policy V3.2 09/18

 Bathroom 22 to 27 years old =   25% of replacement cost

 Bathroom 28 to 30 years old = No Charge 

15.0 Collection of Charges

15.1 When a rechargeable repair is identified, the Tenant, and/or leaseholder/freeholder will 
be advised of the approximate cost of that repair (a schedule of rates for rechargeable 
repairs is kept by the Repairs team).

15.2 Bulky waste charges can be obtained by contacting the Council’s Customer Services 
team. Tree management charges need to be quoted for individually.

15.3 Any works the Council carry out whether on behalf of a Tenant or due to a Tenant 
refusing to accept liability for a repair that is their responsibility, where the said 
disrepair could constitute a security and/or health and safety matter then it will result in 
a recharge and the normal recovery procedures will be implemented.

15.4 If rechargeable works are carried out to empty properties, garages or garage ground 
rent plots where the Tenant has absconded or moved away, then these debts will be 
pursued using the Council’s former tenant procedures. If all other means of recovery 
have been exhausted, the Council will consider passing this to a debt recovery agent. 
A record of the former Tenant and the outstanding debt will be held against that 
individual for future reference on the Council’s housing management system.

15.5 Tenants can carry out works themselves, and they can also engage a qualified 
specialist if necessary, for example where works relate to heating or lighting. The 
individual or company used must have public liability insurance and be appropriately 
registered for the applicable trade, for example a qualified registered electrician or gas 
engineer.

15.6 All works must be completed to a standard accepted by us. The relevant planning 
permissions, building regulations and asbestos survey results need to be obtained by 
the Tenant at their own cost. Where applicable, the Tenant is required to provide 
certification and to dispose of waste in line with waste regulations.

15.7 Where the Council carry out works, a payment agreement may be completed and 
signed by the Tenant confirming that they are accepting liability for the works. The 
Council will issue a recharge invoice for any works undertaken by us. Payments for 
any work should be made by the Tenant prior to works being carried out unless agreed 
otherwise. Where this is not possible an arrangement plan will be made with the 
Neighbourhood Officer or other relevant Officer.

15.8 Where works are non-statutory or non-urgent, the Council reserves the right to refuse 
to carry out works until full payment is made. If this work is not carried out by the end 
of the tenancy, the rechargeable cost of works will be raised as a void recharge.

15.9 A recharge invoice will be raised even where the Council have no forwarding address, 
for example when a property has been abandoned or a Tenant evicted. Former 

Page 50



Recharges Policy 2018

Page 13 of 14

Recharges Policy V3.2 09/18

tenancy debts will be pursued in line with the Housing Services Income Management 
Policy and the Corporate Debt Policy.

15.10 If there are multiple debts owed by the Tenant and they are unable to pay the recharge 
outright, the payment of rent arrears will remain the priority debt. The recharge sub 
account will be put on hold until the rent account is cleared.

15.11 When necessary and appropriate, the Council will start legal action to recover any 
unpaid sums. Any costs incurred for taking such action will be recharged to the 
Tenant. The Council will not take legal action against Tenants where repayment 
agreements have been made and are being complied with.

15.12 Recharges will only be written off in exceptional circumstances where it is agreed that 
the debt is irrecoverable, in line with the Housing Services Income Management Policy 
and the Corporate Debt Policy.

16.0 Exceptions

16.1 The Council reserves the right to waive the cost of a recharge in exceptional 
circumstances; however this will be at the Council’s discretion.

16.2 If damage is caused to the property as a result of domestic abuse actions or antisocial 
behaviour, the Tenant will be advised to report the incident to the Police to obtain a 
valid crime reference. The Tenant will not be recharged, but the third party, where 
known, will be pursued for the damage. Crime references will be followed up, and if the 
police find that damage was not caused by criminal action, the recharge will remain 
with the Tenant. 

16.3 Also, when considering raising any recharge, the Council will take into account any 
protected characteristics as defined within the Equality Act 2010 of a Tenant. 

17.0 Reducing Occurrences

17.1 We carry out tenancy home checks at our properties to ensure Tenants are looking 
after their homes. Cases of damage and/or neglect will be recorded and followed up. 
We will help Tenants who need support to maintain their tenancy.

17.2 We will provide information about recharges to current and prospective Tenants during 
the sign up process and this is reiterated in the Tenancy Agreement. A copy of this 
policy is available to view on the Council’s website and is also available on request.

17.3 We will promote the availability of low cost home contents insurance to new and 
existing Tenants. Tenants are encouraged to take out household insurance.

18.0 Appeals / Disputes

18.1 Tenants have a right to dispute or appeal a recharge if they feel that the recharge has 
not been raised in line with the recharges policy, or if there is evidence that has not 
been considered.

18.2 Disputes can be dealt with informally by phone, email or letter, should a Tenant wish to 
discuss this with their Neighbourhood Officer or a Repairs Officer.

Page 51



Recharges Policy 2018

Page 14 of 14

Recharges Policy V3.2 09/18

18.3 Disputes can be formally dealt with as a service request.

18.4 First time disputes or appeals cannot be dealt with as formal complaints in the first 
instance.

18.5 Disputes will be considered regardless of whether payment has been made by the 
Tenant.

19.0 Complaints

19.1 Were a Tenant is dissatisfied with the outcome of their response to their formal service 
request then the formal complaints process can be initiated.

19.2 We will deal with any complaints about our service in accordance with our Complaints 
Procedure. Details are available on the Council’s website at www.middevon.gov.uk or 
available by telephone on 01884 255255.

20.0 References

 Environmental Protection Act 1990
 Waste (England and Wales)(Amendment) Regulations 2012
 Equality Act 2010

21.0 Equality and Diversity

21.1 The Housing Service will tailor its services to meet the diverse needs of individuals. 
We foster good relations with people when providing services to eliminate 
discrimination and to promote equality of opportunity.

22.0 Review

22.1 This policy has been written in line with current relevant legislation. The policy will be 
reviewed and revised to reflect any legislation requirements and/or other guidance or 
good practice. The next review of this policy is due September 2022 and every 4 years 
thereafter.

Page 52



Gas Safety Policy Report 2018

HOMES POLICY DEVELOPMENT GROUP    
11 SEPTEMBER 2018             

REVIEW OF BUILDING SERVICES GAS SAFETY POLICY

Cabinet Member:        Cllr Ray Stanley
Responsible Officer:  Mark Baglow, Group Manager Building Services

Reason for Report: To advise members of the revised Gas Safety Policy 

RECOMMENDATION(S): That Cabinet adopts the revised Gas Safety Policy                                    

Relationship to Corporate Plan: The Gas Safety Policy is fundamental to 
delivering the statutory landlords duty as identified within the requirements of the 
Gas Safety (Installation and Use) (Amendment) Regulations 2018. 

Financial Implications: The financial implications will be contained within the 
Housing Revenue Account. It is important to prioritise financial management of this 
account to ensure the all available funds are used to the best effect.

Legal Implications: It will be necessary to ensure that the Gas Safety Policy 
addresses all the legal obligations the Council has as a Landlord for the housing 
estate.

Risk Assessment: The management of circa 3000 homes for some of our most 
vulnerable tenants contains many risks. These risks are managed at a service level. 

1.0 Introduction

1.1 MDDC is landlord to circa 2200 domestic properties [on-gas grid] and must 
deliver the statutory requirements as identified within the Gas Safety (User & 
Installer) Regulations 1998 (GSUIR).

1.2 To deliver this requirement the council employs a gas servicing contractor.

1.3 To ensure the safe and continued operation of gas appliances the existing 3 
Star contract provides for all repairs and maintenance, including a reactive 
service that operates 24/7. 

1.4 The main aim of this review is to reflect changes to industry standards and 
within the 3 Star contract which has been reassigned since the previous policy 
was issued. 

1.5 The previous concerns of the Scrutiny Committee have been taken into 
consideration and hopefully will be alleviated with the contents of this policy 
review

2.0 Proposed Changes to the Policy

Page 53

Agenda Item 7.



Gas Safety Policy Report 2018

2.1 If accepted, the proposal is for the policy to be published for officer use and 
tenant reference. 

2.2 This policy has been better aligned with the Recharges policy. 

2.3 In April 2018 there was a significant amendment to the GSUIR (Regulation 
36). This change relates to the requirement for an inspection to be completed 
within 12 months of the previous visit. These changes are included in full as 
Appendix 2 within the policy document.

2.4 Adoption of [GSUIR] 36A will have beneficial outcomes with regard to the 
continued maintenance of compliance and have a positive impact on the cost 
to deliver this requirement.

2.5 Regulation 36A is also referred to as the MOT style of servicing. As with a car 
MOT, a level of flexibility has been introduced to the timing of the service and 
retention of the LGSR renewal date.

2.6 Landlords may now inspect and reissue the LGSR up to 2 month before the 
current certificate expiry date. Rather than start the access process at 11 
months, MDDC can start the process of requesting access at the 10 month 
point. Provided access is gained and a new certificate issued within those 2 
months, the original expiry date can be retained.

3.0 Tenant Consultation

3.1 The Housing ‘Tenants Together’ group have been consulted on this policy and 
their comments taken into consideration.

4.0 Implementation of the Gas Safety policy

4.1 Implementation of this policy will be supported by action from both housing 
repairs and housing tenancy teams. 

5.0 Financial Context

5.1 To deliver the landlord requirement under the existing policy requires MDDC 
to begin access, servicing and inspection earlier than actually required. 
Adoption of GSUIR 36A would reduce the cost to the council. 

5.2 The existing contract agreement allows for these changes to be made without 
any financial liability even though the outcome is to reduce their income

5.3 Clarification of this policy and strict adherence to it should contribute to further 
improvement of the existing high levels of gas safety within council properties 
without additional resource implications.

Contact for more Information:

Page 54



Gas Safety Policy Report 2018

Mark Baglow, Group Manager Building Services
mbaglow@middevon.gov.uk
Tel 01884 233011

Circulation of the Report: 

Director of Operations
Cabinet Member for Housing
Tenants Together Group
Group Managers
Leadership Team
Homes Policy Development Group

Page 55



This page is intentionally left blank



Gas Safety Policy 2018

Page 1 of 13
Gas Safety Policy V8.0 09/18

Mid Devon District Council

Gas Safety Policy

Policy Number: OBS 001

September 2018

Page 57



Gas Safety Policy 2018

Page 2 of 13
Gas Safety Policy V8.0 09/18

Version Control Sheet

Title:  Gas Safety Policy

Purpose:  To set out the council’s policy for the management of gas safety within domestic 
properties it owns and/or manages.

Owner:  Group Manager Building Services
mbaglow@middevon.gov.uk
Telephone number 01884 233011

Date:  September 2018

Version Number:  V8.0

Status:  Policy Review

Review Frequency: Every 4 years or sooner if required and in accordance with changes in 
good practice and legislation

Next review date:  September 2022

Consultation:  This document was sent out for consultation to the following:

Director of Operations
Cabinet Member for Housing
Tenants Together Group
Group Managers
Leadership Team

Document History:  This document obtained the following approvals:

Title Date Version 
Approved 

Director of Operations 
Cabinet Member for Housing 
Tenants Together Group 12 October 2017 V3

19 July 2018 V8
Group Managers
Leadership Team
Homes Policy Development Group
Cabinet

Page 58

mailto:mbaglow@middevon.gov.uk


Gas Safety Policy 2018

Page 3 of 13
Gas Safety Policy V8.0 09/18

Index

Reference Item Page

  1.0 Introduction 4
  2.0 Scope 4
  3.0 Related Documents 4
  4.0 Definitions 4
  5.0 Legislation 5
  6.0 General Duty 5
  7.0 Servicing and Inspection 5
  8.0 Void Properties 6
  9.0 Mutual Exchanges 6
10.0 Evictions 6
11.0 Record Keeping 6
12.0 Quality Audit 7
13.0 Failure to allow access 7
14.0 Unsafe Situations and RIDDOR 8
15.0 Gas Fires 8
16.0 Carbon Monoxide (CO) Detectors 9
17.0 Gas Cookers and Hobs 9
18.0 Leasehold Properties 9
19.0 Monitoring and Reporting 10

Appendix 1 Summary of additions and revisions

Appendix 2 GSIUR extract – Part F, Regulation 36A

Page 59



Gas Safety Policy 2018

Page 4 of 13
Gas Safety Policy V8.0 09/18

1.0   Introduction

1.1   The failure to adequately maintain, test for gas safety or repair gas pipework, gas 
appliances and associated flues, could result in the following:

 Death or injury to residents

 Destruction or damage to property

 The exposure of Mid Devon District Council to:

o prosecution 
o fines 
o regulatory downgrades
o prosecution and imprisonment of employees

1.2   Mid Devon District Council will check and maintain all of its domestic gas appliances 
so that any risk to tenants, employees, contractors or others are minimised. 

1.3   Mid Devon District Council will check tenant owned gas appliances to ensure they 
are safe but will not service or maintain them.

2.0   Scope

2.1   This policy applies to all domestic properties within the ownership or control of Mid 
Devon District Council in its capacity as Landlord. It sets out how the council will 
address issues related to gas safety and the delivery of its statutory responsibilities.

3.0   Related Documents

 Mid Devon District Council Tenant Compensation Policy

 Mid Devon District Council Recharges Policy

 Mid Devon District Council Tenancy Policy

 Homes & Communities Agency Home Standard

 Homes & Communities Agency Tenancy Standard

4.0   Definitions

4.1   For the purposes of this policy, the following definitions apply:

 CP12 – document used to record the landlord [annual] gas safety inspection 
(LGSR)

 RIDDOR – we have a statutory duty under Reporting of Injuries, Diseases and 
Dangerous Occurrences Regulations 1998 to notify the Health & Safety 
Executive of certain unsafe situations

Page 60



Gas Safety Policy 2018

Page 5 of 13
Gas Safety Policy V8.0 09/18

 Emergency Service Provider (Gas Emergency Services 0800 111 999) - 
responsible for the gas supplies to Mid Devon District Council properties and 
dealing with gas emergencies

 Gas Safe® – responsible for gas safety in Great Britain since 2009 previously 
this role was undertaken by CORGI®

 Gas Safe Technical Bulletins – Gas Safe provides the gas industry with 
technical updates and Health & Safety Executive directives on gas safety 
issues

 IGEM – Institution of Gas Engineers & Managers 

 Open Flue – all gas appliances require an air source to ignite and for cooling. 
An open flue appliance draws this combustion air from the room in which it is 
situated and therefore it is not sealed from this space or room, whereas a 
balanced flue gas appliance (otherwise known as a room sealed appliance) 
draws its combustion air directly from outside and has a much lower risk of 
carbon monoxide entering a habitable space

5.0   Legislation

5.1   This policy is written to ensure that Mid Devon District Council is compliant with the 
following legislation in respect of gas safety as at April 2018:

 Health and Safety at Work Act 1974

 The Gas Safety (Installation and Use) (Amendment) Regulations  2018

 Construction Design & Management Regulations 2015

 Reporting of Injuries, Diseases & Dangerous Occurrences Regulations 2013

6.0   General Duty

6.1   Mid Devon District Council has a duty to ensure that gas heating and hot water 
appliances and gas installation pipework are maintained in a safe condition. All Mid 
Devon District Council owned flues and chimneys into which gas appliances are 
installed are also maintained in safe condition.

7.0   Servicing and inspection

7.1   MDDC will inspect and issue the record in accordance Part F, Regulation 36A of the 
Gas Regulations as amended (April 2018) in order to ensure delivery of our 
requirements as a landlord. A full description of this amended regulation has been 
included in this policy as Appendix 2.

7.2   Mid Devon District Council has entered into a contract with a Gas Servicing 
Contractor, who is a Gas Safe registered company, to meet this obligation using an 
agreed appointment procedure.

7.3   For tenants with Introductory or Flexible Tenancy’s, Mid Devon District Council will 
review the status of tenants who continually / year on year refuse access for the 
purposes of carrying out the annual service. Where appropriate Mid Devon District 

Page 61



Gas Safety Policy 2018

Page 6 of 13
Gas Safety Policy V8.0 09/18

Council will take action to gain possession of the dwelling, or downgrade the 
tenancy status.

7.4   A copy of the CP12 certificate (Landlords Gas Safety Record) will be provided to 
any person in lawful occupation of the property within 28 days of the annual safety 
check.

8.0   Void Properties

8.1   Prior to reissuing a tenancy agreement a gas safety check will be carried out to all 
properties when they are void to ensure the system is safe. At the void stage all gas 
appliances belonging to the previous tenant will be removed, including gas fires. All 
gas cooker points will be plugged / capped to ensure that only a Gas Safe 
registered engineer is able to connect a new cooker.

8.2   All void properties not under active management, including those within the 
Homeless Project portfolio, will have the supply capped at the meter outlet to 
ensure no accidental release of gas.

9.0   Mutual Exchanges

9.1   A gas safety check will be carried out on all Mid Devon District Council properties 
with a gas meter involved in a mutual exchange. The check will be carried out on 
the day the tenants’ move. 

9.2   When the tenant leaves the property the gas meter will be capped. All gas pipework 
not connected to an appliance will be plugged.  No mutual exchange is to take 
place unless a gas safe engineer is present to plug the gas outlets.  It is the 
responsibility of the incoming tenant to arrange and pay for a competent engineer to 
connect their appliances and provide Mid Devon District Council with evidence of 
this.

9.3   Where there is not an immediate transfer between households the supply outlet of 
the meter will also be capped. Engineers will return to uncap, test and issue the 
GSR once the new householder is present.

9.4   Mid Devon District Council will charge the tenant any costs associated with 
organising the necessary safety checks and/or remedial works where:

 A tenant has created an unsafe situation

 A gas appliance has been removed and/or installed without certification

10.0   Evictions

10.1   A gas engineer will attend all evictions and make safe the gas appliances at the 
property by capping the meter at the supply outlet. Depending on the length of time 
before the current Landlords Gas Safety Record (LGSR) expiry and access 
restrictions imposed by Housing tenancy, the engineer may decide to issue a new 
LGSR before the anniversary.

11.0   Record Keeping

Page 62



Gas Safety Policy 2018

Page 7 of 13
Gas Safety Policy V8.0 09/18

11.1   Mid Devon District Council retains electronic copies of the annual gas safety 
certificates for a minimum of two years from the date of the issue to ensure hard 
copies can be produced when required.

11.2   The Gas Servicing Contractor stores all gas safety records including certificates 
electronically. The Gas Servicing Contractor keeps accurate records of all their 
efforts to obtain access to carry out the annual gas safety check. All failed access 
attempts and the dates and times these occurred are passed to Mid Devon District 
Council. This will include records/copies of all letters, appointment cards, telephone 
calls etc. These may be used as part of the evidence pack when seeking access or 
possession via a court order.

12.0   Quality Audit

12.1   Mid Devon District Council’s Gas Database Administrator undertakes a monthly 
desktop 10% audit of CP12s.  An independent auditor carries out an annual post 
works review of all gas servicing and installations; between 5 – 10%.

13.0   Failure to allow access

13.1   Failure by the tenant to allow Mid Devon District Council or the Gas Servicing 
Contractor access into the property to carry out the service will result in Mid Devon 
District Council’s solicitors issuing County Court proceedings to obtain an Injunction 
ordering the tenant to give access to the Gas Servicing Contractor pursuant to the 
Gas Safety (Installation and Use) (Amendment) Regulations 2018.  After court 
action and we receive the Injunction Notice, where a tenant does not provide 
access, we will, if necessary force entry into the property to carry out the safety 
check and leave the property secure.  Where possible we will request that the order 
extend to all request for access and span several years.

13.2   In addition to an injunction Mid Devon District Council will also seek possession of 
the property, which will run concurrently with the injunction.

13.3   The legal process will be stopped only when the CP12 has been completed / 
issued. Under these circumstances it is the intention to ensure that a new LGSR is 
issued no longer than four months after the existing certificate has expired.

13.4   Mid Devon District Council has previously approved the use of Gas Inhibitors 
(Service Interval timers) for interrupting the electrical supply to the boiler so it is 
disabled for a specified period.  Once access has been granted, these devices will 
be fitted to all properties that enter into the ‘No Access’ process.  Mid Devon District 
Council will ensure detailed electronic records of all properties that have been 
installed with a device are kept.

13.5   Mid Devon District Council will always seek to recover the actual cost associated 
with these procedures from the tenant.

13.6   Where follow on works are identified as part of the annual service visit a separate 
appointment will be arranged.  Where the tenant fails to allow access at this 
appointment the contractor will hold open the job for 5 working days to enable the 
householder to contact them and arrange an alternative. Where the tenant fails to 
make contact within the expected timescale the contractor will cancel the works and 
return any parts to the supplier.  In the case of an “At Risk” situation the job will be 
left open until resolved.  Failure to allow access will result in the application of the 
no access process, which may result in legal action. See 14.3 to confirm MDDC 

Page 63



Gas Safety Policy 2018

Page 8 of 13
Gas Safety Policy V8.0 09/18

action in the event that the At Risk appliance belongs to the tenant If the appliance 
is “Immediately Dangerous” it will be isolated.

14.0   Unsafe Situations and RIDDOR 

14.1   Registered gas engineers (under the Gas Safe Register,) must report details of any 
gas appliances or fittings that they consider to be dangerous, to such an extent that 
people could die, lose consciousness or require hospital treatment. To require a 
report under RIDDOR the danger (due to the design, construction, installation, 
modification or servicing of that appliance or fitting) is one likely to cause:

 An accidental leakage of gas

 Incomplete combustion of gas or

 Inadequate removal of products of the combustion of gas

14.2   It is the discovering engineer’s duty to report issues not the client’s. Mid Devon 
District Council’s Gas Administrator will be informed of these incidents and pass the 
details on to the Mid Devon District Council Health & Safety Officer.

14.3   Where an “At Risk” notice has been issued for an unsafe situation involving a tenant 
owned appliance but the tenant has refused to have the appliance switched off, Mid 
Devon District Council will write to the tenant explaining the need for them to carry 
out repairs within 5 working days.  If the tenant fails to carry out these works Mid 
Devon District Council will take action, either to complete the works and recharge 
the tenant or to insist that the appliance is isolated. This may involve Gas 
Emergency or legal action.  Where the appliance is “Immediately Dangerous” is it 
isolated; if a tenant refuses to allow the engineer to isolate the appliance it is treated 
as a Gas Emergency and Wales & West Utilities (WWU) are contacted.  If the 
tenant still refuses the appliance to be isolated WWU may choose to isolate the gas 
supply to the property. This may include excavations in the street, for which the 
tenant will be recharged

15.0   Gas Fires

15.1   Mid Devon District Council’s annual safety checks and servicing will include the 
inspection and testing of tenants’ own gas fires, where they are installed on a flue or 
chimney belonging to a Mid Devon District Council property. It will not include the 
servicing or repair of any tenant owned appliance, which is the tenants’ 
responsibility.

15.2   Mid Devon District Council have properties that contain gas fires which are flued 
through chimneys or that pass through neighbouring flats. In these cases, the Gas 
Safety Check will include an inspection of the other flats sharing the same chimney, 
and the lofts, to ensure that there is no leakage.

15.3   Mid Devon District Council will continue to inspect gas fires until they become 
unserviceable or irreparable.  When this happens, Mid Devon District Council will:

 Disconnect and cap off the appliance so that the gas fire cannot be used.
 Where the gas fire was provided by Mid Devon District Council, we will 

remove it and make good.

Page 64



Gas Safety Policy 2018

Page 9 of 13
Gas Safety Policy V8.0 09/18

 Where the gas fire belongs to the tenant, we will leave this disconnected and 
in place; Mid Devon District Council are not responsible for the service and 
repair of any tenant owned appliance.

 Mid Devon District Council will not install a replacement gas fire, except 
where the gas fire is the primary source of heating. However our preference 
will always be to install a full gas central heating system.

15.4   If Mid Devon District Council is unable to gain access to neighbouring properties to 
inspect the entire flue length we are legally bound under the Gas Safety 
(Installation and Use) (Amendment) Regulations 2018, to leave the gas fire 
disconnected, even if the gas fire is sound. If after subsequent attempts access has 
not been achieved to complete the flue inspection, we will:

 Provide a temporary alternative form of heating, where the gas fire is the  
primary source of heating.

 Where the gas fire is either the primary or the secondary source of heating 
and was provided by Mid Devon District Council, we will remove it and make 
good.  We will not install a replacement gas fire.

 Where the gas fire belongs to the tenant, Mid Devon District Council will leave 
it disconnected and in place, although we may remove it if the tenant agrees 
to pay for this.

15.5   Gas fires left behind when a tenant vacates a property will be removed regardless 
of age and condition.

16.0   Carbon Monoxide (CO) Detectors

16.1   It is not yet a general legal requirement to install CO detectors in social housing 
properties where gas is present. However, Mid Devon District Council will install 
hard-wired carbon monoxide detector(s) to all rooms that contain a Mid Devon 
District Council gas appliance and any room where a flue passes through.

17.0   Gas cookers and hobs

17.1   Where there is a gas cooker/hob in the property (regardless of ownership), the 
connection to the appliance up to the gas controls is included in the Gas Safety 
Check. The engineer will also inspect the overall condition and ensure all safety 
features operate effectively.

17.2   Where the gas cooker has a lid or cover, a check is made that the automatic gas 
shut off mechanism works when this is closed. If the appliance belongs to the 
tenant the check will not include a service of the cooker, since this is the tenant’s 
responsibility.

18.0   Leasehold properties

18.1   Each year during Gas Safety week (September) the Gas Administrator will write to 
all leasehold flats, regardless of occupation by the leaseholder or a sublet tenant, to 
make them aware of the importance of gas safety and the dangers of carbon 
monoxide. This will include information for both tenants and landlords to ensure that 

Page 65



Gas Safety Policy 2018

Page 10 of 13
Gas Safety Policy V8.0 09/18

both understand the statutory requirements. It will also serve as a general reminder 
to private residents to consider the consequences of poorly maintained gas 
appliances and the potentially lethal outcomes.  The letter will contain a self-
addressed return envelope to allow them to respond.

19.0   Monitoring and reporting

19.1   We regularly monitor our performance on gas servicing and provide regular updates 
on the following performance indicators:

 Properties in receipt of a valid CP12 100%

 Tenant satisfaction with gas servicing   95%

19.2   We monitor tenant feedback and satisfaction levels for servicing via survey 
questionnaires.

19.3   Where MDDC officers visit properties on gas safety related issues an All 
Attendance Notes will be generated. This will be clearly marked with the date, time 
and address of the contact. A concise record of the action and outcome should be 
recorded. Notes should be signed. A hand written version is acceptable. The 
original copy should be forwarded to the Gas Administrator.

19.4   Any information about the tenant that may be useful or affect the method in which 
the authority responds to the no access status should be made available as soon as 
it comes to light.

Page 66



Gas Safety Policy 2018

Page 11 of 13
Gas Safety Policy V8.0 09/18

Appendix 1 – Summary of additions and revisions

Policy Ref Description Date

7.3 Inclusion of suggested additional sanction(s). v.8.0 Jul’ 
18

8.1
Confirmation that all gas cooker points in void properties will be 
plugged/capped to ensure that only a Gas Safe registered engineer can 
subsequently install a cooker. 

v.8.0 Jul’ 
18

8.2 Clarification that the gas meter in all void properties, including those in the 
Homeless Project portfolio, will be capped if left unoccupied.

v.8.0 Jul’ 
18

9.2 Clarification that properties will have the gas meter capped during the 
MEX process whenever there is a void period.

v.8.0 Jul’ 
18

9.4 Inclusion of condition to cater for the introduction of charges to tenants 
where they have created a potentially unsafe gas installation

v.8.0 Jul’ 
18

10.1 Inserted confirmation that an engineer will attend all evictions [on gas grid] 
and make safe. 

v.8.0 Jul’ 
18

12.1 Correction of the percentage monthly audit to be carried out by the Gas 
Administrator.

v.8.0 Jul’ 
18

13.5

Confirmation that all costs incurred as a result of a household being 
placed on the No Access register, up to and including legal costs 
associated with securing an injunction will be reclaimed as per the 
Recharges policy.

v.8.0 Jul’ 
18

14.0 Updates to the RIDDOR procedure to reflect changes in national policy v.8.0 Jul’ 
18

14.3 Clarification of process to be followed in the event that a tenant owned 
appliance is identified as ‘At Risk’ as per TB001, Edition 7a

v.8.0 Jul’ 
18

15.5 Confirmation that all gas fires will be removed at the void stage regardless 
of age and condition.

v.8.0 Jul’ 
18

18.1 Inclusion of provision to raise awareness of gas safety to leaseholders 
during Gas safety week (Held in September each year).

v.8.0 Jul’ 
18

19.0
Removal of KPI relating to applications for injunctions. This is not a 
current KPI. Also, injunctions form a necessary part of the No Access 
procedure.

v.8.0 Jul’ 
18

Page 67



Gas Safety Policy 2018

Page 12 of 13
Gas Safety Policy V8.0 09/18

Appendix 2

Safety in the installation and use of gas systems 
and appliances 

Gas Safety (Installation and Use) (Amendment) Regulations 2018 

Regulation 36A Determination of date when next safety check is due under regulation 
36(3) 

Summary of regulation 36A 
This regulation sets out when the next safety check must be completed 
in order to retain the existing deadline date. It also sets out a one-off 
flexibility that landlords can use to align the date of an appliance check 
with that of other appliances at the same premises. 

(1) Where a safety check of an appliance or a flue made in accordance with regulation 36(3)(a) or (b) 
is or was completed within the period of 2 months ending with the deadline date, that check is to be 
treated for the purposes of regulation 36(3)(a) and (b) as having been made on the deadline date. 

(2) Subject to paragraph (3), the landlord may ensure that an appliance or flue is checked for safety 
within the 2 month period beginning with the deadline date, instead of checking it within the 12 month 
period ending with that date. 

(3) The discretion conferred by paragraph (2) may be exercised – 

(a) only once in relation to each appliance or flue in the relevant premises; and 
(b) only in order to align the deadline date in relation to the next safety check of that appliance or flue 
with the deadline date in relation to the next safety check of any other appliance or flue in the same 
relevant premises. 

4) In this regulation “the deadline date”, in relation to a safety check for an appliance or flue, means 
the last day of the 12 month period within which the check is or was required to be made under 
regulation 36(3) (a) or (b).1 

304 The changes set out in regulation 36A aim to offer more flexibility in the gas safety checking 
regime – however, it is not compulsory for landlords to take advantage of this change. If they prefer, 
landlords can continue with their current regime of gas safety checking, as long as it meets the legal 
minimum requirements as set out in regulation 36. 

305 With the introduction of the new regulation 36A from 6 April 2018 landlords will be able to have 
gas safety checks carried out any time from 10 to 12 calendar months after the previous check but 
still retain the original deadline date as if the check had been carried out exactly 12 months after the 
previous check 

Record keeping 
306 To benefit from this new flexibility and retain the deadline date, the landlord will have to 
demonstrate that they have complied with the law and carried out the gas safety checks within the 
required timescales. The record will need to be kept until two further gas safety checks have been 
carried out. 

307 Where a landlord cannot provide the necessary audit trail/documentation, including the two 
previous gas safety records, the expiry date of the current gas safety check will be taken as 12 
months from the date of the last gas safety check. 

Page 68



Gas Safety Policy 2018

Page 13 of 13
Gas Safety Policy V8.0 09/18

308 This demonstration that they have complied with the law may take the form of a computerised 
database or a paper file or other means as long as there are records showing the dates of previous 
gas safety checks, the date of the latest check, and the preserved deadline date (resetting this as and 
when necessary – see section below on ‘resetting the clock’), along with copies of the landlord’s gas 
safety records from the previous two years. 

309 There is no legal requirement to include: (a) an expiry date of the landlord’s gas safety record; or 
(b) the earliest date you can have your next gas safety check (and retain the deadline date) 

on the gas safety records, but landlords may find it helpful to include these details to: 

(a) ensure they can demonstrate the necessary audit trail to show that consecutive gas safety checks 
have been carried out in the prescribed 10–12-month window, thereby retaining the deadline date; 
(b) give tenants confidence and clarity over the period of validity of the gas safety record. 

310 Even if the engineers include this information on the gas safety records, the legal duty remains 
with the landlord to be able to demonstrate that gas safety checks have been made within the 
required timescales. 

Resetting the clock 
Gas safety check carried out less than 10 months since the previous check 
311 Where a gas safety check is carried out at less than 10 months after the previous gas safety 
check, this will have the effect of ‘resetting the clock’ and the deadline date will now be 12 months 
from the date of this latest check. 

Gas safety check carried out after the preserved deadline date 
312 Where the property remains tenanted it is an offence to have no current gas safety check record 
in place. 

Gas safety check carried out after the preserved deadline date (ie where the property was 
vacant when the previous gas safety check expired) 
313 Where a gas safety check is carried out more than 12 months after the previous gas safety 
check, this will have the effect of ‘resetting the clock’ and the new deadline date will be 12 months 
from the date of this later gas safety check. 

One-off flexibility to bring dates of safety checks on different gas appliances in the same 
premises back into line 
314 There is a one-off flexibility to allow landlords to realign the date of the annual gas safety check 
on an appliance with other appliances in a property. It can only be applied once to each appliance, 
and the maximum amount of time that the gas safety check for the appliance can be extended is 2 
months. For example, if an appliance is found to be faulty and is replaced at the time of the actual 
check, the annual gas safety check on the new appliance can take place for the first time at the same 
time as the next annual gas safety check on any other appliances in the same property. 

Page 69



This page is intentionally left blank



HOMES PDG    
11 SEPTEMBER 2018

REVIEW OF HOUSING SERVICE NEIGHBOURHOOD MANAGEMENT POLICY

Cabinet Member(s): Councillor Ray Stanley
Responsible Officer: Mrs Claire Fry, Group Manager for Housing 

Reason for Report: The Housing Services Neighbourhood Management Policy is 
due for review during 2018 and the revised draft contains a number of changes 
regarding the distribution of communal keys, the use of communal gardens and 
responsibility for the maintenance of gardens associated with tenancies.  There is a 
regulatory requirement to have a policy and the suggested amendments should 
reinforce our commitment to keeping our neighbourhoods and our communal areas 
clean and safe.

RECOMMENDATION: The Homes PDG is asked to agree the revised policy 
relating to neighbourhood management and to recommend to Cabinet that it is 
adopted.  

Relationship to Corporate Plan: The efficient and effective management of our 
housing stock is a priority within the corporate plan and this policy supports work to 
achieve this and to ensure compliance with the regulatory framework for social 
housing. 

Financial Implications: There are budgets in the Housing Revenue Account to 
support effective neighbourhood management.  This includes budgets for repairs 
and maintenance, improvements, the management of anti-social behaviour and 
adequate staffing to ensure that our statutory and regulatory obligations are met. 

Legal Implications: The Council has a duty of care and has statutory obligations 
relating to health and safety; in addition, the Neighbourhood & Community Standard 
within the regulatory framework for social housing, operated by the Regulator for 
Social Housing, requires registered providers (RPs), such as the Council, to keep the 
neighbourhood and communal areas associated with the homes that they own clean 
and safe.  It also contains a specific expectation that RPs will have a policy for 
maintaining and improving the neighbourhoods associated with their homes.    

Risk Assessment: Failure to have a neighbourhood management policy in place 
would put the Council in breach of the regulatory framework.  Failure to have 
adequate arrangements in place for housing management could result in the Council 
failing to meet its statutory and contractual obligations

Equality Impact Assessment: The Housing Service collects data on the diversity of 
tenants and endeavours to tailor services to meet the needs of all tenants.  Our 
housing estates must be accessible to those with disabilities and we have in place a 
regular schedule of inspections to ensure that all defects are identified and rectified 
as soon as possible. Information provided by the Housing Service is available in 
alternative formats, upon request, in order to ensure that all those living on our 
estates understand the rights and responsibilities of the Council as a landlord, and 
tenants and other residents, individually.  Older tenants may find it difficult to 

Page 71

Agenda Item 8.



maintain their gardens and the Neighbourhood team will endeavour to signpost 
those affected to voluntary organisations which may be able to provide help. 

1.0 INTRODUCTION

1.1 It is important for the Housing Service to have clearly defined policies in place 
to help staff to understand their responsibilities.  In this way, they have a clear 
point of reference and do not need to seek guidance from more senior 
Officers. 

1.2 The Homes & Communities Agency requires the Council to have a 
neighbourhood management policy.  

1.3 The revision of the existing policy includes further definition of responsibilities 
to ensure that all stakeholders are clear about accountabilities. 

1.4 Keeping our estates clean and safe is a priority as well as a regulatory 
requirement and some of the new provisions within the revised draft policy 
have been designed to address issues which have been identified as hazards 
in the past; and to reduce risk. 

1.5 In addition, the revised draft policy describes arrangements for periodic 
inspections of estates, known as Neighbourhood Walkabouts, and regular 
inspections of communal areas, in order to ensure that Officers, tenants and 
other stakeholders, including leaseholders, private tenants and owner 
occupiers, are all clear about how the Council will manage its estates and take 
a pro-active stance towards housing management.

2.0 CHANGES TO THE EXISTING POLICY

2.1 It was not possible to provide one document showing tracked changes to the 
existing neighbourhood management policy on the basis that the original had 
been saved on a different template to the one now in use; in the interests of 
consistency, all policies now need to be written on a revised corporate 
template.  However, for the purposes of comparison, a link to the existing 
policy which is held on the housing pages of the Council’s website has been 
included at the end of this report.

2.2 A number of changes have been made in the revised draft of the policy and 
this report contains information on these. 

2.3 It is important to maintain the security of our blocks of flats.  For this reason, 
the revised draft policy states that additional keys for communal doors will not 
be provided to residents as a matter of routine; or key codes if there is a door 
entry system.   

2.4 However, replacement keys will be available and the cost of providing these 
will be recharge to the tenant.

2.5 The revised draft policy states that permission for community activities such 
as garden clubs, community social events and wildlife gardens must be 

Page 72



sought.  Housing Officers realise that such initiatives can help to support 
community cohesion and tenancy sustainability.  However, it is important that 
the Housing Service understands what is happening on our estates and is 
able to monitor the impact.  Any such activity should be open to all those living 
in the area and not just for the selected few; therefore we need to ensure that 
any suggested projects or events are inclusive.  There are also legal and 
regulatory obligations relating to consultation around the use of communal 
areas and, for this reason, the policy provides for the Council having the final 
decision relating to the use of communal gardens should there be a dispute 
between those who may be affected by any activity in one. 

2.6 The mitigation of risk is also a key consideration here.  For this reason, the 
revised draft policy states that the Council will not be held liable for any injury 
which may occur at an event organised by a private individual.  It also draws 
attention to the fact that public liability insurance may be required for any 
community events organised by private individuals.  The Council has its own 
insurance which applies if Officers organise an event following consultation 
with residents. 

2.7 Charities are required to provide relevant documentation proving that they 
have appropriate insurance cover if they are planning an event and seeking 
permission to hold it on communal land belonging to the Housing Service.  

2.8 Residents are able to have barbeques in accordance with the fire safety in 
communal areas policy.  The revised draft policy relating to neighbourhood 
management goes further and states that these must be located away from 
the property and its boundaries to minimise the risk of damage; and that other 
residents must be consulted to minimise the risk of complaints relating to anti-
social behaviour involving nuisance and disturbance.  Furthermore, the policy 
states that barbeques must not be placed directly on the ground. 
 

2.9 External Christmas decorations will not be permitted in accordance with the 
policy.  In the past, Neighbourhood Officers have identified hazards arising 
from the placing of such decorations in communal gardens.  These have 
included trip hazards, fire hazards arising from the use of domestic extension 
leads not suitable for external use and overloading of sockets on such 
extension leads.  Whilst this provision may seem very draconian to some 
stakeholders, the Housing Service has obligations relating to health and 
safety which are likely to be strengthened in the near future following events 
at Grenfell Tower last year.  It is expected that the Housing Green Paper due 
to be published during July 2018 will provide more information about the new 
responsibilities.
 

2.10 The revised draft policy contains several provisions relating to toys.  These 
can be dangerous if those using them are not properly supervised.  In 
addition, they can impede routine grounds maintenance work if they are left in 
situ overnight and for longer periods.  Their use also has a potential to cause 
nuisance and annoyance to neighbours.  For this reason, it is proposed that 
the use of large toys is prohibited in communal gardens; and that the Housing 
Services does not permit any toys being kept outside in such areas. 

Page 73



2.11 Small toys will be allowed if their use is supervised and if they are not kept in 
the garden overnight or for longer.
 

2.12 It should be noted that the revised draft policy states that children must be 
supervised at all times when playing in communal gardens; and also clarifies 
the position regarding liability relating to any injury resulting from the use of 
toys belonging to tenants which have been placed on communal land.  It 
states that the Council will not be liable.  

2.13 The revised draft policy also states that residents will not be given permission 
to erect a shed on communal land; this provision has been added for 
management reasons.  The Housing Service needs to have clear and 
transparent procedures relating to the granting of permissions and the 
inclusion of this clause will give Neighbourhood Officers a point of reference 
when discussing such matters with tenants. 

2.14 The decision not to permit the erection of sheds in communal areas is justified 
on numerous grounds. For example, there can be issues relating to grounds 
maintenance if a shed provided for the sole use of one resident is located in a 
communal garden.  

2.15 Furthermore, the addition of one or more sheds could cause conflict; there 
may not be enough room available to allow for every existing or future 
resident at a scheme to have their own shed.  Communal land must also be 
protected for the use of all residents and not just for specific residents; and the 
Housing Service needs to treat everyone in the same way.  Any permission 
granted to one tenant but refused to another on the grounds that there is not 
enough room could result in accusations of favouritism based on a subjective 
ground.  There could also be issues relating to ownership of land if permission 
is granted for one or more individuals to have sole use of a particular area, 
which could have implications for the future use of that land. 

2.16 The revised draft policy also states that the person responsible will be liable 
for any damage caused to communal areas.  This makes it clear that the 
Housing Service will take a proactive approach to the management of our 
estates and will look to recover the costs of making good any damage, 
whether it was caused accidentally or intentionally, from those who have 
caused it.
 

2.17 The revised draft policy also reflects the provisions contained within our 
standard tenancy agreement with regard to the maintenance of gardens.  
Tenants with gardens associated with their tenancies are responsible for 
maintaining them in good order.  Tenants are responsible for keeping plants, 
trees, boundary hedges or large shrubs neat and tidy; and for ensuring that 
they do not become dangerous or overgrown, cause nuisance to neighbours 
or damage to property.  The inclusion of reference to this in the revised draft 
policy reinforces our approach to estate management and the advice currently 
given to tenants generally.  In all matters relating to garden maintenance 
tenants should refer to their tenancy in order to ensure that decision making is 
clear and transparent; and to ensure consistency.  In this way, we can ensure 
that the policy is fair and that there can be no allegations of favouritism.        

Page 74



3.0 CONSULTATION

3.1 The Neighbourhood and Community Standard states that: “Registered 
providers shall consult with tenants in developing a published policy for 
maintaining and improving the neighbourhoods associated with their homes. 
This applies where the registered provider has a responsibility (either 
exclusively or in part) for the condition of that neighbourhood. The policy shall 
include any communal areas associated with the registered provider’s 
homes”.

3.2 This policy was emailed to members of the Tenants Together for comment 
and any feedback will be relayed to the PDG at the meeting. 

4.0 DECISION 

4.1 Members are asked to approve the revised policy and to recommend to the 
Cabinet that it is adopted.

Contact for more Information: Mrs Claire Fry, Group Manager for Housing.  Tel: 
01884 234920 cfry@middevon.gov.uk 

Circulation of the Report: Councillor Ray Stanley, Leadership Team 

List of Background Papers: 
https://www.middevon.gov.uk/media/85031/neighbourhood-management-policy.pdf

Page 75

https://www.middevon.gov.uk/media/85031/neighbourhood-management-policy.pdf


This page is intentionally left blank



Mid Devon District Council

Neighbourhood Management Policy 

Policy Number: HSG{number}

{HSG – Housing & Property Services}

September 2018

Page 77



Neighbourhood Management Policy

Neighbourhood Management Policy /13-Sep-18 Page 2

Version Control Sheet

Title: Neighbourhood Management Policy

Purpose: To identify how we manage our neighbourhoods and how this work contributes 
towards a proactive housing management service. 

Owner: Group Manager for Housing  
cfry@middevon.gov.uk
Telephone number 01884 224920

Date:  September 2018

Version Number: v3

Status: DRAFT

Review Frequency: Every 4 years or sooner if required and in accordance with relevant 
statutory and regulatory frameworks and/ or good practice.

Next review date:  September 2022

Consultation This document was sent out for consultation to the following:
Cabinet Member

Document History
This document obtained the following approvals.

Title Date Version 
Approved 

Leadership Team* 28 August 2018 V3
Tenants Together By email V3
PDG* 11 September 2018 V3
Cabinet* 27 September 2018 V3

*- Delete if not applicable

Page 78

mailto:cfry@middevon.gov.uk


Neighbourhood Management Policy

Neighbourhood Management Policy /13-Sep-18 Page 3

1. Introduction

Mid Devon District Council (MDDC) understands the importance of ensuring that tenants 
have quiet enjoyment of their homes, which are in a safe, clean and secure environment that 
they can take pride in. 

2. Scope

This policy applies to our estates and sets out how the Housing Service will work with 
tenants and other residents to keep them as clean and tidy as possible. 

3. Related Documents

3.1. MDDC tenancy agreements 
3.2. Housing service recharges policy
3.3. Housing service garage management policy
3.4. Housing service fire risks in communal areas policy
3.5. Housing service car parking management policy
3.6. Housing service improvements to Council properties policy 
3.7. Housing Service tenant involvement strategy 
3.8. Housing Service tenant involvement policy
3.9. Housing Service leasehold management policy 

4. Responsibilities 

In implementing this policy, the Council’s overall objectives are to: 

 Identify areas in need of attention or improvement and undertake measures to 
resolve them

 Enable tenants to get involved with neighbourhood management by them 
suggesting improvements and initiatives to prevent anti-social behaviour

 Ensure tenants and private occupiers are made aware of, and accept, their 
responsibilities regarding estate management.

In this policy, the term “tenant” is used to describe both tenants and leaseholders.

Tenants must seek permission if they wish to install hanging structures such as hanging 
baskets or bird feeders in communal areas, especially those in blocks of flats; these must be 
positioned in such a way as to avoid damage to the structure of the building.  If they are to 
be installed in blocks of flats, other tenants living on lower levels should be consulted, where 
possible, and there should be evidence of this before permission will be given.  Tenants 
must be mindful of the impact of such items on other people living within the scheme.  
Tenants will need to take account of the conditions of their tenancy or lease agreement 
when seeking permission and if, at any time, the neighbourhood officer identifies a breach of 
tenancy relating to the cultivation of plants in hanging baskets, then permission will be 
withdrawn.

The housing service is committed to the provision of a safe and secure environment for our 
tenants.  Additional keys for main entry doors to tenants resident in blocks of flats will not be 
provided although replacement keys may be available in appropriate circumstances.  If 
replacement keys are required, any costs relating to this will be recharged to the tenant.  
This is to ensure that security is maintained.  For the same reason, communal key codes in 
blocks where there is a door entry system will only be given to employees and contractors to 
enable them to carry out their duties.  

Page 79



Neighbourhood Management Policy

Neighbourhood Management Policy /13-Sep-18 Page 4

Grassed areas located on communal land on an estate are provided as an amenity for the 
benefit of all tenants.  Therefore, tenants should seek permission regarding the use of 
external communal areas; this is particularly important if there is a proposal to establish a 
gardening club, or to create a wildlife garden, or to run a community social event, for 
example.  It should be noted that public liability insurance may be required in relation to a 
community social event if it is organised by private individuals and not the housing service.  
The Council cannot be held liable for any damage or injuries which may occur at such an 
event which has been organised by private individuals.  Anyone planning such an event is 
advised to seek advice from their neighbourhood officer before requesting permission.

The housing service may consider allowing a charity to hold an event on communal land but 
a written agreement will be required indemnifying the Council in the event of any claims.  
Decisions made regarding such events will take account of all relevant factors and the 
housing service will require sight of all relevant insurance and other documents in these 
circumstances. 
      
Barbecues are allowed in communal gardens provided they are not placed directly on the 
ground (a stand should be used).  They must not prevent the use of the garden by other 
tenants.  They must be located a safe distance away from the property and its boundaries 
during use and other residents will need to be consulted so as not to cause a nuisance or 
annoyance.  If the Council considers any items have been used which pose a hazard, 
permission for the use of barbeques in the garden will be withdrawn.  Nothing else which 
may pose a fire risk or is combustible is allowed in communal gardens and this includes 
external Christmas decorations. 

Large toys such as trampolines or slides may not be kept by residents in communal gardens 
but those with children may bring small toys into these areas provided they supervise the 
use of such items.  This is in order to minimise the risk of injury arising due to inappropriate 
use.  The Council cannot be held liable for any injuries arising from the use of such toys 
which may include (but is not limited to) small paddling pools, small tricycles, scooters and 
wheeled items.  These items must be removed at the end of the day as failure to do so could 
prevent our contractor from undertaking necessary grounds maintenance work in the 
garden.

Children playing in communal gardens must be supervised by an adult at all times.  

Individual tenants will not be permitted to erect their own sheds in communal areas.  Should 
storage be an issue, tenants should seek advice from the neighbourhood team.  

Those responsible for any damage which arises in communal areas whether or not it was 
accidental or deliberate, will be liable for the costs of making good this damage and 
recharged.

The housing service is required to consult all residents affected regarding a major change in 
the use of the communal area. We will make the final decision if there is any dispute 
regarding the use of communal space where agreement cannot be reached locally.  Any 
such decisions will take into account legal obligations, policy, local feedback and any other 
considerations which may be relevant. 

5. Gardens

In accordance with their contractual obligations, tenants with gardens associated with their 
tenancy are responsible for maintaining those gardens in a clean and tidy condition.  

Page 80



Neighbourhood Management Policy

Neighbourhood Management Policy /13-Sep-18 Page 5

In particular, they must ensure that plants, trees, boundary hedges or large shrubs do not 
become dangerous or overgrown, cause nuisance to neighbours or damage to any property.  
If a tenant fails to comply with their conditions of tenancy or leasehold agreement, the 
housing service may undertake work to rectify the tenancy breach and recharge the full cost 
of this to the tenant. 

6. Neighbourhood Areas 

The housing service has neighbourhood officers who are responsible for estate 
management on specific geographical areas within the District’s boundaries.  Information 
regarding neighbourhood areas is available on our website, which can be found at 
https://www.middevon.gov.uk/residents/housing/council-housing/your-neighbourhood/

Where tenants do not have internet access, they are able to contact the neighbourhood 
team for more information by telephoning 01884 255255.

Any queries regarding the neighbourhood management of our estates should be directed to 
the neighbourhood officer for that particular geographical area.

7. Neighbourhood Walkabouts

Tenants, councillors (both district and parish) and other agencies such as the police are 
welcome to join neighbourhood officers when an estate in their area is inspected to raise 
any concerns and share ideas for improvement.  A schedule of neighbourhood walkabouts 
is available on our website.

Neighbourhood walkabouts enable neighbourhood officers to identify issues surrounding the 
following: 

 Breaches of tenancy
 Grounds maintenance issues, including hedges, trees and boundaries, 

grassed/planted areas
 Repairs 
 Any health and safety issues; for example, any deterioration to pathways that could 

be trip hazards
 Communal areas – internal and external 
 Car parks and garages 
 Security issues, including fencing/ boundaries, security doors
 Tenancy issues, including property condition, property improvements, untidy 

gardens, pets
 Anti-social behaviour, including graffiti/vandalism, drugs, abandoned cars, fly-tipping

This is not an exhaustive list.  

Where concerns are identified, the tenant(s) to which the issue relates will be contacted and, 
if applicable, will be advised to remedy the issue.  If necessary, other agencies will also be 
contacted.  

In addition to ad hoc visits undertaken by neighbourhood officers, neighbourhood 
walkabouts are undertaken at a minimum of every six months.

Page 81

https://www.middevon.gov.uk/residents/housing/council-housing/your-neighbourhood/


Neighbourhood Management Policy

Neighbourhood Management Policy /13-Sep-18 Page 6

8. Communal Inspections

In addition to neighbourhood walkabouts, inspections of communal areas are undertaken on 
a monthly basis by neighbourhood officers where any issues are identified and acted upon.  

As stated in the fire risk in communal areas policy, the housing caretaker also inspects 
communal areas and fire risk assessments are completed on a regular basis.

Checklists are completed in order to identify if there are any areas of concern for both 
internal and external communal areas in order for these to be followed up.  This includes 
communal areas being free from items which are not permitted to be there and identifying 
slip, trip and fire hazards.  

9. Environmental Budget 

The housing service has an allocated annual environmental improvement fund to help 
improve the security and general appearance of our estates.

Tenants are encouraged to offer suggestions to the housing service for ideas of work/ 
projects to be carried out and for which this fund can be used. 

Page 82



Scrutiny Committee
10 September 2018                                                           

Review of District wide Local Improvement Schemes

Cabinet Member: Cllr Ray Stanley
Responsible Officer: Andrew Jarrett, Deputy Chief Executive (S151)

Reason for Report:  To provide Members with a report on historic District-wide 
Local Improvements Schemes and their associated liability.  

RECOMMENDATION: To recommend to Cabinet that the work procedure 
detailed in item 4.0 is implemented.  

Relationship to Corporate Plan: All property assets need to be linked to the 
delivery, vision and priorities of the Council. The way that the Council manages its 
land and property assets has a direct impact on the quality of services delivered as 
well as maximising the value derived from our property holdings for the on-going 
contribution in balancing the Councils budgets.  

Financial Implications: The use of s106 monies should be investigated for the 
essential upgrade or replacement of historic Local Improvement Scheme assets, 
sinking funds were not established. 

Legal Implications: A local authority has certain obligations in respect of land 
which it owns or manages.  It may also have ongoing maintenance obligations for 
equipment it has installed on third party land.  However, the precise position will 
depend on the circumstances of each case, including whether liability has been 
transferred to another.  Unless specifically provided, whether by agreement or by 
law, an obligation to maintain is not to be read as an obligation to replace or 
improve.  Each case will have to be considered carefully, as indicated by the 
proposed procedure. 

Risk Assessment: Risk assessments will need to be carried out on individual Local 
Improvement Schemes to mitigate risks to the Council and to inform our insurance 
provider.

Equality Impact Assessment: To form part of the risk assessment process.  

1.0 Introduction

1.1 The report follows the Scrutiny Committee meeting dated 18 June 2018 and 
the request from Cllr J Roach to review the maintenance implications on 
historic Local Improvement Schemes which were commissioned by Mid Devon 
District Council between 2003 and 2004. The ownership of the footpath 
lighting scheme at Silverdale in Silverton, discussed at the Committee, has 
been investigated and it has revealed that it is not within the Council’s 
ownership and is owned privately by two separate persons. In addition, the 
condition of the footpath is inspected by Devon County Council on a three 
year cycle. 

Page 83

Agenda Item 9.



1.2 The light fittings on the footpath in Silverton are an example of where the 
Council committed Capital expenditure for a Local Improvement Scheme on 
land that is not within the ownership of the Council, the light fittings have now 
reached end of life, requiring circa £6k to replace the light fittings and a sinking 
fund was not established as part of the Capital scheme. The 2018-19 financial 
budgets for maintenance is not able to meet this level of expenditure. Property 
Service are not currently aware of any legal obligation to replace the lighting 
and equipment should be considered for removal once it becomes beyond 
repair for safety reasons. 

2.0      Background 

2.1 In 2003 a working group provided a report to the Community Services 
Committee on a number of projects that became part of the Capital 
Programme. 

2.2 The list of schemes are under review by the Property Services team to confirm 
which of the 95 were completed and included an initial assessment on which 
of the 95 schemes could expose the Council to any risk. 

2.3 The corporate risk register will be updated where Legal and Property Services 
consider that the Council has on going liability for maintenance and safety 
inspections. Budget is not available for essential maintenance on historic 
Local Improvement Schemes. 

2.4 S106 monies could and will be considered for the upgrade or replacement of 
end of life assets on Local Improvement Schemes subject to consultation with 
Ward Members and Town and Parish Councils. 

3.0      Asset Management

3.1 The Asset Management and Capital Strategy Plan 2016-2020 (AMP) details 
how the Council manages our Estate and describes how we shall treat all 
properties as a Council asset and how they will be managed strategically by 
the Property Services Team. The AMP places our Property Assets at the 
centre of Council decision-making, acknowledging the importance and 
financial value. Therefore, it is important that the historic Local Improvement 
Schemes are recorded onto the Land Management database to ensure that 
officers are aware of the assets and are managed in line with the AMP and 
associated condition surveys are maintained.  The Capital Strategy Asset 
Group (CSAG) will also be made aware of the historic schemes.  

3.2 Where an historic asset is retained, the asset will need to be identified for 
managed decline through to its removal at the end of its life expectancy.      

Page 84



4.0       Work Procedure 

4.1 It is now necessary for Property Services to implement a work procedure to 
protect the Council and to manage any risk. This procedure will consider our 
Asset Management Plan and includes the following action:

4.1.1 To determine if the improvement scheme is on Council land and to update the 
ownership layer on the land management database (CAPS). 

4.1.2 To work with Legal Services to determine liability.

4.1.3 Where the Council has liability, arrange site inspections and inform other 
services if applicable and record. 

4.1.4 To provide the Finance team with the details of the asset and associated cost 
pressure for investigation and inspection work. 

4.1.5 Liaise with the s106 officer to determine funding for essential upgrade or 
replacement work. 

4.1.6 Provide a briefing note to the Ward Member for where the asset is located.  

4.1.7 To provide the Insurance Officer with details of the asset so any necessary 
amendments to insurance documents can be made.  

4.1.8 To ask the Capital Strategy Asset Group to review historic improvement 
schemes at its next meeting in October 2018.  

 

5.0       Conclusion 

5.1 To ensure that the Capital expenditure committed in 2003 is protected and the 
original intention of the Local Improvement Scheme continues and any risk to 
the Council controlled, it is important that the procedure detailed in 4.0 is 
immediately implemented.  

Contact for more information: Andrew Busby Group Manager Corporate 
Property and Commercial Assets (01884 
234948 / abusby@middevon.gov.uk). 

Circulation of the Report: Distribution of the report Cllr Ray Stanley, 
Leadership Team. 

Page 85

mailto:abusby@middevon.gov.uk


P
age 86



                                                                                                                     
 

1 
 

 
ASSET MANAGEMENT AND          
CAPITAL STRATEGY PLAN 

2016 - 2020 
 
 
Mid Devon District Council Riverside Workshops 
 

 
Contents 
 
 
Foreword  
 
1. Introduction   3 

2. The Benefits of Property Asset Management Planning  3 
3 Corporate asset objectives  4 
4. Portfolio overview - what does the Council own?  5 
5. Organisational Framework 5 
6. How do we measure performance 7 
7. What have we achieved so far? 8 

8. Income Generation   9 
9. Supporting the Corporate Plan 11 
10. Infrastructure and Planning 12 
11. Outcomes 13 
      
 
Appendices 
 
Appendix 1 Why do we need asset management? Further explore 14 
Appendix 2 Development of a Community Asset Transfer Policy  15 
Appendix 3 Condition of the existing estate  17 
Appendix 4 Tenanted Non Residential Property (TNRP) Review  20 
Appendix 5 Corporate Asset Management software   22 
Appendix 6 Asset Management Action Plan    23 
    
 
    
          
        
      
 

FOREWORD: 
     

Page 87



2 
 

Property Services provide accommodation for services within the Council and 
its businesses, lead on construction elements of the property capital 
programme, ensure statutory compliance of the estate and undertake a broad 
range of estate and strategic management activities.  
 

Through the delivery of repairs and maintenance, we ensure the Council 
meets its statutory building compliance responsibilities and duty of care under 
relevant health and safety legislation, in addition to maintaining pathways and 
roads, hard landscaping, sewage works and retaining walls  We also develop 
existing assets and land to create affordable homes to replace assets lost 
under the Right To Buy scheme.   
 

Building on Strong Foundations: A Framework for Local Authority Asset 
Management document published by the Department for Communities and 
Local Government lists the following potential benefits of good asset 
management: 
 

• Deliver exceptional services for citizens, aligned with locally agreed 
priorities, whilst focusing investment clearly on need. 

• Empower communities and stimulate debate. 
• Improve the economic well-being of an area. 
• Ensure that, once built, assets are correctly maintained. 
• Introduce new working practices and trigger cultural organisational 

changes. 
• Reduce carbon emissions and improve environmental sustainability. 
• Increase co-location, partnership working and sharing of knowledge. 
• Improve the accessibility of services and ensure compliance with the latest 

version of the Disability Equality Act 2010. 
• Generate efficiency gains, capital receipts or an income stream. 
• Improve the quality of information available to the public. 
 

The value of the assets we manage have a total net value of around £40 
million.  Property Services are responsible for an operational budget, currently 
£1.2 million, as well as providing services that come under other operational 
budgets.    

 

Our service consists of a wide range of assets including Land, Car Parks and 
Property.  We provide services to approximately 96 locations comprising 
Leisure and Sport Centres, Corporate Offices, a Multi-Storey Car Park, 
Industrial Units, Shops, Public Conveniences, Car Parks, Listed Buildings and 
Paddling Pools and undertake construction of Play Areas, Skateboard Parks 
and other recreational leisure facilities.  Our service also manages the Market 
Walk shopping precinct lease maintenance (Landlord contract). 

 

Councillor Clive Eginton  
Leader, Mid Devon District Council  
 
Councillor Ray Stanley  
Portfolio Holder for Housing & Property Services  
Mid Devon District Council 
 
Nick Sanderson 
Head of Housing and Property Services 
Mid Devon District Council 

Page 88



3 
 

1 Introduction 

The Asset Management Plan (AMP) sets out the Council’s approach to the 
Strategic Management of its land and building assets.  It is developed in 
consultation with the Senior Officers and Members of the Council that form 
the Capital Strategy Asset Management Group (CSAG).  The AMP seeks to 
ensure that assets are used in the most effective and efficient way to support 
the delivery of the Corporate Plan. 
 
Property Services Business Plan Mission Statement 
 
“To maximise the value derived from our property holdings for the community 
by delivering a sustainable and efficient corporate property service that meets 
our stakeholders’ needs and be recognised as a forward-thinking, proactive 
service.”  
 
The main strategic document for the Council is the Corporate Plan and this 
document sets out the Council’s vision, values and priorities.  This particular 
document is the ‘umbrella’ for a number of documents which, together, 
support the Corporate Strategy.  For further information see the Corporate 
Plan on our website.  

: The Ass 

The Capital Strategy Asset Management Group (CSAG) function involves key 
Council services and the role of the CSAG is key to ensure that there is an 
effective dialogue on asset management issues across the Council.  The 
CSAG ensures there is insight into individual council services, together with a 
clear understanding of corporate goals and objectives.  The group consists of 
officers and Members who follow and agreed process which ensures the 
estate is managed effectively and any disposals reflect value for money. 
 

2 The Benefits of Property Asset 

      Management Planning   
 

Property assets should be linked to the delivery, vision and priorities of the 
organisation.  The way that the Council manages its land and property assets 
has a direct impact on the quality of services delivered to the public. 

 

While the Council’s policy relating to the disposal and acquisition of public 
open space is under review, all land acquisition via the s106 process will be 
considered by the CSAG group before any legal agreement is authorised. 

 

Community Asset Transfer: Establishment of clear procedural policies 
including option appraisal. (Appendix 2) 
 

Condition of the existing Estate: 

Page 89



4 
 

 i Running Costs - Alignment of operating costs with a dedicated 
property code to enable analysis. Data will be extracted then to inform 
and shape the property reviews. 

 ii Condition Surveys - Carried out on non-housing stock on rolling 
basis. (Appendix 3) Planned maintenance programme now in place. 

 iii Statutory Compliance - There is a programme of statutory 
inspections and surveys in place. 

 

Data Management: 
Comprehensive property database now established to combine property, 
financial and management information.  We plan to review asset management 
software as per Appendix 5. 

 

Tenanted non-residential property (TNRP) Review (Appendix 4): 
The CSAG will review asset ownership through an assessment of efficiency, 
effectiveness and affordability.  This will ensure that this part of the estate is fit 
for purpose.  Assets that do not fulfil the Council’s strategic priorities and/or do 
not provide a positive rate of return, could be sold or transferred to Town and 
Parish councils. 

 

Financial Management: 

 i Continued development of Capital Programme links to the AMP and 
capital monitoring. 
 

 ii Implement Whole Life Appraisal – a systematic assessment of all 
relevant expenses, income and performance associated with the 
acquisition, procurement, ownership, refurbishment and potential 
disposal of an asset over its life thus allowing the Council to plan our 
medium and long term financial commitments. 

 

Performance Management:  
Development of performance measures in relation to assets that evaluate 
asset use in relation to corporate objectives.  This will be undertaken in 
tandem with assessing property management software tools. 

  

3 Corporate Asset Objectives 
 

The overall objective of the Council in the management of its property portfolio 
is to utilise and manage its land and property assets in accordance with the 
principles of Best Value; so as to enable high quality services to be provided 
to our stakeholders.  Property can drive corporate objectives and 
organisational change; this is achieved by recognising and adopting the 
following objectives to: 

 
• ensure that retained assets are suitable for their proposed/existing use, 

are fit for purpose, represent value for money and support improved 
service delivery. 

 

• provide an appropriate, attractive, secure and safe working environment 
that motivates employees. 

 

• minimise, in all respects, the impact of the Council’s buildings on the 
environment throughout their life.  

Page 90



5 
 

 

• ensure the Council’s property assets comply with Statutory/Regulatory 
Codes and are managed efficiently. 

 

• ensure that the disposal of surplus assets links with the Medium Term 
Capital and Revenue Financial Plans.  

 

• identify land for Affordable Housing developments. 
 

• identify commercial opportunities that provide a financial benefit. 
 

4 Portfolio overview - what does the 

Council own? 
 

Mid Devon District Council holds a wide and varied portfolio of Property and 
Building Assets comprising non-residential properties and areas of open 
space with a net book value in the region of £40 Million.  

 
The Council’s portfolio can be split into three main areas as shown below: 

 
1 For the purpose of direct service delivery, such as parks, open spaces 

and leisure centres.  
 

2 To support service delivery, for example administrative offices and depots. 
 

3 Tenanted non-residential property.  This part of the portfolio is varied and 
assets have been made available for a range of uses; such as the 
potential to contribute to future regeneration schemes, provide 
employment, or to retain control over property use.  In addition, some 
properties in the portfolio provide valuable revenue income such as our 
Market Walk and Fore Street Tiverton properties.  
 

  However, the housing stock is managed by the Housing Service and is 
subject to its own Housing Strategy and Housing Revenue Account 
Business Plan.  The management of these assets is outside the scope of 
this Asset Management Plan. 

 

5   Organisational Framework for Asset 

Management 
 
5.1 The overall monitoring of the AMP and corporate asset management 
initiatives is the responsibility of the Cabinet. The Cabinet considers the 

Page 91



6 
 

Council's AMP and in so doing it looks to ensure that value for money and 
good practice criteria are addressed.  These are set out below: 
 

 Links between corporate objectives and property priorities. 
 

 Full involvement of all service areas either through service/asset reviews or 
at an appropriately senior level at CSAG. 

 

 Clear distinction between strategic and operational decision making - the 
AMP does not look to address detailed issues concerning individual assets.  
It serves to provide a framework within which those types of issues can be 
considered. 

 

5.2 Corporate Management - Responsibility for the corporate management 
of the Authority’s property assets rests with the Head of Housing and Property 
Services who is a member of the Management Team and reports to the 
Cabinet Member for Housing & Property Services. 

 

5.3 The Head of Service has authority to undertake all required developments 
in asset management once this has been delegated by Cabinet.  His role and 
responsibilities are defined, and have been communicated to all concerned in 
the management and use of property throughout the Authority.   

 

5.4 The Capital Strategy Asset Management Group -  The Council has set 
up a cross-service forum to promote the effective management of the 
Council’s land and buildings.    CSAG is chaired by the Head of Housing and 
Property Services or the Estates Manager with the balance of the forum made 
up of Cabinet Members and senior representatives at head of service level. 
The Estates Manager acts as an internal project manager in respect of the 
preparation and monitoring of the Asset Management Plan.  

 

5.5 To ensure continued inter-department consultation and a corporate 
approach to proposals for effecting the Council’s land and buildings.   
 

5.6 The Group meets on a quarterly basis. The minutes of each meeting are 
kept confidential due to commercially sensitive information/discussion. 

 

5.7 Service Departments in areas affected by Asset Management Reviews 
are consulted and any resultant actions are reported back to the CSAG. 
 

5.8 To support the development and monitoring of the capital programme and 
the Council’s medium-term financial plan.   

 

The CSAG group provides linkage to the Council’s capital strategy by 
monitoring the current year’s capital programme and developing the 
programme for future years, through the Head of Finance, that includes:  

 
 Corporate Property Asset Management Plan 
 Identification of property holding purpose and individual property asset strategy 
 Monitoring of Capital Programme 
 Reports to Cabinet for corporate property decisions 

 
CSAG Key Outputs 

Page 92



7 
 

 
Property Review: 
• By Service 
• By Type 

 
Co-ordination and review of: 
• Accommodation use 
• Planned maintenance 
• Asset disposal 
• Capital investment 
• Performance measurement and monitoring on energy performance and    
reactive maintenance levels 

• Property asset contribution to the Council’s objectives. 
 
Consultation and Communication: 
• With users 
• With the public 
• Other public service providers 
• Cabinet/Members 

 
6 How do we measure performance?  
 

Core to this AMP is the objective to ensure that we deliver an effective and 
efficient asset base from which to deliver services. 
 
As a consequence, we are developing a set of Property Performance 
Indicators against which we can judge our performance over time and 
benchmark that performance with other authorities. 
 
Our selected PPI’s are based around the following discussions, 
 
Does the estates management function; 
 

 Work efficiently and effectively? 

 Activity help to ensure the organisation has buildings which are fit for 
purpose and comply with statutory requirements? 
 

 Help to ensure the organisation makes best use of its estate? 

 Effectively support the organisation in minimising the impact of the estate 
on the environment? 
 

 Manage maintenance and capital programmes effectively? 

 Ensure internal customers are satisfied with the service provided and the 
functional suitability of the estate? 

It is intended that we shall monitor the PPI’s as our priorities and needs 
change and mature adding new indicators as necessary. 

Page 93



8 
 

 
Proposed Performance Indicators (PPI) 

 
Total property costs (occupancy, operational and management) per square 
metre Gross Internal Area (GIA). 
 
Total property costs (occupancy, operational and management) per FTE (Full 
Time Equivalent Staff). 
 
Cost of the Estates Management function per square metre GIA. 
 
Cost of the Estates Management function as a percentage of organisational 
running costs. 
 
Total building operation costs (revenue) per square metre GIA. 
 
Workstations per full-time equivalent staff (FTE). 
 
Area (square metres) per workstation. 
 
Total annual energy consumption (kWh) per square metre (GIA). 
 
Total property required maintenance as a percentage of average annual 
maintenance spend for the last three years. 
 

7 What have we achieved so far? 

 
The Council adopted the principal of strategic asset management in 2003 with 
the publication of its first Corporate Property Asset Management Plan.   

 

1 PROPERTY REGISTER – CAPS database bringing together property 
information from different software systems across the Council. 
 

2 PHOENIX HOUSE - space rationalisation, creation of the Phoenix 
Chamber.  

 

3 FINANCIAL CODING – enabling accurate and more reliable cost recording 
against individual property assets. 
 

4 CAR PARKS REVIEW – collation of car parks information and review of 
provision in district by a working group consisting of Members and 
Officers.   

 

5 ENERGY MANAGEMENT/ CARBON REDUCTION - energy saving 
performance contract - 12 year contract with Anesco.  
 

6 MANAGEMENT OF LAND DRAINAGE - Flood Management Act. 
 

7 DEVELOPMENT OF EMPLOYERS REQUIREMENTS - building design for 
Affordable Housing Developments.  

 

Page 94



9 
 

8 CAPITAL DISPOSAL PROGRAM - managed by the CSAG receipts 
towards capital programme (in addition to usual capital receipts). 
 

9 TIVERTON TOWN REGENERATION PROGRAMME – masterplan setting 
the programme for priority projects, including enhancement and 
redevelopment of assets owned by the Council. 
 

10 LORDS MEADOW LEISURE CENTRE - regeneration, including upgraded 
fitness gym, sports hall, dance studio with training room and overflow 
parking provision 
 

11 CUL VALLEY SPORTS CENTRE – refurbishment of the gym and 
reception area. 

 

12 EXE VALLEY LEISURE CENTRE – Plans to look at extending the gym at 
this facility. 
  

13 OPEN SPACE STRATEGY 
 

14 MID DEVON LOCAL PLAN. 
 

15 MARKET WALK/FORE STREET TIVERTON - purchase of commercial 
units. 
 

16 PUBLIC CONVENIENCIES - working with Town and Parish Councils to 
secure funding to continue the service or find alternative uses.  

     17 TIVERTON SKATEBOARD PARK - secured funding to deliver community 
asset.  

 
In addition to the above, following a review of the Council’s main headquarters 
accommodation at Phoenix House, Tiverton; the Council have completed the 
implementation of a relocation programme.  The key outcomes of the project 
have included:- 
 
• The creation of Phoenix Chamber where Planning Committee and Full 

Council take place. 
• Divisible fully equipped meeting rooms. 
• Potential income stream from renting rooms to the Public. 
• More efficient use of open plan office space. 
• Potential reduction in business rates (open plan offices converted to 

meeting rooms). 
• Rental of office space the Department of Work & Pensions 

 
8 Income Generation  
 

The Property Service continues to generate income for the Council that is 
budgeted. A breakdown of our net annual income/savings is provided below: 

Page 95



10 
 

 
Phoenix House (income from sub-letting) £13.5k                                                           

Solar Photovoltaic Panels via the Feed In Tariff per annum 

(depending on the weather throughout the year)  

                 £40k 

Bus Station income  £24k                                                                                            

Industrial Units     £125k                          

Park Lodge income (income for Parks and Open Spaces)                              £10k 

Shop Units (General Fund and HRA)  £108k 

Cemetery Lodge income (income for Parks and Open 

Spaces)  

£8.4k 

Elsie May’s Building  £15k 

2 Wells Close income  (HRA asset)                          £7.2k 

Contributions / transfer for Public Conveniences           £55k 

Grounds Maintenance Income £48k 

Cemetery Income £122K 

Town Council income  £15.3k                                                                                        

CAB Income for Town Hall Letting £12k 

Market Walk income based on current cash income stream  

per annum         

£385k 

Crediton Town Council             £5k                                                                                 

Fore Street Rentals           £47.1k 

Lowman Green  

Lords Meadow Depot 

£10k 

£10.8k 

DCC Library income  £44k 

Roundabouts sponsorships (income for Parks and Open 

Spaces) 

£11k 

 
Renewals of Community Leases are also controlled via Property Services that 
can deliver income and support the provision of services to the community.   

Property Services leads the Capital Strategy Asset Group and reports land 

sales that can deliver Capital Receipts.  This will mainly be HRA land and will, 

therefore, be assigned to the HRA development work being undertaken. 

 

  

Page 96



11 
 

9 Supporting the Corporate Plan 

To see our corporate plan in full please use the following link: 

https://www.middevon.gov.uk/media/206666/corporate-plan-2016-2020.pdf 

 

 

  

Page 97

https://www.middevon.gov.uk/media/206666/corporate-plan-2016-2020.pdf


12 
 

Set out below is an illustration of how property assets support the Council’s 
priorities and the actions required to improve the performance of the portfolio 
in relation to the delivery of Corporate and Service objectives. 

 
Corporate Plan 2016 – 2020: 
https://www.middevon.gov.uk/media/206666/corporate-plan-2016-2020.pdf 
 

Business Strategies: 
https://www.middevon.gov.uk/media/343248/estates-and-property-services-
business-plan-april-16.pdf 
 
Climate Action Plan: 
https://democracy.middevon.gov.uk/documents/s5080/MTE%208-3-16%20-
%20Climate%20Change%20Strategy%20and%20Action%20Plan%20Report
%2025-2-16.pdf 
 
Mid Devon Local Plan: 
https://www.middevon.gov.uk/residents/planning-policy/mid-devon-local-plan/ 
 

10 Mid Devon Infrastructure & Planning  

Policies and useful documents are shown below 
 

 Retail Study 2012 https://www.middevon.gov.uk/media/103524/retail-study-
2012.pdf (Appendices are also on the evidence page of our website here 
https://www.middevon.gov.uk/residents/planning-policy/local-plan-review-
evidence-base/  
 

 Employment Land Review 2013  
https://www.middevon.gov.uk/media/103536/economy-land-review-2013.pdf 
 

 Strategic Commercial Land Availability Assessment 2014 
https://www.middevon.gov.uk/media/85198/sclaa_site_appraisals_2014_-
final.pdf (pages 1-30 for sites assessed in Tiverton) 
 

 Core Strategy 2007 
https://www.middevon.gov.uk/media/103617/core_strategy_adopted.pdf 
(Policies COR12 and COR13) 
 

 Allocations and Infrastructure DPD 2011 
https://www.middevon.gov.uk/media/103618/final_version_of_the_aidpd_janu
ary_2011_.pdf (Tiverton allocations) 
 

 Local Plan part 3: Development Management Policies 2013 
https://www.middevon.gov.uk/media/103619/local_plan_part_3_adopted_octo
ber_2013.pdf (Especially DM16) 
 

 Local Plan Review 2013 – 2033 Proposed Submission 
https://www.middevon.gov.uk/residents/planning-policy/local-plan-review/ 
 

Page 98

https://www.middevon.gov.uk/media/206666/corporate-plan-2016-2020.pdf
https://www.middevon.gov.uk/media/343248/estates-and-property-services-business-plan-april-16.pdf
https://www.middevon.gov.uk/media/343248/estates-and-property-services-business-plan-april-16.pdf
https://democracy.middevon.gov.uk/documents/s5080/MTE%208-3-16%20-%20Climate%20Change%20Strategy%20and%20Action%20Plan%20Report%2025-2-16.pdf
https://democracy.middevon.gov.uk/documents/s5080/MTE%208-3-16%20-%20Climate%20Change%20Strategy%20and%20Action%20Plan%20Report%2025-2-16.pdf
https://democracy.middevon.gov.uk/documents/s5080/MTE%208-3-16%20-%20Climate%20Change%20Strategy%20and%20Action%20Plan%20Report%2025-2-16.pdf
https://www.middevon.gov.uk/residents/planning-policy/mid-devon-local-plan/
https://www.middevon.gov.uk/media/103524/retail-study-2012.pdf
https://www.middevon.gov.uk/media/103524/retail-study-2012.pdf
https://www.middevon.gov.uk/residents/planning-policy/local-plan-review-evidence-base/
https://www.middevon.gov.uk/residents/planning-policy/local-plan-review-evidence-base/
https://www.middevon.gov.uk/media/103536/economy-land-review-2013.pdf
https://www.middevon.gov.uk/media/85198/sclaa_site_appraisals_2014_-final.pdf
https://www.middevon.gov.uk/media/85198/sclaa_site_appraisals_2014_-final.pdf
https://www.middevon.gov.uk/media/103617/core_strategy_adopted.pdf
https://www.middevon.gov.uk/media/103618/final_version_of_the_aidpd_january_2011_.pdf
https://www.middevon.gov.uk/media/103618/final_version_of_the_aidpd_january_2011_.pdf
https://www.middevon.gov.uk/media/103619/local_plan_part_3_adopted_october_2013.pdf
https://www.middevon.gov.uk/media/103619/local_plan_part_3_adopted_october_2013.pdf
https://www.middevon.gov.uk/residents/planning-policy/local-plan-review/


13 
 

And maps https://www.middevon.gov.uk/residents/planning-policy/local-plan-
review/local-plan-review-maps/ 
 
 

 11 Outcomes 

 
The Council’s Asset Management Plan was last updated in 2008.  This 
revised plan creates a useful picture in terms of how the Council’s assets 
support the Council’s Corporate Priorities and the challenges ahead in 
ensuring a strategic approach is taken to support corporate and services 
strategies.  The actions set out with dates in the AMP highlight where work 
remains to be carried out to fully incorporate Asset Management into the 
Council’s ethos and have been set to achieve the Corporate Asset Objectives. 

 
As is demonstrated within the Plan, effective asset management is an on-
going discipline that requires the active support of senior decision makers and 
cross service input.  For further information, please speak to the author of this 
document, Andrew Busby – Estates Manager 01884 255255.  

Appendices 

  

Page 99

https://www.middevon.gov.uk/residents/planning-policy/local-plan-review/local-plan-review-maps/
https://www.middevon.gov.uk/residents/planning-policy/local-plan-review/local-plan-review-maps/


14 
 

Appendix 1 
 
Why do we need Asset Management? 
 

Further explored… 
 

1.0 Practical Reasons 
 
It takes longer to change property than any of the other strategic resources.  
Lack of attention to asset management will result in the asset base 
underperforming in both non-financial and financial terms.  Examples of this 
are: 
 
• Expensive maintenance backlogs. 
• Poor fit between customer and service requirements and the property from 

which they are delivered. 
• Under-utilisation of buildings. 
• Inefficient sourcing and procurement of property, construction and support 

services. 
• Inefficient use of capital. 
• Insufficient control of running costs. 
• Failure to provide services close to the community they serve. 

 

1.1 Business Benefit Reasons 
 
The business benefits that have been realised by many public bodies from 
effective asset management are: 
 
• The release of capital for re-investment or debt redemption. 
• Reduced running costs. 
• Better customer service and public service provision through improved 

accommodation and the co-location of services. 
• Property in good condition. 
• Improved property utilisation and bringing together similar uses into the 

same property, rather than providing them separately. 
• Improved productivity, changes in corporate culture and facilitation of 

corporate change. 
• Improved place-making in shaping the built environment of local 

communities. 
 

1.2 Policy Reasons 
 
In every part of the public sector, improved asset management is not just to 
be encouraged, it is a general expectation. 

  

Page 100



15 
 

Appendix 2  
Development of a Community Asset Transfer 
Policy 
 

1 Background 
 

1.1 The Strong and Prosperous Communities Local Government White Paper 
was published in October 2006 and sets out the basis for a new relationship 
between local government and its communities.  This paper advocated that 
“the aim is to give local people and local communities more influence and 
power to improve their lives”.  In addition, “we are determined to ensure that 
existing powers and policies that support community management and 
ownership are effective; and that practical ways are found to overcome any 
remaining unnecessary barriers”. 

 
1.2 The ‘Making Assets Work, Quirk Review’ looked at the clear benefits to 
local groups which own or manage community assets – such as community 
centres, building preservation trusts and community enterprises.  The review 
makes clear that what is required is not legislation, but guidance to enable a 
partnership approach to the delivery of community services.  The review 
focused on how the use of publicly owned assets could be optimised by 
exploring options for the increased transfer of asset ownership and 
management to community groups. 

 

1.3 The Localism Bill will look to devolve further powers to community 
organisations to take on the delivery of services previously run by local 
authorities.  This will have an effect on buildings currently used to deliver 
those services. 

 
1.4 Local authorities have been given discretionary powers under the Local 
Government Act 1972 to dispose of land below market value in some 
circumstances.  Decisions on disposal need to be made by comparing the 
benefits that would accrue from a transfer to community use, with those from 
a straight forward commercial sale. 

 

1.5 Where community groups are well established and have access to either 
the support of a governing body or regular income streams, the transfers have 
worked well.  However, other schemes which rely mainly on voluntary 
community support have been less successful in delivering sustainability in 
the medium to long term. 

 

1.6 By having a clear Community Asset Transfer Policy and selection process 
for third sector partners, the Council will have a greater chance of ensuring 
that the sustainability of the property is maintained in the long term and, by 
means of a robust business proposal, that community groups are able to 
demonstrate their capability. 

 

Page 101



16 
 

1.7 There has to be a balance between the sale of assets for reinvestment in 
the Council’s priorities through the Capital Programme and transfers for the 
delivery of services by community groups. 

 

1.8 The CSAG is currently embarking on a Property Review which will, 
amongst other things, identify assets which could be subject to future 
disposal. 

 

1.9 Community Asset Transfer needs to be considered by the CSAG. Town or 
Parish councils wishing to apply to take on assets currently held by the 
Council require a defined process to do so, we plan to do this by developing 
an on line application form.   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 102



17 
 

Appendix 3 
Condition of the existing estate 
 

Statutory commitments 
Where we provide and maintain property for our business, Property Services 
are responsible for a high number of statutory requirements to ensure 
compliance and protect the Council from prosecution, therefore prevention is 
key.   

 

The Council looks after a wide range of legislative requirements to ensure that 
it meets its statutory obligations, which includes: 
 

o Asbestos Management 
o Fixed electrical testing  
o Structured surveys 
o Legionella testing 
o Condition Surveys 

 
We regularly inspect our roads and pathways and carry out other routine 
inspections and keep records that are required for insurance purposes, these 
are essential in order that we can defend potential claims. 

 

Non-statutory commitments 
The statutory commitments are necessary if the Council continues to operate 
a facility for employees and the public.  However, we may not have a statutory 
requirement to cover some services i.e. Leisure and Public Conveniences.  

 

Any special legal or insurance obligations your service needs to be met. 
 

Building condition categories  
 

Condition Survey Categories 

A Good. Performing as intended and operating efficiently. 
 

B Satisfactory.  Performing as intended but exhibiting minor 
deterioration. 
 

C Poor.  Exhibiting major defects and/or not operating as 
intended. 
 

D Bad.  Life expired and/or serious risk of imminent failure. 
 

Not Set Condition survey not undertaken. 
 

 

Page 103



18 
 

During the inspection of buildings, the urgency for maintenance works is 
assessed simultaneously with the condition.  This assessment then informs 
the prioritisation of both the order of works and budget allocation. 

 

Recognising certain outcomes from the old inspection regime, a new 
improved inspection regime will be implemented following approval of the 
responsible officer’s paper to the Cabinet Member for Housing and Property 
Services and the Head of Service.  This will result in better informed 
maintenance budgeting and an improved understanding of the estate’s true 
condition.  
 
 

1 Condition Surveys 
1.1 Condition surveys on the Council’s non-housing premises should be 
carried out on a rolling basis at least every two years.  The majority of 
property is generally in a sound or acceptable condition with relatively minor 
works required.  The planned maintenance budget generally allows Property 
Services to carry out repairs to buildings and fixed equipment as and when 
required.  There are occasions when major works need further budget 
approval before they can be carried out.   

 

From 2016 these surveys will be undertaken every three years and will 

provide more comprehensive information to help inform not only the Planned 

Maintenance Programme, but also the on-going general review of the 

Council’s varying asset cluster.  Eventually it is anticipated that each asset will 

have its own asset management plan and classification for either on-going 

maintenance, capital investment, significant capital investment or 

replacement, change of use or disposal. 

 

The basis of the new style surveys will enable appraisal with regard to fitness 
for purpose of use, condition and compliance.  The three facts which will be 
assessed and ranked are: 

i. Physical condition 
ii. Fire, health and safety and disabled accessibility 
iii. Suitability 

 
1.2 In addition, annual tests on utilities and building facilities such as electrical 
wiring; boilers including gas safety; air conditioning and ventilation; equipment 
checks and other monitoring form part of the planned maintenance process 
and are carried out regularly in line with planned and programmed schedules 
 

2 The Disability Equality Act 2010 
2.1 The Property Services team takes a role in working to fulfil the obligations 
under Part 3 of the Act.  Audits have been carried out on all premises 
available for public use and we have implemented a number of improvements 
to ensure suitable access for the disabled. 
 

Page 104



19 
 

2.2 Premises are routinely monitored with service managers to gauge where 
further improvements could be made.  Provision is made within Revenue 
budgets to enable this process. 
 

3 Asbestos 
3.1 The Control of Asbestos Regulations 2012 places a duty to manage 
asbestos, wherever it is found in our buildings.  MDDC has surveyed all of its 
properties and listed any asbestos containing materials (ACM’s) on the 
Asbestos Register.  Wherever possible, the ACM’s have been removed or 
encapsulated.  The asbestos that remains is being regularly monitored.  The 
Asbestos Policy gives full details of the management of ACM’s.  
 
 

4 Control of Legionella Approved Code of 

Practice and Guidance from the HSE (L8) 
4.1 The Health and Safety Commission’s Approved Code of Practice ‘The 
control of legionella bacteria in water systems’ was published in 2001.  It sets 
out duties on the ‘building manager’ to ensure that water systems are 
monitored to reduce the risk of legionella. 
MDDC has a service agreement with an independent company who are 
monitoring all our premises on a regular basis to ensure that we are compliant 
with the legislation.  Remedial works are prioritised and financed from the 
planned maintenance budget.  The Legionella Policy gives full details of the 
management and control of Legionella risk. 
 
 

5 Fire Safety 
5.1 The Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) Order 2005 covers general fire 
safety in England and Wales.  Employers (and/or building owners or 
occupiers) must carry out a fire safety risk assessment and keep it up to date. 

 
MDDC has carried out fire risk assessments at all of its premises, where 
required and actively manages and implements changes or improvements 
that are highlighted.  Reviews are carried out on an annual basis. 

  

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 105



20 
 

 
 
Appendix 4 

 Tenanted Non Residential Property (TNRP) 
Review 
 

1 Background 
 

1.1 The Council owns assets which are let to third parties, other than HRA 
housing, for example industrial workshops and residential properties.  
These assets are held for investment or socio-economic purposes – or 
both. 

 
1.2 The Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors (RICS) recommends a focus 

on three key perceived current priorities for improvement in the 
management of TNRP in the local government arena: 

 
 There should be clear allocation of roles and responsibilities and 

accountability processes in the management of TNRP to drive 
continuous improvement in TNRP performance. 

 Local authorities should adopt business planning disciplines to ensure 
clear strategy, plans and programmes for the management of their 
TNRP. 

 To ensure best value is being obtained, local authorities should 
continuously measure and report on the performance of all TNRP as 
investments 

 

2 Getting Started 

2.1 A TNRP strategic review will be commenced and with a simple overview 
including: 

 

• A list of TNRP assets and their type 
• Asset values and income (internal rate of return (IRR) valuation). 
• A basic analysis of why they are held e.g. socio-economic, investment 

or unidentified 
• A desktop indicative assessment of their suitability, condition and 

running costs 
• CSAG referral of recommendations to Cabinet following completion of 

reviews on the following asset clusters: 
 
1. Industrial Estates 
2. Fore Street properties 
3. Residential property 
4. Market Walk shopping precinct. 

Page 106



21 
 

 

2.2 As the strategy develops, a phased work programme should emerge to 
ensure: 

 
• The Council is clear as to why it owns TNRP 
• There is a clear business case for owning individual TNRPs 
• The Council is clear as to what outcomes are expected 
• The right people are involved 
• There are clear strategies, plans and programmes in place 
• The performance management process is robust 

 

3 Outcomes 

 
3.1 The TNRP review will measure the performance of each asset against a 

decision framework.  The outcomes will include an understanding of the 
property objective and will arrive at a decision to either retain or dispose of 
an asset. 
 

3.2 Where an asset is retained, it will fall into one of three classes:- 
 
i. Continued maintenance – where the property is considered to be doing the 

right thing in the right place.  All that will be required is a planned 
maintenance schedule; 

 
ii. Improve usage – there may be an opportunity for better usage or co-

location.  This may require some capital expenditure, along with a planned 
maintenance schedule; 
 

iii. Building enhancement – where an asset requires significant capital 
expenditure. 
 

 

4 Disposal of Assets 

4. TNRP Disposal Policy 

 

4.1 Where an asset deemed surplus for disposal is subject to external 
valuation for values in excess of £500 and following consultation with 
Ward Members, a recommendation will be made to Cabinet by the Head 
of Housing and Property Services 

 
  (a) Documenting the reason for disposal,  

(b) Stipulating any conditions that will apply and/or endure after disposal  
(c) Suggesting an appropriate method of disposal.   

 
Ward Members will be consulted on those assets identified as surplus, for 
disposal and with a value of under £500 before the Head of Service 
authorises the disposal of the asset and determines the appropriate 
method of sale and the timing. 
 

Page 107



22 
 

4.2 The receipts generated by the disposal of assets are treated as a 
corporate resource to fund the capital programme. To this end, the Head 
of Housing and Property Services shall, in liaison with the Estates 
Manager, set targets for capital generation by disposals, and monitor 
performance on a quarterly basis. 

 
 

 
 Appendix 5 
 Corporate Asset Management software 

 
1 Background 
 
Mid Devon has historically operated different property management systems 
across its Finance, Property Services, Housing, Estates and Street Scene 
services.  Whilst providing essential tools for each discreet area, this 
approach has resulted in difficulties and inefficiencies when dealing with 
cross-service issues.  These asset management processes are coming under 
ever increasing scrutiny. 
 

 

2 Review of all software used to manage our 

assets 
 

To ensure the authority has a complete and up-to-date record of property 
assets to facilitate decision making, our service will need to review the 
software packages which we use to manage our estate and influence an 
action plan for ensuring information is maintained and current.  This review 
will incorporate our aspirations for digital transformation.   
 
 
 

  

Page 108



                                                                                                                     
 

23 
 

 Appendix 6 
 Asset Management Action Plan  
 
 

Annex A - Asset Management Action Plan  

ACTION BENEFIT TO 

COUNCIL 

HOW TO 

ACHIEVE 

THIS 

RESOURCES 

NEEDED 

LEAD OFFICER 

 

DATES 

CSAG to 

be agreed 

1. Review and amendment of 
Asset Management Plan 
Performance Management. 

Link to Corporate Plan 
2016 – 2020. 

Implement 
management 
practices and 
assign 
‘SMART’ 
targets. 

Estates & Property 
services 

Estates Manager  
 
Development 
Services 
Manager 

 

2. Promote the improvement of 
the use of Council’s assets. 
Develop ways for all services to 
become aware of positive asset 
management ie. business 
plans. 
Asset Management Plan needs 
to be ‘promoted’ once updated. 
 

Improved awareness 
of asset management; 
improved use of 
available skills & 
knowledge.  Promoting 
proactive management 
Reducing reactive 
costs. 

Awareness 
training 
sessions. 
Publication of 
updated asset 
management 
plan. 

Learning & 
Development  
 
HR Business 
Partners 

Estates Manager  

 

  

P
age 109



24 
 

 

ACTION BENEFIT TO 

COUNCIL 

HOW TO 

ACHIEVE 

THIS 

RESOURCES 

NEEDED 

LEAD OFFICER 

 

DATES 

CSAG to 

be agreed 

3. Improve benchmarking and 
sharing of information within 
nearest neighbours group. 
 

Improve quality of 
asset management 
plan. 
Identify where 
efficiencies will be 
achieved. 
Identify internal rate of 
return, so that assets 
not meeting this return 
can be selected for 
disposal. 

Revision as 
per Action 1 
(above). 

Estates 
Management & 
Property Services 
Team. 
 
Estates Manager to 
set up a working 
group with other 
property managers 
from other 
authorities. 
 

Estates Manager  

4. Integrate capital strategy into 
the asset management plan. 
 
 

Co-ordinated support 
for the corporate plan 
through integration of 
asset management 
plan/capital strategy/ 
medium term financial 
plan. 
 

Working with 
Finance 
service. 

Finance Manager 
for Capital 
Development 
Services Manager 
 
Contracts Manager 

Estates Manager  

5. Improve professional 
skills/training. 
Continuous professional 
development. 

Improved quality of 
asset management. 

Appraisals; 
On-the-job 
training 
provision. 
 

Estates and 
Property Services 
team 

Development 
Services 
Manager 

 

  

P
age 110



25 
 

ACTION BENEFIT TO 

COUNCIL 

HOW TO 

ACHIEVE 

THIS 

RESOURCES 

NEEDED 

LEAD OFFICER 

 

DATES 

CSAG to 

be agreed 

6. Identify strategic/key 
partners for collaborative 
working and develop a 
Community Asset Transfer 
Policy. 
 

Improved capacity and 
cost-effectiveness 
through partnership 
working. 
 

Explore shared 
service 
opportunities. 

Estates and 
Property Services 
team 

Head of Housing 
& Property 
Services 

 

7. Implement CAPS Estate 
Module and Quality Assurance 
Land Terrier. 

Avoids duplication of 
records. Certainty over 
asset base. 
Reduce database 
maintenance 
requirements. 
 

Cross-service 
working group 
using Prince 2 
approach. 

Estates and 
Property Services 
team 

Estates Manager  

8. Improve energy efficiency 
and continue to reduce 
consumption. 

Cost savings  
Achieves Corporate 
Plan objective. 

Identify 
additional 
‘ESCO’ 
opportunities. 
 

Estates and 
Property Services 
team 

Contracts & 
Services 
Manager 

 

9. Review & report based on 
‘outcomes’ of the reduction in 
revenue maintenance budget. 
 
To include: 
Risks 
Future expenditure 
requirements in relation to plant 
and asset replacement. 
 

Awareness of risks 
and costs of reductions 
to planned 
preventative 
maintenance. 

Incorporate in 
Action 1 
(above). 

Estates and 
Property Services 
team 

Technical 
Administrator 

 

P
age 111



26 
 

 

ACTION BENEFIT TO 

COUNCIL 

HOW TO 

ACHIEVE 

THIS 

RESOURCES 

NEEDED 

LEAD OFFICER 

 

DATES 

CSAG to 

be agreed 

10. Analysis of value for money 

 

Cemeteries 

Parks and Open Spaces 

Grounds Maintenance 

 

Contributes to effective 

use of resources. 

Potential efficiency 

increases/cost 

reductions identified. 

Benchmarking 
(see Action 3 
above) – 
results to be 
included in 
estates 
management 
business plan 
with SMART 
targets. 
 

Estates and 

Property Services 

team 

Estates Manager  

11. Improvement to the 

planning consultation process 

regarding S106/CIL. 

Improved 

consideration of the 

impact of development 

on existing assets and 

added robustness to 

adoption procedures 

for new assets. 

 

Liaise with 

Planning 

Service. 

Regular review 

meetings with 

Planning Officers 

Development 

Services 

Manager 

 

12. Continue to deliver Capital 

projects that supports the 

Corporate Plan 2016 – 2020. 

 

Improved use of asset 

management expertise 

at project design 

stage. 

Involvement in 

CSAG. 

 

Estates & Property 

Services team 

Head of Housing 

& Property 

Services 

 

  

P
age 112



27 
 

ACTION BENEFIT TO 

COUNCIL 

HOW TO 

ACHIEVE 

THIS 

RESOURCES 

NEEDED 

LEAD OFFICER 

 

DATES 

CSAG to 

be agreed 

13. Revise and review Asset 

Management Plan annually 

plus initiate annual review as 

good practice. 

 

Improved management 

of assets. 

Increased internal rate 

of return. 

Reduced reactive 

maintenance costs. 

Improved risk 

management. 

 

Annual review. 

Continued 

research for 

opportunities. 

Estates & Property 

Services team 

 

CSAG 

  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 113



T
his page is intentionally left blank



MDDC Report [title]
v

1

COMMUNITY WELL BEING PDG   
18 SEPTEMBER 2018

Review of Customer Care Policy

Cabinet Member(s): Councillor Margaret Squires
Responsible Officer: Group Manager for Business Transformation and 

Customer Engagement

Reason for Report: Review of the Customer Care Policy

RECOMMENDATION:  To recommend the content of the reviewed Customer 
Care Policy

Relationship to Corporate Plan: To ensure that people have access to the services 
or information they need, via the channel of their choice. 

Financial Implications: None

Legal Implications: To ensure that all staff are aware of data protection 
requirements, along with their duties under the Equality Act 2010.

Risk Assessment: None

Equality Impact Assessment: To be completed in conjunction with Channel Access 
Strategy.

1.0 Introduction

1.1 The Customer Care Policy was last reviewed in September 2014.
The key requirements for providing a good customer service remain 
unchanged; the policy is therefore little altered from the previous version.

1.2 The provision of good customer service is important for every employee of 
Mid Devon District Council to understand.  It is not service specific and 
applies across all services and posts.

1.3 This policy sets out the level of customer service that customers can expect 
from us when using the contact method of their choice.

2.0 Customer Contact Targets

2.1 As part of the Channel Access Strategy and Business Transformation work 
we will be reviewing our service targets to ensure that they are robust but 
achievable.  See Appendix 1.

2.2 We continue to see a shift in our customer behaviour with an increasing shift 
to digital contacts.  Number of Contacts – In 17/18 the council received the 
following contacts:

Face to Face 30,202

Page 115

Agenda Item 10.



MDDC Report [title]
v

2

Telephone 373,000 +
Emails over 1 million
Web Forms Submitted 48,781

3.0 Customer Charter

3.1 Our Customer Charter is available in our reception area at Phoenix House 
and is published on our Website.  It sets out what customers can expect from 
us and how they can help us to deliver a more efficient and effective service.

4.0 The Future

4.1 This policy will underpin the Channel Access and Community Engagement 
Strategies that are being reviewed.  Changing technology alone does not 
make us more efficient, providing good customer services is a combination of 
having the right people, in the right place at the right time to serve our 
customer needs.  The Channel Access and Business Transformation projects 
will guide the organisation toward understanding what our current and future 
customer need is and working with services and training staff to be able to 
deliver it.

Contact for more Information: Lisa Lewis, Group Manager for Business 
Transformation and Customer Engagement, Tel. 01884 234981, email: 
llewis@middevon.gov.uk

Circulation of the Report: Councillors Margaret Squires and Colin Slade, Group 
Managers, Leadership Team and Community PDG

List of Background Papers: Customer Care Policy 2014 v3

Page 116

mailto:llewis@middevon.gov.uk


Customer Care Policy

1

Mid Devon District Council

Customer Care Policy

August 2018

Page 117



Customer Care Policy

2

Version Control Sheet

Title: Customer Care Policy

Purpose: To detail the commitment of Mid Devon District Council in providing an 
excellent level of Customer service. To also detail the standards that can be 
expected from  the Council and their officers to its customers.

Owner: Group Manager for Business Transformation and Customer Engagement 
Email: llewis@middevon.gov.uk
Telephone number 01884 234981

Date: 8th August 2018

Version Number: 3.0

Status: Draft

Review Frequency: Every 2 years 

Next review date: Sept 2020

Consultation This document was sent out for consultation to the following:
Group Managers
Leadership Team
Cabinet Member

Document History
This document obtained the following approvals.

Title Date Version 
Approved 

Group Managers Team 20/08/18
Leadership Team 04/09/18
Community PDG 18/09/18

Page 118

mailto:llewis@middevon.gov.uk


Customer Care Policy

3

1. Introduction

Mid Devon District Council (‘the Council’) is committed to ensuring that customer service 
excellence is an integral part of the planning, resourcing and delivery of all services.   

This policy, in conjunction with others, will ensure that all sections of our diverse 
community accessing the Council’s services will experience consistently excellent 
customer service.  

To help us fulfil this pledge we have a range of equality and diversity policies and this 
customer care policy sets out what customers can expect from the Council when they 
contact us for any service.

     2. Customer Service Promise

We will:

Have policies and procedures which support the right of all customers to expect 
excellent levels of service, and that meet the diverse needs of our customers.

Have staff that are polite and friendly to customers, and have an understanding of our 
customers needs.

Advise our customers and potential customers about our standards and what they can 
expect from our services in terms of timeliness and quality. (See Appendix 1)

Respond to the initial enquiry promptly and where there are known delays let the 
customer know why there is a delay, and what action is being taken, and whenever 
possible provide details of the likely overall time it may take to achieve the outcome 
required.

    3. Customer Care Charter

We would like our customers to know the standards and behaviours they can expect 
from us. A Customer Care Charter has been agreed and sets out how staff will behave 
when dealing with customers. This is displayed in all of the Council’s offices and on the 
Council’s website.

The Charter also includes details on how customers can help us to give them the best 
service possible. (See Appendix 2). 

A customer care guide is provided to all staff to ensure that they understand the 
importance of providing a good customer service for all customers regardless of how the 
customer contacts the Council.

Customer Service awareness training is provided to all new staff at their induction.

   4.     Customer Service Standards 

We will:

Ensure the standards for our main services are challenging and take into account our 
responsibility for delivering national and statutory standards and targets.

Page 119



Customer Care Policy

4

Set appropriate standards for the timeliness of responses across all access channels. 
(See Appendix 1)

Respond to any failure in performance and take appropriate action to bring standards 
back to the agreed level.

In addition individual services may have standards and targets specific to their particular 
areas of work (e.g. housing benefit applications, planning applications, grass cutting).  

5. Provision of Information

We will:

Protect customers’ privacy both in face to face discussions and in the transfer and 
storage of information.

All staff complete data protection training at induction and have regular updates on their 
responsibility in relation to the protection of personal information.

Where customers are expected to provide documentation to support applications or for 
personal identification, we will make it clear what is required and only retain as much 
data as is required for that purpose.

6. Access and communication

We will:

Make our services easily accessible to all our customers through the provision of a 
range of access channels, these include:-

 offices that are open for 40 hours a week, 
 a central customer service contact centre for telephone, e-mail and digital contact 

that is open for 42 hours a week with extended hours provided in partnership with 
others 

 interactive website with a range of on-line services, 
 outreach events at rural community locations
 provide visiting officers where appropriate.
 provide an out of hours service for 24 hour emergency contact.
 provide Wi-Fi access in our offices and leisure centres.
 provide information on where there is public access to ICT equipment and the 

internet within Mid Devon.
 provide information on changes to our own services using a variety of channels to 

engage with customers using channels that suite their needs
 continue to review our access channels and improve how we communicate with 

customers to ensure we can adapt to changes.

Ensure that where customers visit our premises our facilities are as clean and 
comfortable as possible, and have access for the disabled, provide hearing loops in our 
interview rooms and at the service desks and provide signage that is in the most 
appropriate format for customers with sight impairment. 

Where customers require application forms or information about our services, we will 
provide the information digitally by default.  Alternative formats will be available on 
request.

Page 120



Customer Care Policy

5

7. Complaints 

We will:

Have an easy to use complaints procedure, which includes a commitment to deal with 
problems fully, resolve them if possible within agreed timescales and in all cases let the 
customer know the outcome of the investigation.

For more information please see the Complaints Policy.

8. Staff Training

All staff will receive information at their induction on the Council’s Customer Service 
Standards and Charter, as well as any service standards that have been set for their 
own individual service.

Additional training should be provided by their line manager on responding to customers 
to ensure every member of staff is aware of their own responsibility for providing 
excellent customers service.

A staff guide on customer service standards is available on SharePoint.

Customer focus and customer service will be discussed with all staff at their annual 
appraisal.

Also as referred to earlier, all staff with have data protection training as part of their 
induction and have regular updates. 

   
9. Review 

A review of the policy will be carried out every three years.

Page 121



Customer Care Policy

6

Appendix 1

Customer Service targets

Access Channel Agreed targets Monitoring arrangements
Telephone to call centre 85% answered, the contact 

centre is manned from 8.30 to 
5.00pm, calls are put into a 
queue.

Telephone call log available. 
Monitored by Customer First. 
Reported quarterly on Spar 
and monthly notices posted 
on the website.

Correspondence received in 
the post

95% of scannable post is 
scanned on date of receipt

Scanned items can be 
monitored on the Electronic 
Document Management 
systems. Items not scanned 
will be monitored by 
exception. 

Email 95% responded to within 5 
days

Monitored by exception and 
mystery shopping.

Visitors to reception 95% seen within 15 minutes 
of arrival.

Queue management reports 
available and monitored by 
Customer First.

Complaints 90% Resolved within 10 days 
or notified of additional time 
up to maximum of 12 weeks.

Reports from the Customer 
Services system monitored by 
Customer First.

Social media Checked daily and responded 
to within 24 hours (week days) 
if response required.

Monitored by 
Communications.

Each service may also have individual service specific targets and Performance  
Indicator’s, these are monitored on Spar.net

Page 122



Customer Care Policy

7

Appendix 2

Customer Care Charter
 
Mid Devon District Council is committed to providing the best customer service we can.  We aim 
to do this by following the standards laid out below, ensuring fair treatment of all in accordance 
with the diverse needs of our customers.  The Charter outlines our commitment to you.

We will:

 Always be courteous and polite
 Respond to the diverse needs of our customers, adapting our approach as required
 Provide a range of different contact methods to suit your needs, you can call into our offices, 

phone, email, use social media, write to us, or use our online services and where possible 
we will respond to you in your preferred contact method

 We will provide access to the internet in our offices
 Use plain English in all our written correspondence and information
 Apologise if things go wrong and do our best to put things right (please see our Complaints 

policy)
 Listen to your feedback, act on it and respond

How you can help us to help you:

 By treating us with respect - we will not be able to help you if you are aggressive, 
threatening, violent or use bad language

 By providing any documentation relating to your enquiry, as required
 By bringing a friend or asking for a translator if needed – we may need to make an 

appointment to provide this service
 By keeping to your appointment time, or letting us know if you cannot make a pre-arranged 

appointment
 Letting us know if your contact details have changed

We will have:

 Easily accessible offices, with private interview rooms, wherever possible - please discuss 
your needs with our staff

 Literature that is easy to understand and provided in other formats if required
 A contact centre open 42hrs a week to respond to calls, e-mails and other digital contacts
 Access to the internet and Wi-Fi in our main offices
 An interactive website available 24/7 for information and transactions even when our offices 

are not open
 Regular reviews of our working practices to ensure we are always offering the best service

These promises are about meeting the needs and expectations of you, our customers, 
and above all creating a service we can be proud of.    

August 2018
Page 123



This page is intentionally left blank



MDDC Report: Channel Access Strategy
V5

1

CABINET
27 SEPTEMBER 2018

CHANNEL ACCESS STRATEGY: Creating Efficient Customer Channels to our 
Services

Cabinet Member(s): Councillor Margaret Squires
Responsible Officer: Lisa Lewis, Group Manager for Business Transformation 

and Customer Engagement

Reason for Report: The purpose of this report is to provide Members with the 
revised Channel Access Strategy: Creating Efficient Customer Channels to our 
Services.  This revised strategy is required to ensure we continue to provide 
appropriate access to services for our customers and do so in the most efficient and 
cost effective way in light of ever decreasing budgets.

RECOMMENDATION: That the Channel Access Strategy be endorsed.

Relationship to Corporate Plan: To ensure that the Council provides access to 
services for customers in whatever way they choose to transact with us.  Ensuring 
extended access via digital means and improving the way that we hold information 
and deliver our services to customers, placing them at the centre of what we do.

Financial Implications: Decreasing central government settlements continue to 
apply pressure to the public sector.  Investment is needed in order to analyse and 
potentially redesign our business processes and customer transactions.  By 
redesigning our services and improving secure access to information for customers 
we can encourage self-service, reduce officer time on low value transactions and 
focus our resources more effectively.  Any project identified as part of a Channel 
Access Strategy or Transformation Programme will be accompanied by a costed and 
approved business case.

Legal Implications: Any new methods of service delivery must ensure we are able 
to continue to meet our statutory duties and maintain data security.

Risk Assessment: All risks associated with any transformation programme will be 
recorded and closely monitored.

Equality Impact Assessment: Service redesign will be done by focusing our 
reviews with the customer at the centre of what we do.  It is understood that in order 
to achieve excellence in customer service ALL channels must be maintained.

1.0 Introduction

1.1 In November 2013 work commenced on a digital transformation 
programme for Mid Devon District Council.  The aim of the programme 
was to create a customer focussed business where our customers 
could self-serve or could be assisted to access services.

1.2 Progress was made on the project with a new web site and a 
significant increase in options for customers to self-serve with 

Page 125

Agenda Item 11.



MDDC Report: Channel Access Strategy
V5

2

additional online forms and payments.  However, due to the 
redeployment of key staff and significant changes within leadership the 
project stalled.

1.3 The new Leadership team is keen to reinvigorate and build on the initial 
project.  There is now a clearer understanding of how to achieve 
successful transformation and an acknowledged need to broaden our 
approach to include not just digital transformation, but include activities 
to more fully understand our customers, business and staff to ensure 
that we are better able to align our resources. 

1.4 To reinvigorate work pertaining to this strategy some of the ICT team 
have been migrated to a new Digital Services Team.  These staff, 
along with Customer Services, now sit under the Group Manager for 
Business Transformation and Customer Engagement.

2.0 Transformation Priorities

2.1 As a result of discussions with Leadership Team and Group Managers 
the following activities have been identified:

 Consider the need for a customer portal which will allow 
customers to more efficiently self-serve, access their own 
information, bills, statements etc.

 Review the current case management system to ensure full 
visibility of customer transactions so that when a customer 
contacts MDDC staff can see all contacts without having to 
redirect customers around the organisation.

 Complete a full analysis on a service by service basis to identify 
how many customers are transacting with us and by what 
means

 Enable customer engagement with the redesign of services by 
looking for opportunities to include them in the design process

 Implement Electronic Document Management across services to 
enable customer self-service, mobile working and accurate 
records management.

 Complete service reviews to identify the internal/external 
customer transactions and ensure they are fit for purpose, 
efficient, cost-effective and most importantly easy to use for our 
customers.

2.2 A renewed Transformation Programme of projects is to be identified 
and agreed and the original project objectives revisited and re-costed.

3.0 Why do we need to change?

3.1 Number of Contacts – In 17/18 the council received the following 
contacts:

Face to Face 30,202
Telephone 373,000 +

Page 126



MDDC Report: Channel Access Strategy
V5

3

Emails over 1 million
Web Forms Submitted 48,781

As our district grows with the addition of the Eastern Urban Extension 
and Culm Garden Village our customer numbers and need will grow, 
so it is important that we reassess our services now and come to an 
agreed understanding of future need to ensure that we are able to 
meet customer requirements however they may manifest.

3.2 We have seen a 40% decrease in Face to Face visits to MDDC 
between 2013 and 2017.  Some of this decrease will have been down 
to the closure of the Crediton office.  We can see that there has been a 
decrease in phone calls of just fewer than 7%, a limited decrease;  
again likely in part to the above office closure.  It would not be prudent 
to expect a proportional move from one channel to another, but our 
inability to easily trace customer contact through the organisation 
irrespective of service or channel prevents us from achieving a full 
understanding of how and why customers are accessing our services 
as they do.  

3.3 An example of successful service design is the Green Waste Permits – 
this service was designed to maximise efficiency by encouraging sign-
up and renewal digitally.  All customer channel options remain 
available to ensure access to all customers, but the figures of the way 
customers are choosing to transact with us provide evidence that there 
is a customer will to consume services digitally.  

Method
Visit/Cheque – manual process 13.95%
Via Contact Centre - telephone 36.95%
Online 49.10%
Over 1000 of the online transactions were fully automated with no 
human interaction other than issue of permit.

3.4 Digital and Working Silos – Complex business systems are required to 
deliver council services.  Because our systems are not fully ‘joined up’ 
or integrated, following customer requests through multiple staff/system 
handoffs becomes impossible.  We lose the ability to trace service 
request history and monitor/measure service provision adequately.  By 
logging all customers communications, irrespective of channel, i.e. 
phone, web, email, etc. through one system and integrating that 
system into the back office we are then better able to serve the 
customer, allow the customer to serve themselves and allow the 
organisation to monitor their requests through the organisation.  By 
removing the digital and working silos and empowering staff through 
technology and training, our officers can assist customers through their 
entire service requests and trace their history.

3.5 Staffing – Staff are our most expensive resource; they are also our 
most valuable.  As part of the transformation strategy we will be looking 

Page 127



MDDC Report: Channel Access Strategy
V5

4

to better align our staff resources with the services that we provide.  A 
corporate review of skills and staff will be instigated to ensure that we 
align our workforce plan and transformational activities to empower and 
develop staff whilst planning how to best utilise resources against 
decreased budgets and increased customer numbers.

Contact for more Information: Lisa Lewis, Group Manager for Business 
Transformation and Customer Engagement, Tel: 01884 234981 or email: 
llewis@middevon.gov.uk

Circulation of the Report: Cllrs. Margaret Squires & Colin Slade, Leadership 
Team and Cabinet

List of Background Papers: 

Page 128

mailto:llewis@middevon.gov.uk


Mid Devon District Council 

Channel Access Strategy 2018 – 2021:
Creating Efficient Customer Channels to our Services

Version 5.0 | August 2018

Page 129



Mid Devon District Council 
Channel Access Strategy 2018 – 2021:
Creating Efficient Customer Channels to our Services

Amendment History
Version Date Name Description

5.0 03/08/2018 Lisa Lewis Review

Page 130



Mid Devon District Council 
Channel Access Strategy 2018 – 2021:
Creating Efficient Customer Channels to our Services

Table of Contents

1 Executive Summary 1-3

2 Channel Access strategy 4-6

3. Customer Insight 7

4. Channel Insight 8-9

5. Organisational Insight 10

5. Mid Devon District’s Channel Shift Strategies 12-14

6. Strategies for Specific Channels

 Channel shift
 Digital inclusion
 Accessibility
 Website
 Telephone
 Mobile 
 Face to face
 Email
 Post/paper
 Social media

7. Performance Management & Governance 15-16

Page 131



Mid Devon District Council 
Channel Access Strategy 2018 – 2021:
Creating Efficient Customer Channels to our Services

1

1 Executive Summary

1.1 Channel Access strategy
Mid Devon District Council (the Council) is a small district council, providing services for approximately 79,900 
residents and 2,671 businesses. In 2014 the Council wished to define a strategy, focussing on “putting the 
customer first” and encouraging channel shift. This revised strategy focuses on improving the quality of the 
customer’s experience, encouraging channel shift, reducing business process waste and avoidable contact 
whilst embracing “Digital and Business Transformation”.

Services need to be available through appropriate and cost effective contact channels designed with the needs 
and preferences of our customers in mind. Customers will be encouraged to use the most effective contact 
method, by creating a series of deliberate and targeted channel shifts. This will not discriminate against any 
individual by limiting the choice of contact method available.

The format of this strategy leads with an executive summary, including all key recommendations and the 
remainder looks in more detail at each of the customer access channels.

1.2 Key Success Factors
The key success factors of an effective channel access strategy are:

 Commitment to change – to re-think how we transact with all customers end to end, improve 
customer service and business processes, align back office process and staff to customer needs and 
provide a professional customer service while enabling reduction in cost.

 Detail - the deliberate design of the channel access strategy and business process for each type of 
service, bearing in mind the level of human interaction required and the needs of the targeted 
customer base.

 Constant review - of the effectiveness of the channel access strategy for each type of contact bearing 
in mind changing technologies and changing customer habits.

 Simplicity – the optimum channels for the organisation should be the easiest to use for the customer 
to drive a shift in customer behaviour.

 Inclusion – no group should be denied access to a service because of disability, language or cost of the 
access channel (e.g. mobile phone costs, broadband access). Options should be made available other 
than the organisation’s preferred method of contact.

 Cost effectiveness – particularly in the current economic climate, finding ways in which to deliver 
services effectively but at lower cost is increasingly important.

1.3 Key Recommendations
The key recommendations contained in this strategy are:

1.3.1 Digital and Business Transformation priorities
1. To maintain a robust website Content Management System (CMS) ensuring all content is focused 

on the needs of the customer, has simple easy to use transactions and provides a solution for 
mobile and tablet users.

2. Provide a single customer focused approach to all access channels so that customers are able to 
contact and transact with us in the most effective ways.

Page 132



Mid Devon District Council 
Channel Access Strategy 2018 – 2021:
Creating Efficient Customer Channels to our Services

2

3. To promote the website or any customer portal as the main access point for the council’s services 
for information and transactional services and provide mediated access through our face to face 
and contact centre staff.

4. To develop effective use of social media for engaging with our customers and communities.
5. To provide access to the internet and Wi-Fi in our offices.
6. To enable mobile working for staff.
7. To improve and extend use of the Document Management System (DMS) to support self-service 

and mobile working.
8. To develop action plans with all services for digital and business transformation, that reduce cost, 

increase efficiency and support customer self-service.

1.3.2 Customer Insight
All decisions and recommendations made throughout this strategy have been focused on the needs of 
our customers.  An exercise was carried out to develop personas for MDDC.  Details are available in 
the Business Improvement pages on SharePoint.

The transformation programme will involve engagement with all services to ensure the benefits of 
understanding customers are embedded in the redesign of services and that further customer journey 
mapping takes place to maximise the efficiency of our services.

1.3.3 Channel and Organisational Insight
From data currently available an exercise should be undertaken to identify the number of interactions 
per access channel and to formulate a cost per channel so decisions can be informed of where to most 
effectively channel shift interactions and prioritise the digital and business transformation programme.   
This will also inform workforce planning and identification of where resource and training needs are 
required.  See graphs at page 9

1.3.4  Avoidable Contact 
The re-design of services must reduce the need for our customers to contact us by reducing red tape, 
automating processes and working with partner authorities to provide “joined up services”. To 
ensure continued improvement we will:

 Establish a permanent Business Improvement Team to analyse data from our main customer 
access channels to look for opportunities to reduce the need for citizens to make unnecessary or 
multiple contact with the authority 

 Improve the number of customer queries that we are able to resolve first time face to face, on the 
telephone and on line by improving our back office processes 

 Broaden scope outside the organisation to actively look at end-to-end process opportunities to 
eliminate contact

1.3.5 Channel Shift
To design cost effective, efficient and user friendly means of contacting the council and then 
encourage our customers to use the channels that work best for them. All new services including 
information services will be designed around the user for 24/7 web access first wherever possible, 
ensuring all channels have access to the same customer information to accommodate ‘channel 
hopping’ and provide staff with a view of customer transactions that helps them to accommodate 
the customer needs. Page 133



Mid Devon District Council 
Channel Access Strategy 2018 – 2021:
Creating Efficient Customer Channels to our Services

3

1.3.6 Digital Inclusion 
To ensure that citizens who do not have access to digital channels at home or work are not 
disadvantaged when communicating with the council we will:

 Provide public internet access at our key locations, e.g. Leisure Centres, Council Offices and 
provide information on other available access in the area. 

 Provide support and assisted access to our website at the council’s face-to-face locations 
 Widely advertise our full choice of contact channels.

1.3.7 Channel Strategies
1.3.7.1 Website

To provide a single, comprehensive, easy to access and up to date website and customer portal that 
allows customers to transact and interact with the council 24/7

1.3.7.2 Telephone

To minimise the number of contact numbers published, to provide access to a fully trained officer 
and to reduce the amount of irritating low value calls that our residents have to make chasing failed 
delivery of service or communication.

1.3.7.3 Mobile, Smartphone/Tablet

To use the emerging mobile phone technology in a tactical manner to provide better access to 
information for targeted user groups, to reduce costs, increase speed of communication or reduce 
direct contact

1.3.7.4 Face to Face

To maintain our Face to Face services, in the most cost effective locations by fully trained expert 
officers

1.3.7.5 Email

To reduce the amount of incoming email communications by better use of electronic forms and 
other electronic channels

1.3.7.6 Post/Paper

To reduce the amount of post and paper communication by better use of electronic channels, 
including increase in emailed communication and use of any customer portals

1.3.7.7 Social Media

To communicate and engage with customers and community groups on Social Media to promote the 
web channel

1.4 In Conclusion
Adopting and implementing the recommendations in this strategy will lay the foundations for the 
development of all the Council’s customer access channels, with a focus on improving the quality of the 
customers’ experience, encouraging channel shift and reducing waste and avoidable contact through “Digital 
and Business Transformation’”.

Page 134



Mid Devon District Council 
Channel Access Strategy 2018 – 2021:
Creating Efficient Customer Channels to our Services

4

2 Channel Access Strategy

2.1 What is a Channel Access Strategy?
The Council has a responsibility to provide value for money to customers. The channels through which Council 
services are delivered and by which customers have contact with the Council, (be that via telephone, online, in 
person, or via other means), are a critical part of service provision, and there is an on-going impetus for them 
to be managed effectively and efficiently for everyone.

A channel access strategy is an organisation’s plan for the channels it will use to deliver services to, and 
interact with, its customers. A channel access strategy explains how an organisation will meet the contact 
demands of its customers using the resources it has available bearing in mind the needs of the customer. 
However, a channel access strategy is not simply a plan to move service provision to online channels.

2.2 Why is a Channel Access Strategy Important
Customers receive a high standard of customer service from many organisations. To ensure the Council follows 
this route, the organisation must continue to raise its own standards of service across all the channels it uses 
and offers.

In order to meet the needs of customers, the Council must provide services that are:

 Easily accessible
 Simple to use
 Streamlined
 Convenient
 Cost effective
 Robust

It is also important to bear in mind the target audience’s access to technology, the type and complexity of the 
contact, their personal preferences as well as their skill sets when selecting channels.

Rising internet use and customer expectations of accessing services online present an on-going opportunity for 
organisations. Competent online services are easy and quick to use, available whenever customers need them 
and have a relatively low administrative burden. Managed well, online access to services is a very effective 
channel with considerable benefits for customers and organisations.

The Council must however also meet the needs of people who do not (yet) have access to the internet. ‘Digital 
Inclusion’ therefore is a core element of any channel access strategy. 

2.3 Purpose of a Channel Access Strategy
To outline the broad principles for the ways in which the Council will deliver its services through a range of 
contact channels that provide better value for money, are more accessible and are designed with the 
customer in mind.

Page 135



Mid Devon District Council 
Channel Access Strategy 2018 – 2021:
Creating Efficient Customer Channels to our Services

5

2.3.1 The need for insight
The process of developing and implementing a channel access strategy needs to be guided by insight, and 
insight specifically relating to:

 The customer
 The services an organisation is providing and each service area in question
 The current delivery channels at the organisation’s disposal as well as those that may be available or 

need to be used in future
It is also important to understand the wider online services market, as expectations of online services are 
driven by customer experiences of using similar services of other organisations.

2.3.2 Organisational challenge
In considering a channel access strategy, there is often a considerable challenge and change to existing 
organisational structures. A channel access strategy needs to become an integral part of the structure of the 
organisation and the way the objectives of the organisation are realised. It cannot be imposed or “made to fit” 
onto existing practices and as such is likely to require or precipitate considerable organisational change. 

We also need to recognise that people will use different channels not just for different types of interactions, 
but also to suit their own convenience. 

2.4 Scope
1. This strategy document sets out the basic principles by which the Council will deliver its services to its 

customers through the contact channels currently available. 

Contact channels in scope include:
 Face to face
 Email
 Internet/Website/Portal
 Social media
 Telephone
 Mobile technology (including SMS text messaging, apps and mobile web)
 Automated telephone technology
 Post

2. This document focuses on three key types of contacts between the Council and its customers
 Transactions (e.g. reporting a repair or paying a bill) 
 Interactions (e.g. obtaining advice)
 Information (e.g. exploring available properties)

2.5 Channels Hierarchy and Design Principles
The choice of contact channels available to customers is growing all of the time as new technologies are 
developed and released. For example in the last 10 years we have seen the emergence and growth of channels 
such as social media (Facebook and Twitter), mobile internet, interactive TV and mobile phone applications 
(apps). Page 136



Mid Devon District Council 
Channel Access Strategy 2018 – 2021:
Creating Efficient Customer Channels to our Services

6

Without a channel access strategy many organisations typically adopt one of two approaches to using these 
channels by either 1) launching all of their products and services on all new channels without much thought to 
the relevance and cost of doing so or 2) focusing on switching their customer contact to the cheapest channel 
(often assumed to be the internet) without much thought as to the relevance of this channel to their entire 
customer base.

The key factors to an effective channel access strategy therefore are:

1. Commitment to change – The organisation must understand that this is about changing the way we work 
to ensure there is a seamless relationship between the customer, frontline staff and the back office 
process

2. Detail - the deliberate design of the channel access strategy for each type of service, bearing in mind the 
level of human interaction required and the needs of the targeted customer base

3. Review – the constant reviewing of the effectiveness of the channel access strategy for each type of 
contact bearing in mind changing technologies, channel hopping and changing customer habits

4. Simplicity – the optimum channels for the organisation should be the easiest to use for the customer to 
drive a shift in customer behaviour

5. Inclusion – no group should be denied access to a service because of disability, language or cost of the 
access channel (e.g. mobile phone costs, broadband access). Options should be made available other than 
the organisation’s preferred method of contact.

6. Cost effectiveness – particularly in the current economic climate, finding ways in which to deliver services 
effectively but at lower cost is increasingly important.

Page 137



Mid Devon District Council 
Channel Access Strategy 2018 – 2021:
Creating Efficient Customer Channels to our Services

7

3 Customer Insight
A key focus during the development of this strategy was to build an understanding of who the customers of 
Mid Devon District Council are and how they interact with the Council, so plans can be developed to channel 
shift as many interactions as possible to the cheaper channels.

A persona is a realistic but fictional character that represents one segment of the Council’s target audience. 
The Personas developed were based on the Council’s demographics and can be seen in the Business 
Improvement pages on SharePoint.

Key observations when developing the Personas and interacting with the Services at the Senior Management 
Engagement workshop, included:

 Highlighted different needs of the customer, important to understand local needs (one size does not fit all)
 One point of contact, simple to contact regardless of access channel used.
 Alerts on changes to services or planning notices
 Mixture of methods customers need to use - depends on the type of enquiry
 Potential for use of live chat (on line web tool)
 More services available online, booking and reporting etc.
 Some customers will never change / be on the internet, so must be able to support them
 Effective signposting is very important
 Simplify the website
 Provide joined up information from across services and organisations
 Need for effective Online payments
 Channels that suit customers varied lifestyles

3.1 Recommendations
Engage meaningfully with customers and services to ensure the benefits of customer insight are embedded in 
the redesign of services.

Page 138



Mid Devon District Council 
Channel Access Strategy 2018 – 2021:
Creating Efficient Customer Channels to our Services

8

4 Channel Insight
It is important to bear in mind the Council’s target audience’s access to technology, the type and complexity of 
the contact, their personal preferences as well their skill sets when selecting channels.

From the data currently available an exercise will be undertaken to identify the number of interactions per 
access channel and to formulate a cost per channel so decisions can be informed of where to most effectively 
channel shift interactions.

Customer interactions dealt with by service areas outside of Customer Services are logged on a number of 
different systems, some manual, and to a varying degree of detail. Data will need to be collated from these 
services and analysis will be required when delivering this strategy. The data collected so far does however 
highlight areas with a high volume of interactions and where the greatest savings may be possible. 

The costs used for each channel are those identified nationally by SOCITIM. Focusing on end to end process 
improvements will reduce channel costs and ensure efficient service delivery. 

Customer journey mapping data capture exercise.

Page 139



Mid Devon District Council 
Channel Access Strategy 2018 – 2021:
Creating Efficient Customer Channels to our Services

Page 9

Mid Devon transaction recording showing totals by channel

0 200000 400000 600000 800000 1000000 1200000

F2F

Email

Tel

Online forms**

Web*

17/18
13/14

 *Web hits – numbers are from 16/17 and 17/18 – data not available prior to this.
 ** Web forms – data is for 17/18 only

Page 140



Mid Devon District Council 
Channel Access Strategy 2018 – 2021:
Creating Efficient Customer Channels to our Services

10

5 Organisational Insight
Successful business transformation is about People, Process and Technology.  No one element should 
become more important than the other.  Only when each component is working cohesively will the 
business truly achieve improvement and benefits realisation.

An understanding of the organisation at a holistic level is therefore required.  What is the organisation’s 
purpose?  Who does it serve?  What are the component parts?  

Also understanding the complexity of customer need/journeys, measuring their activities, identifying the 
working and digital silos and the barriers these put in place between services and customers is pivotal to 
redesigning effective services.

Business Intelligence should form part of any attempt to transform or improve services.  This 
understanding of our customer’s need and our organisational function will then enable Mid Devon to 
resource the business efficiently and economically.

However, people are our most valuable resource.  To ensure change is successful and delivers the 
customer service and business improvements required the organisation will be required to invest 
resources in achieving the following:

 Ensure HR Business Partners are included in each service review to support staff 
 Where applicable remove digital and working silos and provide opportunities for staff to 

experience different service provision to broaden their skills
 Carry out a skills audit on staff to understand our most valuable resource
 Ensure the competency framework is aligned to organisational need
 Align workforce planning with service reviews to ensure staff are in the correct location and post to 

deliver the service
 Include staff at varying levels of the organisation are involved in service reviews
 Remove fear of change by open and transparent communication about what is happening
 Ensure a communication plan is in place at organisational and service level to facilitate change
 Provide access to training for staff
 Ensure managers are skilled in coaching and mentoring to assist staff through change

Page 141



Mid Devon District Council 
Channel Access Strategy 2018 – 2021:
Creating Efficient Customer Channels to our Services

11

6 Mid Devon District’s Channel Shift Strategies

6.1 Website
To encourage channel shift we must provide a cost effective, efficient and user friendly website that is 
available for customers to use at a time that suits their needs and that they are confident to use. An 
important part of this strategy will be to encourage customers to use the new channels if they are 
suitable for their needs.

1. Promote the website as the main access point for the council’s services.
2. Provide Wi-Fi and public access in our offices to assist customers to use self -service options.
3. Use marketing and communications expertise to direct customers to the website and on line 

services.
4. All new services will be designed around the user for 24/7 web access first wherever possible.
5. Ensure customers have access to the same information regardless of the channel they chose to 

contact us.

More details on our website strategy are at item 6.1 of this document.

6.2 Digital Inclusion Strategy
To ensure that citizens who do not have access to digital channels at home or work are not 
disadvantaged when communicating with the council

1. Provide public internet access at our key locations, e.g. Leisure Centres, Council Offices and provide 
information on other free access available.

2. Provide full mediated access to our website at the council’s face-to-face locations and over the 
phone. 

3. Widely advertise our full choice of contact channels, particularly for hard to reach groups, e.g. 
transient and socially excluded groups.

4. Never design a service that is available only through digital channels
5. Provide staff training to ensure they have the skills to support customers using digital transactions.

6.3  Accessibility of Contact Strategy
To provide a full range of contact channels for each of our services, with some channels 
providing enhanced access for customers with special requirements.

1. Continually engage with groups representing those with specific requirements for the way they 
contact us and ensure that an appropriate choice of channels is available to those individuals 

2. Ensure that we widely advertise our choice of contact channels, particularly hard to reach groups, for 
example young people or vision impaired customers 

3. To provide a comprehensive translation service to allow easy access to the authority for all through 
the face to face and telephone channels.

4. Provide disabled access to our buildings
5. Provide induction loops within our main offices for customers with impaired hearing.
6. Investigate the use of “live chat” to assist customers using our on line services.

Page 142



Mid Devon District Council 
Channel Access Strategy 2018 – 2021:
Creating Efficient Customer Channels to our Services

12

7 Strategies for Specific Channels

7.1 Website Strategy
To provide a single, comprehensive, easy to access and up to date website that allows anyone to transact 
and interact with the council 24/7

1. Maintain our website using Umbraco open source technology or similar, allowing greater 
flexibility to update and amend the website to reflect changes in services, technology and 
customer requirements.

2. To increase and improve on line forms to make them the channel of choice for simple, effective 
transactions that will encourage channel shift.

3. Use analysis of transaction failures to improve the website and on line functions.
4. Maintain a pool of key staff to update the website to ensure the site is always up to date.
5. Ensure that business cases for improvements reflect both increased public satisfaction, but also 

reduce contact centre and officer time and effort in providing mediated access.
6. To provide appropriate intuitive map based interfaces to both transactional and information 

systems
7. To integrate, where possible, all online transactions directly into back office systems to prevent 

double entering of information.
8. Remove telephone numbers and email addresses for individual officers, to reduce the need to 

update pages and ensure access to services is via one agreed point of contact.
9. To ensure that all council leaflets and literature are made available via the website in order to 

reduce printing, cost and environmental impact
10. To ensure that all communication is replicated on the council’s website
11. Provide “open” datasets online in order for interested parties to create their own interfaces and 

combinations increasing transparency
12. Constantly review and respond to feedback to improve the website

7.2 Telephone Strategy
To minimise the number of contact numbers published, to provide fast access to an expert 
officer and to reduce the amount of irritating low value calls that our residents have to make

1. To provide one main phone number for the organisation which can be easily found in order to 
make contacting the council straightforward for our residents  

2. Provide an automated telephone system for payments
3. To use local rate phone numbers wherever possible to make contacting the authority cheaper on 

“pay as you go” mobile phones  
4. To constantly improve the number of customer queries that we are able to resolve first time on 

the telephone
5. To use telephone call data and customer feedback to identify areas of improvement within the 

council and work to eliminate red tape, process failure and unnecessary cost to the public
6. Wherever possible, use the public website to transact in our Customer Services Centre to ensure 

that the site is fit for purpose for our residents and the same service is provided across the 
various access channels

Page 143



Mid Devon District Council 
Channel Access Strategy 2018 – 2021:
Creating Efficient Customer Channels to our Services

13

7.3 Mobile Strategy
To use the emerging mobile phone technology in a tactical manner to provide better access to 
information for targeted user groups, to reduce costs, increase speed of communication or 
reduce direct contact. 

1. To provide access to council telephone based services using only local rate telephone numbers to 
ensure the minimum costs to mobile phone users, particularly on “pay as you go” tariffs 

2. To use outbound text messaging to confirm appointments, chase payments and advise of items of 
interest

3. To develop new inbound and outbound text services, this can also be used for hearing impaired 
customers.

4. Provide a mobile/tablet rendered website.
5. Provide mobile solutions for staff to improve access to information on site visits reduce inefficiencies 

and remove double handling of data. 

7.4 Face to Face Strategy
To maintain our Face to Face services, but to provide these services in more appropriate and 
cost effective locations by fully trained expert officers

1. To seek opportunities to share face to face provision with other organisations
2. To provide mediated access to the Council website through our face to face staff and assist 

customers to use self-service.
3. To undertake process reviews to identify potential channel shift and quality improvements to our 

face to face service.
4. One and done approach
5. Provide Wi-Fi access in our main offices and leisure centres and provide information on other public 

access facilities.

7.5 Email and Online Strategy
To reduce the amount of email communication by better use of electronic forms and other 
electronic channels 

1. To provide a complete range of online forms to minimise the amount of emails handled 
2. To encourage use of outgoing e-mails to communicate rather than phone and post.
3. Email alerts for changes to expected services.
4. To provide status updates for any transactions that are started on the web but cannot be completed 

online – for example reporting a fault

7.6 Post/Paper Communication Strategy
To reduce the amount of post and paper communication by better use of electronic channels

1. To provide a complete range of online forms to minimise the amount of post handled  
2. To place more of our leaflets and information online in order to minimise printing and reduce our 

environmental impact 

Page 144



Mid Devon District Council 
Channel Access Strategy 2018 – 2021:
Creating Efficient Customer Channels to our Services

14

3. To integrate email and postal distribution lists in order to give people the choice to opt for email only
4. Use DMS for all paper correspondence to support mobile working  and customer self service
5. Use second class post as our main postal tariff
6. Use external print/post mail companies to maximise post discounts.

7.7 Social Media Strategy
To communicate and listen with customers on Social Media to promote the web channel

1. Develop our use of Social media
2. Use a monitoring management tool to identify individuals to respond to

Page 145



Mid Devon District Council 
Channel Access Strategy 2018 – 2021:
Creating Efficient Customer Channels to our Services

15

8 Performance Management and Governance

8.1 Channel Shift
 The Group Manager for Business Transformation and Customer Engagement will have the day to day 

responsibility for the Council’s Channel Access Strategy and implementation activities. An annual 
report is provided to Members on complaints and this will include data on customer transactions and 
changing trends.

 We will compare the effectiveness and usage of different channels for each service and seek to shift 
contacts to the most appropriate channels 

8.2 Website
 Customer Services will ensure that, through constant customer feedback and task based metrics the 

web content is always relevant, up to date and user friendly 
 The “exit pages” and transaction abandonment on the website will be analysed each month to see 

where transactions are failing and corrections made accordingly 
 ICT and Digital Services will ensure that the website is available and operational 24/7 
 An officer web group will maintain overall service excellence as evidenced by customer feedback, 

industry awards and adherence to Local Government Digital Services Standards 
 Obtain and maintain compliance with the upcoming European Union Web Accessibility Directive and 

“WCAG 2.0 level AA” rating for accessibility by all.

8.3 Mobile technology
 The Group Manager for ICT and GIS Services will have responsibility for the mobile phone strategy
 To monitor opportunities and take up rates of mobile technologies 
 Performance and usage of this channel will be monitored as services are developed

8.4 Customer Service
 Individual service managers will be responsible for their own services and monitor performance 

against the standards set in the Council’s Customer Care policy. The Group Manager for Business 
Transformation and Customer Engagement will monitor, review and update the Customer Care 
Policy.

 Our Corporate Induction process includes information on Customer care.

8.5 Digital and Business Transformation
 Business cases will be prepared to implement new technologies, processes or other activities to 

ensure the expenditure will result in efficiencies and savings to the Council. Any new systems must 
demonstrate a dual benefit, to the public, and in ease of use for staff to facilitate savings in time and 
efficiency for the Council. 

 As a result of our digital and business transformation programme:
o We will aim to reduce the volume of visitors to our offices, calls into our Customer Service 

Centre and Direct Dials by 20% over 5 years by moving these contacts to the web or other 
channels Page 146



Mid Devon District Council 
Channel Access Strategy 2018 – 2021:
Creating Efficient Customer Channels to our Services

16

o We will aim to improve processing times for high transaction services.
o We will aim to reduce the use of paper forms by 50% which will contribute to the reduction 

of:-
 Printing costs , postage costs and stationary costs

o This strategy will contribute to overall efficiency savings 

Page 147



This page is intentionally left blank



MDDC Report [title]
v

1

CABINET 27 SEPTEMBER 2018:               

PERFORMANCE AND RISK FOR 2018-19

Cabinet Member Cllr Clive Eginton  
Responsible Officer Director of Corporate Affairs & Business Transformation,    

Jill May
 
Reason for Report:  To provide Members with an update on performance against 
the corporate plan and local service targets for 2017-18 as well as providing an 
update on the key business risks.

RECOMMENDATION:  That the Cabinet reviews the Performance Indicators and 
Risks that are outlined in this report and feeds back any areas of concern.

Relationship to Corporate Plan: Corporate Plan priorities and targets are 
effectively maintained through the use of appropriate performance indicators and 
regular monitoring.

Financial Implications:  None identified

Legal Implications: None  

Risk Assessment:  If performance is not monitored we may fail to meet our 
corporate and local service plan targets or to take appropriate corrective action 
where necessary.  If key business risks are not identified and monitored they cannot 
be mitigated effectively.

Equality Impact Assessment:  No equality issues identified for this report.

1.0 Introduction

1.1 Appendices 1-5 provide Members with details of performance against the 
Corporate Plan and local service targets for the 2017-18 financial year.

1.2 When benchmarking information is available it is included.

1.3 Appendix 6 shows the higher impact risks from the Corporate Risk Register. 
This includes Operational and Health & Safety risks where the score meets 
the criteria for inclusion.  See 3.0 below.

1.4 Appendix 7 shows the risk matrix for the Council.

1.5 All appendices are produced from the Corporate Service Performance And 
Risk Management system (SPAR).

Page 149

Agenda Item 13.



MDDC Report [title]
v

2

2.0 Performance

Environment Portfolio - Appendix 1

2.1 Regarding the Corporate Plan Aim: Increase recycling and reduce the 
amount of waste: The % of household waste reused, recycled and 
composted; remains just below the target of 53.0% at 52.6%. The number of 
missed collections is very low and performance is good.

2.2 Regarding the Corporate Plan Aim: Reduce our carbon footprint: From May 
2018 all residual waste accepted at the Waste Transfer Station at Carlu Close 
can now be transported to the Exeter Energy from Waste (EfW) plant.

2.3 We have installed heat pumps at Unit 10 Market Walk as part of the 
refurbishment. The number of public electric car charging points at the Leisure 
centres has been doubled. There are now 2 at each centre.

2.4 Condition surveys of Council owned facilities have been carried out as part of 
phase 1 of the Asset Management Plan 2016-2020- Energy assessment.

Homes Portfolio - Appendix 2

2.5 Regarding the Corporate Plan Aim: Build more council houses: No new 
Council Houses were completed; however work is progressing on Birchen 
Lane (4), due September 2018, Burlescombe (6) due March and Palmerston 
Park (26) due June 2019. 

2.6 Regarding the Corporate Plan Aim: Facilitate the housing growth that Mid 
Devon needs, including affordable housing: Last year was very successful 
with both measures well above target. The Affordable homes delivered figure 
is reported quarterly. Bringing empty homes into use is again above target.

2.7 Regarding the Corporate Plan Aim: Planning and enhancing the built 
environment: Performance Planning Guarantee determined within 26 
weeks is now on target for Q1 and all 4 speed and quality measures were 
well above the required target.

2.8 Local Plan update: The Inspector has confirmed that the preliminary hearings 
into Policy J27 Land at Junction 27 and associated policies SP2 Higher Town, 
Sampford Peverell and TIV16 Blundells School, will take place on 20 and 21 
September 2018.

2.9 Average Days to re-let: This is a very challenging target; having achieved 
<16 days for the last 3 years the target has been reduced to 14 days. Whilst 
this has not been reached yet our performance on voids has been so good 
that peers have asked how we have achieved this.

2.10 Rent Arrears: It has been predicted for some time that rent arrears are likely 
to increase with welfare reform. Although outside target, performance remains 
in the top quartile when compared to that of other providers. Officers are 

Page 150



MDDC Report [title]
v

3

currently devoting more time to income collection and are giving it greater 
priority.

Economy Portfolio - Appendix 3

2.11 Regarding the Corporate Plan Aim: Focus on business retention and 
growth of existing businesses: we record Businesses assisted which is 
on target; they have to be assisted for a minimum of an hour to be included in 
this figure.

2.12 Regarding the Corporate Plan Aim: Improve and regenerate our town 
centres with the aim of increasing footfall, dwell-time and spend in our 
town centres: for Empty Shops, although the vacancy rates are below our 
target they still are better than the national average vacancy rate which was 
11.2% at the end of 2017.The South West region had the 4th highest loss of 
Retail High Street units in 2017, so we could be considered to have done well 
as a District.

Community Portfolio - Appendix 4 

2.13 Other: Although responsibility for legal compliance will always rest with the 
business, MDDC’s responsibility is to carry out the food premises inspections 
required (for A & B - High Risk premises). The figure for premises compliant 
with food safety law has been consistently at 85% so far this year.

Corporate - Appendix 5

2.14 Working days lost due to sickness is well below target but not higher than 
the average for English authorities according to the LGA. The Sickness 
Absence Action Plan has been drafted and will go to Leadership Team for 
approval this month.

2.15 The Response to FOI requests is still below target. The Information 
Management Team has taken steps to try to improve performance such as 
using generic email addresses, giving more guidance over responses and 
checking with staff that a request belongs to a service before it is assigned. 

3.0 Risk

3.1 The Corporate risk register is reviewed by Management Team (MT) and 
updated; risk reports to committees include risks with a total score of 10 or 
more. (Appendix 6) 

3.2 Appendix 7 shows the risk matrix for MDDC for this quarter. If risks are not 
scored they are included in the matrix at their inherent score which will be 
higher than their current score would be.

Page 151



MDDC Report [title]
v

4

4.0 Conclusion and Recommendation

4.1 That the Cabinet reviews the performance indicators and any risks that are 
outlined in this report and feeds back any areas of concern.   

Contact for more Information: Catherine Yandle Group Manager for Performance, 
Governance and Data Security ext 4975

Circulation of the Report: Management Team and Cabinet Member

Page 152



Corporate Plan PI Report Environment

Monthly report for 2018-2019
Arranged by Aims

Filtered by Aim: Priorities Environment
For MDDC - Services

Key to Performance Status:

Performance Indicators: No Data
Well below 

target
Below target On target Above target

Well above 
target

* indicates that an entity is linked to the Aim by its parent Service 

Corporate Plan PI Report Environment

Priorities: Environment

Aims: Increase recycling and reduce the amount of waste

Performance Indicators

Title Prev Year 
(Period)

Prev 
Year 
End

Annual 
Target

Apr 
Act

May 
Act

Jun 
Act

Jul 
Act

Aug 
Act

Sep 
Act

Oct 
Act

Nov 
Act

Dec 
Act

Jan 
Act

Feb 
Act

Mar 
Act

Actual 
to 

Date

Group 
Manager

Officer 
Notes

Residual 
household 
waste per 
household 
(measured 
in 
Kilograms)

98.56 (3/12) 378.00 32.90 63.00 96.80 Stuart 
Noyce

(April - 
July) July 
2018 data 
has not 
yet been 
received 
from 
Devon 
County 
Council 
(LD)

% of 
Household 
Waste 
Reused, 
Recycled 
and 
Composted

51.3% (3/12) 53.0% 50.0% 52.9% 52.6% Stuart 
Noyce

(July) July 
2018 data 
has not 
yet been 
received 
from 
Devon 
County 
Council 
(LD)

Net annual 
cost of 
waste 
service per 
household

£45.31 n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a Stuart 
Noyce

Number of 
Households 
on 
Chargeable 
Garden 
Waste

9,107 (3/12) 9,500 9,613 9,848 9,912 Stuart 
Noyce

% of 
missed 
collections 
reported 
(refuse and 
organic 
waste)

0.03% (4/12) 0.03% 0.02% 0.02% 0.03% 0.03% Stuart 
Noyce

(July) % of 
missed 
collections 
continue 
to be on 
target (LD)

% of 
Missed 
Collections 
logged 
(recycling)

0.03% (4/12) 0.03% 0.01% 0.01% 0.01% 0.01% Stuart 
Noyce

(July) % of 
missed 
collections 
remain 
under 
target (LD)

Aims: Protect the natural environment

Printed by: Catherine Yandle SPAR.net Print Date: 16 August 2018 16:37

Page 1 of 2SPAR.net - Corporate Plan PI Report Environment

16/08/2018http://mddcweb5n/sparnet/default.aspx?id=5237&type=30&nogif=0

Page 153



Corporate Plan PI Report Environment

Priorities: Environment

Aims: Protect the natural environment

Performance Indicators

Title Prev 
Year 

(Period)

Prev 
Year 
End

Annual 
Target

Apr 
Act

May 
Act

Jun 
Act

Jul 
Act

Aug 
Act

Sep 
Act

Oct 
Act

Nov 
Act

Dec 
Act

Jan 
Act

Feb 
Act

Mar 
Act

Actual 
to 

Date

Group 
Manager

Officer Notes

Number of 
Fixed Penalty 
Notices 
(FPNs) Issued 
(Environment)

13 (4/12) 3 4 7 8 Stuart 
Noyce

Printed by: Catherine Yandle SPAR.net Print Date: 16 August 2018 16:37

Page 2 of 2SPAR.net - Corporate Plan PI Report Environment

16/08/2018http://mddcweb5n/sparnet/default.aspx?id=5237&type=30&nogif=0

Page 154



Corporate Plan PI Report Homes

Monthly report for 2018-2019
Arranged by Aims

Filtered by Aim: Priorities Homes
For MDDC - Services

Key to Performance Status:

Performance Indicators: No Data
Well below 

target
Below target On target Above target

Well above 
target

* indicates that an entity is linked to the Aim by its parent Service 

Corporate Plan PI Report Homes

Priorities: Homes

Aims: Build more council houses

Performance Indicators

Title Prev 
Year 

(Period)

Prev 
Year 
End

Annual 
Target

Apr 
Act

May 
Act

Jun 
Act

Jul 
Act

Aug 
Act

Sep 
Act

Oct 
Act

Nov 
Act

Dec 
Act

Jan 
Act

Feb 
Act

Mar 
Act

Actual 
to 

Date

Group 
Manager

Officer Notes

Build Council 
Houses

0 (5/12) 26 0 0 0 0 0 Angela 
Haigh

(May) Birchen Lane due May 
(CY)

Aims: Facilitate the housing growth that Mid devon needs, including affordable housing

Performance Indicators

Title Prev 
Year 

(Period)

Prev 
Year 
End

Annual 
Target

Apr 
Act

May 
Act

Jun 
Act

Jul 
Act

Aug 
Act

Sep 
Act

Oct 
Act

Nov 
Act

Dec 
Act

Jan 
Act

Feb 
Act

Mar 
Act

Actual 
to 

Date

Group 
Manager

Officer Notes

Number of 
affordable 
homes 
delivered 
(gross)

26 (1/4) 80 n/a n/a 14 n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a Angela 
Haigh

Deliver 15 
homes per year 
by bringing 
Empty Houses 
into use

23 (4/12) 72 13 19 26 29 Simon 
Newcombe

Aims: Other

Performance Indicators

Title Prev Year 
(Period)

Prev 
Year 
End

Annual 
Target

Apr Act May Act Jun Act Jul Act Aug 
Act

Sep 
Act

Oct 
Act

Nov 
Act

Dec 
Act

Jan 
Act

Feb 
Act

Mar 
Act

Actual 
to 

Date

Group 
Manager

Officer 
Notes

% Decent 
Council 
Homes

99.9% (4/12) 100.0% 97.3% 99.9% 99.7% 99.9% Angela 
Haigh

% 
Properties 
With a 
Valid Gas 
Safety 
Certificate

99.82% (4/12) 100.00% 99.69% 99.78% 99.73% 99.91% Angela 
Haigh

Rent 
Collected 
as a 
Proportion 
of Rent 
Owed

96.87% (4/12) 100.00% 95.34% 96.76% 97.09% 97.72% Angela 
Haigh

Current 
Tenant 
Arrears as 
a 
Proportion 
of Annual 
Rent Debit

1.30% (4/12) 1.00% 1.13% 1.17% 1.29% 1.34% Angela 
Haigh

Dwelling 
rent lost 

0.5% (4/12) 0.71% 0.67% 0.70% 0.65% Angela 
Haigh

Printed by: Catherine Yandle SPAR.net Print Date: 03 September 2018 11:01

Page 1 of 2SPAR.net - Corporate Plan PI Report Homes

03/09/2018http://mddcweb5n/sparnet/default.aspx?id=5250&type=30&nogif=0

Page 155



Corporate Plan PI Report Homes

Priorities: Homes

Aims: Other

Performance Indicators

Title Prev Year 
(Period)

Prev 
Year 
End

Annual 
Target

Apr Act May Act Jun Act Jul Act Aug 
Act

Sep 
Act

Oct 
Act

Nov 
Act

Dec 
Act

Jan 
Act

Feb 
Act

Mar 
Act

Actual 
to 

Date

Group 
Manager

Officer 
Notes

due to 
voids

Average 
Days to 
Re-Let 
Local 
Authority 
Housing

15.8days (4/12) 14.0days 16.6days 15.9days 16.1days 15.6days Angela 
Haigh

Printed by: Catherine Yandle SPAR.net Print Date: 03 September 2018 11:01

Page 2 of 2SPAR.net - Corporate Plan PI Report Homes

03/09/2018http://mddcweb5n/sparnet/default.aspx?id=5250&type=30&nogif=0

Page 156



Corporate Plan PI Report Economy

Monthly report for 2018-2019
Arranged by Aims

Filtered by Aim: Priorities Economy
For MDDC - Services

Key to Performance Status:

Performance Indicators: No Data
Well below 

target
Below target On target Above target

Well above 
target

* indicates that an entity is linked to the Aim by its parent Service 

Corporate Plan PI Report Economy

Priorities: Economy

Aims: Attract new businesses to the District

Performance Indicators

Title Prev Year 
(Period)

Prev 
Year 
End

Annual 
Target

Apr 
Act

May 
Act

Jun 
Act

Jul 
Act

Aug 
Act

Sep 
Act

Oct 
Act

Nov 
Act

Dec 
Act

Jan 
Act

Feb 
Act

Mar 
Act

Actual 
to 

Date

Group 
Manager

Officer Notes

Number of 
business 
rate 
accounts

2,942 (3/12) 3,000 3,004 3,004 3,044 Andrew 
Jarrett

Aims: Focus on business retention and growth of existing businesses

Performance Indicators

Title Prev 
Year 

(Period)

Prev 
Year 
End

Annual 
Target

Apr 
Act

May 
Act

Jun 
Act

Jul 
Act

Aug 
Act

Sep 
Act

Oct 
Act

Nov 
Act

Dec 
Act

Jan 
Act

Feb 
Act

Mar 
Act

Actual 
to 

Date

Group 
Manager

Officer Notes

Businesses 
assisted

92 (4/12) 250 25 49 69 89 None (July) Estimated (JB)

Aims: Improve and regenerate our town centres

Performance Indicators

Title Prev Year 
(Period)

Prev 
Year 
End

Annual 
Target

Apr 
Act

May 
Act

Jun 
Act

Jul 
Act

Aug 
Act

Sep 
Act

Oct 
Act

Nov 
Act

Dec 
Act

Jan 
Act

Feb 
Act

Mar 
Act

Actual 
to 

Date

Group 
Manager

Officer 
Notes

Increase in Car 
Parking Vends

54,086 (3/12) 49,410 51,507 51,931 Andrew 
Jarrett

The Number of 
Empty Shops 
(TIVERTON)

19 (1/4) 18 n/a n/a 22 n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a Adrian 
Welsh

(Quarter 1) 
22 vacant 
units 
representing 
a vacancy 
rate of 9.4% 
(JB)

The Number of 
Empty Shops 
(CREDITON)

8 (1/4) 8 n/a n/a 10 n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a Adrian 
Welsh

(Quarter 1) 
10 vacant 
units 
representing 
a vacancy 
rate of 8.5% 
(JB)

The Number of 
Empty Shops 
(CULLOMPTON)

9 (2/4) 8 n/a n/a 6 n/a n/a 7 n/a n/a n/a n/a Adrian 
Welsh

(Quarter 1) 6 
vacant units 
representing 
a vacancy 
rate of 7.1% 
(JB)

Aims: Other

Printed by: Catherine Yandle SPAR.net Print Date: 28 August 2018 14:32

Page 1 of 2SPAR.net - Corporate Plan PI Report Economy

28/08/2018http://mddcweb5n/sparnet/default.aspx?id=5239&type=30&nogif=0

Page 157



Corporate Plan PI Report Economy

Priorities: Economy

Aims: Other

Performance Indicators

Title Prev 
Year 

(Period)

Prev 
Year 
End

Annual 
Target

Apr 
Act

May 
Act

Jun 
Act

Jul 
Act

Aug 
Act

Sep 
Act

Oct 
Act

Nov 
Act

Dec 
Act

Jan 
Act

Feb 
Act

Mar 
Act

Actual 
to 

Date

Group 
Manager

Officer Notes

Funding 
awarded to 
support 
economic 
projects

£0 (1/4) n/a n/a £0 n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a Adrian 
Welsh

(Quarter 1) Applications 
amounting to £431,200 have 
been submitted with support 
from EDR, but the outcome 
these awards is not yet 
known (JB)

Printed by: Catherine Yandle SPAR.net Print Date: 28 August 2018 14:32

Page 2 of 2SPAR.net - Corporate Plan PI Report Economy

28/08/2018http://mddcweb5n/sparnet/default.aspx?id=5239&type=30&nogif=0

Page 158



Corporate Plan PI Report Community

Monthly report for 2018-2019
Arranged by Aims

Filtered by Aim: Priorities Community 
Filtered by Flag: Exclude: Corporate Plan Aims 2016 to 2020

For MDDC - Services

Key to Performance Status:

Performance Indicators: No Data
Well below 

target
Below target On target Above target

Well above 
target

* indicates that an entity is linked to the Aim by its parent Service 

Corporate Plan PI Report Community

Priorities: Community 

Aims: Promote physical activity, health and wellbeing

Performance Indicators

Title Prev 
Year 

(Period)

Prev 
Year 
End

Annual 
Target

Apr 
Act

May 
Act

Jun 
Act

Jul 
Act

Aug 
Act

Sep 
Act

Oct 
Act

Nov 
Act

Dec 
Act

Jan 
Act

Feb 
Act

Mar 
Act

Actual 
to 

Date

Group 
Manager

Officer Notes

GP Referrals 22 (5/12) 22 22 22 22 22 Corinne 
Parnall

(August) 22 (K)

Aims: Other

Performance Indicators

Title Prev Year 
(Period)

Prev 
Year 
End

Annual 
Target

Apr 
Act

May 
Act

Jun 
Act

Jul Act Aug 
Act

Sep 
Act

Oct 
Act

Nov 
Act

Dec 
Act

Jan 
Act

Feb 
Act

Mar 
Act

Actual 
to 

Date

Group 
Manager

Officer 
Notes

Number of 
social media 
communications 
MDDC send out

152 (5/12) 30 69 66 66 75 77 Jane 
Lewis

(August) 
No. of 
Facebook 
Posts 
Published 
= 36
No. of 
Tweets 
Tweeted = 
41 (MA)

Number of web 
hits per month

27,028 (5/12) 35,191 33,432 29,453 30,317 31,082 Jane 
Lewis

Compliance with 
food safety law

90% (5/12) 90% 85% 85% 85% 85% 85% Simon 
Newcombe

Printed by: Catherine Yandle SPAR.net Print Date: 06 September 2018 15:18

Page 1 of 1SPAR.net - Corporate Plan PI Report Community

06/09/2018http://mddcweb5n/sparnet/default.aspx?id=5241&type=30&nogif=0

Page 159



This page is intentionally left blank



Corporate Plan PI Report Corporate

Monthly report for 2018-2019
Arranged by Aims

Filtered by Aim: Priorities Delivering a Well-Managed Council
For MDDC - Services

Key to Performance Status:

Performance Indicators: No Data
Well below 

target
Below target On target Above target

Well above 
target

* indicates that an entity is linked to the Aim by its parent Service 

Corporate Plan PI Report Corporate

Priorities: Delivering a Well-Managed Council

Aims: Put customers first

Performance Indicators

Title Prev Year 
(Period)

Prev 
Year 
End

Annual 
Target

Apr Act May Act Jun Act Jul Act Aug Act Sep 
Act

Oct 
Act

Nov 
Act

Dec 
Act

Jan 
Act

Feb 
Act

Mar 
Act

Actual 
to 

Date

Group 
Manager

Officer 
Notes

% of 
complaints 
resolved 
w/in 
timescales 
(10 days - 12 
weeks)

92% (5/12) 90% 94% 96% 89% 89% 86% Lisa 
Lewis

(August) 
Report 
run at 
end of 
August, 
will 
check 
figures 
again at 
the end 
of the 12 
week 
period 
for more 
accurate 
figures. 
(RT)

Number of 
Complaints

27 (5/12) 18 28 32 37 28 Lisa 
Lewis

New 
Performance 
Planning 
Guarantee 
determine 
within 26 
weeks 

99% (1/4) 100% n/a n/a 100% n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a Jenny 
Clifford, 
David 
Green

Major 
applications 
determined 
within 13 
weeks (over 
last 2 years)

83% (1/4) 60% n/a n/a 86% n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a Jenny 
Clifford, 
David 
Green

Minor 
applications 
determined 
within 8 
weeks (over 
last 2 years)

79% (1/4) 65% n/a n/a 73% n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a Jenny 
Clifford, 
David 
Green

Major 
applications 
overturned 
at appeal 
(over last 2 
years)

4% (1/4) 10% n/a n/a 3% n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a Jenny 
Clifford, 
David 
Green

Minor 
applications 
overturned 
at appeal 
(over last 2 
years)

0% (1/4) 10% n/a n/a 0% n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a Jenny 
Clifford, 
David 
Green

Response to 
FOI 
Requests 
(within 20 
working 
days)

73% (5/12) 100% 97% 99% 99% 97% 96% Catherine 
Yandle

(August) 
68 
replies, 
3 late 
(CY)

Working 
Days Lost 

3.12days (5/12) 7.00days 0.64days 1.34days 2.18days 2.82days 3.42days Jane 
Cottrell

Printed by: Catherine Yandle SPAR.net Print Date: 06 September 2018 17:17

Page 1 of 2SPAR.net - Corporate Plan PI Report Corporate

06/09/2018http://mddcweb5n/sparnet/default.aspx?id=5244&type=30&nogif=0

Page 161



Corporate Plan PI Report Corporate

Priorities: Delivering a Well-Managed Council

Aims: Put customers first

Performance Indicators

Title Prev Year 
(Period)

Prev 
Year 
End

Annual 
Target

Apr Act May Act Jun Act Jul Act Aug Act Sep 
Act

Oct 
Act

Nov 
Act

Dec 
Act

Jan 
Act

Feb 
Act

Mar 
Act

Actual 
to 

Date

Group 
Manager

Officer 
Notes

Due to 
Sickness 
Absence

Return on 
Commercial 
Portfolio

7.5% n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a Andrew 
Busby

% total 
Council tax 
collected - 
monthly

51.60% (5/12) 98.50% 11.32% 20.63% 29.48% 38.51% 47.43% Andrew 
Jarrett

% total 
NNDR 
collected - 
monthly

50.41% (5/12) 99.20% 12.15% 23.60% 32.20% 40.39% 47.45% Andrew 
Jarrett

Number of 
visitors per 
month 

2,724 (5/12) 2,750 2,172 2,351 2,323 2,393 2,341 Lisa 
Lewis

Satisfaction 
with front-
line services

97.59% (5/12) 80.00% 0.00% 0.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% Lisa 
Lewis

Increase 
Number of 
Digital 
payments

31,703 (5/12) 70,960 6,908 14,226 20,885 27,772 34,330 Lisa 
Lewis

Printed by: Catherine Yandle SPAR.net Print Date: 06 September 2018 17:17

Page 2 of 2SPAR.net - Corporate Plan PI Report Corporate

06/09/2018http://mddcweb5n/sparnet/default.aspx?id=5244&type=30&nogif=0

Page 162



Risk Report Appendix 6

Report for 2018-2019
Filtered by Flag:Include: * CRR 5+ / 15+

For MDDC - Services
Filtered by Performance Status: Exclude Risk Status: Low

Not Including Risk Child Projects records or Mitigating Action records

Key to Performance Status:

Risks: No Data (0+) High (15+) Medium (6+) Low (1+)

Risk Report Appendix 6

Risk: Asset Management • The Council may not be optimising its portfolio of assets
• Assets purchased without prior approval may not be supported by Council policies and systems
• Misuse of assets could have a financial impact to the Council
• Inadequate inventory records could invalidate insurance claims, disrupt the business continuity 
process and hide instances of theft
• Failure to maintain the Asset Management Strategy could result in an inefficient use of resources
Not making a commercial ROI 

Effects (Impact/Severity): • Theft of stocks and stores 

Causes (Likelihood): • Mismanagement of stocks and stores 

Service: Property Services   

Current Status: Medium 
(12)

Current Risk Severity: 3 - 
Medium  

Current Risk Likelihood: 4 - 
High  

Service Manager: Andrew Busby 

Review Note: Capital Asset Management Strategy on the website 

Risk: Commercial Land supply Failure to identify commercial land supply will stunt economic 
growth 

Effects (Impact/Severity): 

Causes (Likelihood): 

Service: Planning   

Current Status: Medium 
(10)

Current Risk Severity: 5 - Very 
High  

Current Risk Likelihood: 2 - 
Low  

Service Manager: Jenny Clifford 

Review Note: LT review 

Risk: Contingency - Business Continuity Having an ineffective Business Continuity Plan in place 
to complement the Emergency Plan, Disaster Recovery Plan and Risk Management Plan leading to 
service failure and loss in reputation. 

Effects (Impact/Severity): • Staff are not enabled or adequately prepared to deal with 

incidents in the event that senior managers are unavailable
• Poor management of a major incident will affect the Council’s reputation

Printed by: Catherine Yandle SPAR.net
Print Date: 06 September 2018 

15:21

Page 1 of 16SPAR.net - Risk Report Appendix 6

06/09/2018http://mddcweb5n/sparnet/default.aspx?id=5218&type=30&nogif=0

Page 163



Risk Report Appendix 6
• There is a risk to decision-making processes and maintaining quorate committees in the event of 
loss of Members.
• Software Failure, leading to potential inability to pay staff, creditors, benefits etc and inability to 
access key data affecting service delivery and customer experience
• Increase in workforce homeworking 

Causes (Likelihood): • Severe weather including snow, flooding and heatwaves can cause 

disruption to normal service operation
• Severe space weather can cause disruption to a range of technologies and infrastructure, 
including communications systems, electronic circuits and power grids.
• Fuel strikes
• Industrial action
Failure to plan for this and implement contingency procedures will affect service delivery.

Service: Governance   

Current Status: Medium 
(12)

Current Risk Severity: 4 - 
High  

Current Risk Likelihood: 3 - 
Medium  

Service Manager: Catherine Yandle 

Review Note: Service BCP added to template for Service Business Plans due by end of 

September. This risk will be reviewed again in October. 

Risk: Corp RA - Recycling Income Reduction in material income levels due to market forces.

Effects (Impact/Severity): 

Causes (Likelihood): 

Service: Street Scene Services   

Current Status: Medium 
(12)

Current Risk Severity: 4 - 
High  

Current Risk Likelihood: 3 - 
Medium  

Service Manager: Stuart Noyce 

Review Note: 

Risk: Dangerous Equipment Risks associated with using powered equipment and machinery or 
that which has moving parts eg fans, woodworking machines, abrasive wheels. Also risks with 
using powered portable tools eg electric drill, off-hand grinders as well as manual tools eg knife, 
guillotine.
There are risks that some equipment may produce electromagnetic interference with pace-makers.

Effects (Impact/Severity): High if no PPE worn or risk assessments not followed 

Causes (Likelihood): medium if procedures followed.  

Service: Property Services   

Current Status: Medium 
(12)

Current Risk Severity: 4 - 
High  

Current Risk Likelihood: 3 - 
Medium  

Service Manager: Andrew Busby 

Review Note: 

Printed by: Catherine Yandle SPAR.net
Print Date: 06 September 2018 

15:21

Page 2 of 16SPAR.net - Risk Report Appendix 6

06/09/2018http://mddcweb5n/sparnet/default.aspx?id=5218&type=30&nogif=0

Page 164



Risk Report Appendix 6

Risk: Economic Development Service Failure to promote economic activity within the District will 
suppress the potential for new jobs and increased prosperity for residents

A continuing economic recession could jeopardise our ability to achieve corporate objective of 'A 
Thriving Economy' 

Effects (Impact/Severity): - Inability to meet Council objectives

- A lack of inward investment
- Uncertain economic recovery, impact on employment and infrastructure development 

Causes (Likelihood): - Decline in national macro-economics 

Service: Community Development   

Current Status: No 
Data

Current Risk Severity: 4 - 
High  

Current Risk Likelihood: 3 - 
Medium  

Service Manager: Adrian Welsh 

Review Note: Economic Strategy currently being prepared which will focus the District Council's 

intervention in a more focused way and will also enable improved monitoring for this risk. 

Risk: Evictions Tenants being evicted could become violent.  

Effects (Impact/Severity): 

Causes (Likelihood): 

Service: Housing Services   

Current Status: Medium 
(10)

Current Risk Severity: 5 - Very 
High  

Current Risk Likelihood: 2 - 
Low  

Service Manager: Claire Fry 

Review Note: The assessment of the risk remains the same, as the Housing Service is required 

to house vulnerable people with complex needs who may exhibit challenging behaviour if they feel 
threatened. An eviction can be a very traumatic event for such people. 

Risk: Five year housing land Supply Risk: Housing land supply. Inability to demonstrate the 
required 5 year housing land supply (+20% ) until Local Plan Review approved 

Effects (Impact/Severity): Effects (Impact /severity): 

- Receipt of speculative housing applications in unplanned locations with less community benefit 
and less infrastructure / coordination compared with allocated sites. 
- Objections 
- Pressure on major application appeal performance (Government indicator of quality of decision 
making). Risk of intervention: loss of fee and less local control over major application decision 
making.

Causes (Likelihood): - Lack of sufficient housing completions, housing market conditions. 

Service: Planning   

Current Status: Medium 
(12)

Current Risk Severity: 4 - 
High  

Current Risk Likelihood: 3 - 
Medium  

Service Manager: Jenny Clifford 

Review Note: LT review 

Printed by: Catherine Yandle SPAR.net
Print Date: 06 September 2018 

15:21

Page 3 of 16SPAR.net - Risk Report Appendix 6

06/09/2018http://mddcweb5n/sparnet/default.aspx?id=5218&type=30&nogif=0

Page 165



Risk Report Appendix 6

Risk: GDPR compliance That the Council cannot demonstrate that we are prepared for GDPR 

Effects (Impact/Severity): 

Causes (Likelihood): 

Service: Governance   

Current Status: Medium 
(10)

Current Risk Severity: 5 - Very 
High  

Current Risk Likelihood: 2 - 
Low  

Service Manager: Catherine Yandle 

Review Note: Information Audit Action Plan agreed today 

Risk: H&S RA - Carlu Close Depot Inherent risk at Carlu Close site - highest scoring risk 

Effects (Impact/Severity): 

Causes (Likelihood): 

Service: Street Scene Services   

Current Status: Medium 
(10)

Current Risk Severity: 5 - Very 
High  

Current Risk Likelihood: 2 - 
Low  

Service Manager: Stuart Noyce 

Review Note: Changes have been made to operations at Carlu Close such as not idling engines 

inside the building, varying fan use, leaving main doors open to improve ventilation etc. Further air 
quality testing results are awaited. 

Risk: H&S RA - Enforcement Officer Enforcement Officer Risk assessment 

Effects (Impact/Severity): 

Causes (Likelihood): 

Service: Street Scene Services   

Current Status: Medium 
(10)

Current Risk Severity: 5 - Very 
High  

Current Risk Likelihood: 2 - 
Low  

Service Manager: Stuart Noyce 

Review Note: Limited access to support while working alone -

Emergency help button installed on hand held device with direct relay to depot. 
Officers registered with Taunton Deane Lone Worker programme 

Risk: H&S RA - Litter picking Litter picking - Risk of accident/injury from vehicles when working 
roadside 

Effects (Impact/Severity): 

Causes (Likelihood): 

Service: Grounds Maintenance   

Current Status: Medium 
(10)

Current Risk Severity: 5 - Very 
High  

Current Risk Likelihood: 2 - 
Low  

Service Manager: Darren Beer 

Review Note: Per email 20 August 2018 

Printed by: Catherine Yandle SPAR.net
Print Date: 06 September 2018 

15:21

Page 4 of 16SPAR.net - Risk Report Appendix 6

06/09/2018http://mddcweb5n/sparnet/default.aspx?id=5218&type=30&nogif=0

Page 166



Risk Report Appendix 6

Risk: H&S RA - Recycling Depot Operatives Risk assessment for role - Highest Risks scored - 
Vehicle Movements inside Depot/Risk of Fire 

Effects (Impact/Severity): 

Causes (Likelihood): 

Service: Street Scene Services   

Current Status: Medium 
(10)

Current Risk Severity: 5 - Very 
High  

Current Risk Likelihood: 2 - 
Low  

Service Manager: Stuart Noyce 

Review Note: SSoW/designated walkways/PPE/Reversing Assistants/Equipment servicing.

Regular alarm testing and equipment checks/flammable materials outside. 

Risk: H&S RA - Refuse Driver/Loader Risk Assessment for Role - Highest risk from role RA. - 
Risk of RTA from severe weather conditions 

Effects (Impact/Severity): 

Causes (Likelihood): 

Service: Street Scene Services   

Current Status: Medium 
(10)

Current Risk Severity: 5 - Very 
High  

Current Risk Likelihood: 2 - 
Low  

Service Manager: Stuart Noyce 

Review Note: SSoW/Training & Instruction/Mobile phones 

Risk: H&S RA - Street Cleansing Operative Risk assessment for role - highest risk from role - 
Risk of accident/injury when working roadside 

Effects (Impact/Severity): 

Causes (Likelihood): 

Service: Street Scene Services   

Current Status: Medium 
(10)

Current Risk Severity: 5 - Very 
High  

Current Risk Likelihood: 2 - 
Low  

Service Manager: Stuart Noyce 

Review Note: 

Printed by: Catherine Yandle SPAR.net
Print Date: 06 September 2018 

15:21

Page 5 of 16SPAR.net - Risk Report Appendix 6

06/09/2018http://mddcweb5n/sparnet/default.aspx?id=5218&type=30&nogif=0

Page 167



Risk Report Appendix 6

Risk: H&S RA - Tractor Operations Tractor with Side Arm Flail Operations (Where applicable this 
RA is to be used in conjunction with the Working by roadside RA and the Hand Held Hedge Cutter 
RA) 

Effects (Impact/Severity): 

Causes (Likelihood): 

Service: Grounds Maintenance   

Current Status: Medium 
(10)

Current Risk Severity: 5 - Very 
High  

Current Risk Likelihood: 2 - 
Low  

Service Manager: Darren Beer 

Review Note: 

Risk: H&S RA - Tree Operations including the use of chainsaws Tree operations including the 
use of chainsaws 

Effects (Impact/Severity): 

Causes (Likelihood): 

Service: Grounds Maintenance   

Current Status: Medium 
(12)

Current Risk Severity: 4 - 
High  

Current Risk Likelihood: 3 - 
Medium  

Service Manager: Darren Beer 

Review Note: 

Risk: H&S RA - Use of GM vehicles (inc. loading, tipping, trailers and use of water 
bowser) Loading vehicles + unloading on site 

Effects (Impact/Severity): 

Causes (Likelihood): 

Service: Grounds Maintenance   

Current Status: Medium 
(10)

Current Risk Severity: 5 - Very 
High  

Current Risk Likelihood: 2 - 
Low  

Service Manager: Darren Beer 

Review Note: 

Risk: H&S RA - Working at height  Use of Ladders 

Effects (Impact/Severity): 

Causes (Likelihood): 

Service: Grounds Maintenance   

Current Status: Medium 
(12)

Current Risk Severity: 4 - 
High  

Current Risk Likelihood: 3 - 
Medium  

Service Manager: Darren Beer 

Review Note: Per email on 20 August 

Printed by: Catherine Yandle SPAR.net
Print Date: 06 September 2018 

15:21

Page 6 of 16SPAR.net - Risk Report Appendix 6

06/09/2018http://mddcweb5n/sparnet/default.aspx?id=5218&type=30&nogif=0

Page 168



Risk Report Appendix 6

Risk: H&S RA - Working by Roadside Urban/Rural Carrying out activities and tasks by the 
roadside. 

Effects (Impact/Severity): 

Causes (Likelihood): 

Service: Grounds Maintenance   

Current Status: Medium 
(10)

Current Risk Severity: 5 - Very 
High  

Current Risk Likelihood: 2 - 
Low  

Service Manager: Darren Beer 

Review Note: 

Risk: H&S RA -Waste Collection - Health and Safety Inadequate training with regards to Manual 
Handling and workplace hazards (eg contact with broken glass) could result in Health and Safety 
risks 

Effects (Impact/Severity): 

Causes (Likelihood): - Increasing demand and service costs due to increasing population, 

consumer society and an increasing amount of waste 

Service: Street Scene Services   

Current Status: Medium 
(10)

Current Risk Severity: 5 - Very 
High  

Current Risk Likelihood: 2 - 
Low  

Service Manager: Stuart Noyce 

Review Note: 

Risk: Hoarding Some tenants are known hoarders but we have policies in place and we do regular 
inspections. 

Effects (Impact/Severity): 

Causes (Likelihood): 

Service: Housing Services   

Current Status: Medium 
(10)

Current Risk Severity: 5 - Very 
High  

Current Risk Likelihood: 2 - 
Low  

Service Manager: Claire Fry 

Review Note: The assessment of the risk remains the same but it should be noted that the 

Housing Service works closely with partners including the Devon and Somerset Fire and Rescue 
Service to help those who hoard to understand the possible consequences of their behaviour and to 
help them to commence addressing the issues. 

Risk: Homelessness Insufficient resources to support an increased homeless population could 
result in failure to meet statutory duty to provide advice and assistance to anyone who is homeless.

Effects (Impact/Severity): - Dissatisfied customers and increase in complaints.

- This will involve an increase in officer time in dealing with Homelessness prevention and early 

Printed by: Catherine Yandle SPAR.net
Print Date: 06 September 2018 

15:21

Page 7 of 16SPAR.net - Risk Report Appendix 6

06/09/2018http://mddcweb5n/sparnet/default.aspx?id=5218&type=30&nogif=0

Page 169



Risk Report Appendix 6
intervention.
- Possible increase in temporary accommodation usage. 

Causes (Likelihood): - Social and economic factors like the recession and mortgage 

repossessions increase the number of homeless.
- Lack of private sector housing. 

Service: Housing Services   

Current Status: Medium 
(12)

Current Risk Severity: 4 - 
High  

Current Risk Likelihood: 3 - 
Medium  

Service Manager: Claire Fry 

Review Note: 

Risk: Impact of Welfare Reform and other emerging National Housing Policy Changes to 
benefits available to tenants could impact upon their ability to pay.
Other initiatives could impact upon our ability to deliver our 30 year Business Plan. 

Effects (Impact/Severity): 

Causes (Likelihood): 

Service: Housing Services   

Current Status: Medium 
(12)

Current Risk Severity: 4 - 
High  

Current Risk Likelihood: 3 - 
Medium  

Service Manager: Claire Fry 

Review Note: 

Risk: Information Security  Inadequate Information Security could lead to breaches of confidential 
information, damaged or corrupted data and ultimately Denial of Service. If the council fails to have 
an effective information strategy in place.

Risk of monetary penalties and fines, and legal action by affected parties

Effects (Impact/Severity): 

Causes (Likelihood): 

Service: I C T   

Current Status: No 
Data

Current Risk Severity: 5 - Very 
High  

Current Risk Likelihood: 4 - 
High  

Service Manager: Alan Keates 

Review Note: 

Printed by: Catherine Yandle SPAR.net
Print Date: 06 September 2018 

15:21

Page 8 of 16SPAR.net - Risk Report Appendix 6

06/09/2018http://mddcweb5n/sparnet/default.aspx?id=5218&type=30&nogif=0

Page 170



Risk Report Appendix 6

Risk: Legionella Legionella 

Effects (Impact/Severity): 

Causes (Likelihood): 

Service: Leisure Services   

Current Status: Medium 
(10)

Current Risk Severity: 5 - Very 
High  

Current Risk Likelihood: 2 - 
Low  

Service Manager: Darren Beer, Heather Hargreaves 

Review Note: Extensive review done, annual chlorination on a planned basis re-introduced 

which provides extra protection in addition to other measures introduced. 

Risk: Leisure Income Generation Inability to compete with neighbouring leisure centres could 
result in reduced custom/use which could challenge the service's ability to achieve its income 
target. 

Effects (Impact/Severity): • Reduced income levels 

Causes (Likelihood): • Discretionary spend nature of leisure sector in economic recession

• The set-up of budget gyms in Mid Devon is unlikely but could impact on our income if they did
• Smaller leisure businesses are more likely to set up in Mid Devon and their impact on our service 
could be reduced if internal communication processes are improved so as to notify Leisure 
Managers of any potential competitors in the area 

Service: Leisure Services   

Current Status: No 
Data

Current Risk Severity: 3 - 
Medium  

Current Risk Likelihood: 3 - 
Medium  

Service Manager: Lee Chester 

Review Note: The baseline income target from the actual achieved in 2016/17 was £2,460,020, 

and so a budget was set for 2017/18 at £2,655,500 incorporating; price increases, growth and a 
development sum for the fitness extension at Exe Valley. Although the income target was missed 
by £42,841, (consideration for closures due to snow, flooding of outdoor pitches, south west water 
closing a large section of Tiverton, maintenance issues with Culm Valley’s main hall ceiling and with 
Exe Valley’s Learner Pool bottom, Lords Meadow car park works, and the entire disruption to Exe 
Valley during the fitness development and car park works development, are instances where we 
have missed out on income, or had service compromised) as a service an increase of just under 
£154k was achieved which is an improvement of 6.26% over the previous year.  

Risk: Local Plan Whether the Inspector will find the Plan unsound 

Effects (Impact/Severity): 

Causes (Likelihood): 

Service: Planning   

Current Status: No 
Data

Current Risk Severity: 5 - Very 
High  

Current Risk Likelihood: 2 - 
Low  

Service Manager: Jenny Clifford 

Review Note: Steps taken to mitigate risks by commissioning additional work to strengthen 

evidence base. 

Printed by: Catherine Yandle SPAR.net
Print Date: 06 September 2018 

15:21

Page 9 of 16SPAR.net - Risk Report Appendix 6

06/09/2018http://mddcweb5n/sparnet/default.aspx?id=5218&type=30&nogif=0

Page 171



Risk Report Appendix 6

Risk: Localism Act - Community Right to Buy / Challenge Transference of services to the 
community could enable the Council to identify cost savings 

Effects (Impact/Severity): 

Causes (Likelihood): 

Service: Financial Services   

Current Status: Medium 
(12)

Current Risk Severity: 4 - 
High  

Current Risk Likelihood: 3 - 
Medium  

Service Manager: Jo Nacey 

Review Note: 

Risk: Lone Working Risks associated with working alone (eg on site visits, call-outs, evening, 
weekend and emergency work and working from home). 

Effects (Impact/Severity): 

Causes (Likelihood): 

Service: Property Services   

Current Status: Medium 
(12)

Current Risk Severity: 4 - 
High  

Current Risk Likelihood: 3 - 
Medium  

Service Manager: Andrew Busby 

Review Note: Health & Safety Officer trailing new Lone Working equipment. 

Risk: Management of Legionella within Corporate Assets The risk assessment covers the 
Management control, including practises and procedures, of Legionella across all Commercial 
Assets 

Effects (Impact/Severity): 

Causes (Likelihood): 

Service: Property Services   

Current Status: High 
(15)

Current Risk Severity: 5 - Very 
High  

Current Risk Likelihood: 3 - 
Medium  

Service Manager: Andrew Busby 

Review Note: Lots of work and training has been undertaken. The SLA is still in draft but we 

have a clear plan in place. The Housing Team are also working through our corporate stock 
removing cold water tanks etc. which immediately lowers the risk. 

Risk: New Homes A low housing build rate would equal less affordable housing resulting in a 
reduction in potential New Homes Bonus 

Effects (Impact/Severity): - Loss of Affordable Housing Income Section 106

- Failure to meet targets in Development Plan
- Potentially unallocated sites being developed as 5-year housing supply reduces 

Causes (Likelihood): 

Service: Planning   

Printed by: Catherine Yandle SPAR.net
Print Date: 06 September 2018 

15:21

Page 10 of 16SPAR.net - Risk Report Appendix 6

06/09/2018http://mddcweb5n/sparnet/default.aspx?id=5218&type=30&nogif=0

Page 172



Risk Report Appendix 6
Current Status: Medium 
(12)

Current Risk Severity: 4 - 
High  

Current Risk Likelihood: 3 - 
Medium  

Service Manager: Jenny Clifford 

Review Note: 

Risk: Overall Funding Availability Changes to Revenue Support Grant, Business Rates, New 
Homes Bonus and other funding streams in order to finance ongoing expenditure needs. 

Effects (Impact/Severity): 

Causes (Likelihood): 

Service: Financial Services   

Current Status: High 
(15)

Current Risk Severity: 5 - Very 
High  

Current Risk Likelihood: 3 - 
Medium  

Service Manager: Jo Nacey 

Review Note: There is continuing pressure due to ongoing funding reductions. Further 

discussion has taken place centrally on changing the mechanism re NHB funding which will have 
an impact if implemented 

Risk: Palmerston Park Development of 26 houses - liquidator exploring a claim against us 
regarding losses and damages re previous contractor. 

Effects (Impact/Severity): 

Causes (Likelihood): 

Service: Property Services   

Current Status: Medium 
(10)

Current Risk Severity: 5 - Very 
High  

Current Risk Likelihood: 2 - 
Low  

Service Manager: Andrew Busby 

Review Note: At this point in time we are confident we can re-buff the claim. We had appropriate 

legal advice before we terminated the contract with the contractor. We have also had to carry out 
remedial works and have established losses. 

Risk: Plant Room Plant Room 

Effects (Impact/Severity): 

Causes (Likelihood): 

Service: Leisure Services   

Current Status: Medium 
(10)

Current Risk Severity: 5 - Very 
High  

Current Risk Likelihood: 2 - 
Low  

Service Manager: Darren Beer, Heather Hargreaves 

Review Note: • Only authorized personnel to enter storage areas

• Pool plant operator certification required by operators
• Backwash only when pool not in use
• Planned storage of combustible materials
• Staff carry two way radios.  

Printed by: Catherine Yandle SPAR.net
Print Date: 06 September 2018 

15:21

Page 11 of 16SPAR.net - Risk Report Appendix 6

06/09/2018http://mddcweb5n/sparnet/default.aspx?id=5218&type=30&nogif=0

Page 173



Risk Report Appendix 6

Risk: Pool Inflatable Pool Activities 

Effects (Impact/Severity): 

Causes (Likelihood): 

Service: Leisure Services   

Current Status: Medium 
(10)

Current Risk Severity: 5 - Very 
High  

Current Risk Likelihood: 2 - 
Low  

Service Manager: Darren Beer, Heather Hargreaves 

Review Note: 

Risk: Premier Inn Construction site Increased difficulty in management of the car parking facility 
while the Premier Inn is being built 

Effects (Impact/Severity): 

Causes (Likelihood): 

Service: Property Services   

Current Status: High 
(15)

Current Risk Severity: 5 - Very 
High  

Current Risk Likelihood: 3 - 
Medium  

Service Manager: Andrew Busby 

Review Note: Demolition RA received and circulated, comments sent to developer and 

mitigations amended as instructed by us. Insurance company advised.
Risk increased to reflect the fact demolition due to commence this month. 

Risk: Reduced Funding - Budget Cuts We are subject to continuing budget reductions. If we 
concentrate on short term cost savings, it may increase long term impact of decisions 

Effects (Impact/Severity): • Increased workforce stress and declining morale can add to the 

dangers of a major incident if staff come under pressure as budget cuts force changes in 
operational models
• Budget cuts may limit the financial resources that we can dedicate to network security potentially 
making us more vulnerable to cyber-attacks
• Use of reserves to supplement reduced funding for budgets could put a strain on reserves in 
future, with inability to maintain them
• The Council could significantly over or underspend against budget on the provision of Council 
services
• There may be inefficient use of public money and a failure to comply with the Council’s objectives
• The relative scale of impact in an incident will be higher due to decreased organisational resilience 
as a result of diminishing financial reserves and workforce response capacity 

Causes (Likelihood): • Severe financial pressure caused by a significant reduction to the 

Council’s Revenue Support Grant
• Ceasing of other grants 

Service: Financial Services   

Current Status: High 
(20)

Current Risk Severity: 5 - Very 
High  

Current Risk Likelihood: 4 - 
High  

Service Manager: Jo Nacey 

Printed by: Catherine Yandle SPAR.net
Print Date: 06 September 2018 

15:21

Page 12 of 16SPAR.net - Risk Report Appendix 6

06/09/2018http://mddcweb5n/sparnet/default.aspx?id=5218&type=30&nogif=0

Page 174



Risk Report Appendix 6

Review Note: We have managed to balance the budget in previous years with limited use of 

reserves. This will become increasingly difficult and we will need to continue to implement longer 
term savings. 

Risk: Reduced Funding - Service Cuts With continued reductions in funding, there may be a 
long-term need to plan reduced or cease non-statutory services.  

Effects (Impact/Severity): • With the economic downturn there is risk of balancing reduced 

services with customer expectations in an increasing demand-led environment.
• Financial costs arising from reduced services (eg insurance claims due to flicking stones when 
cutting long grass) 

Causes (Likelihood): • Severe financial pressure caused by a significant reduction to the 

Council’s Revenue Support Grant 

Service: Financial Services   

Current Status: High 
(16)

Current Risk Severity: 4 - 
High  

Current Risk Likelihood: 4 - 
High  

Service Manager: Jo Nacey 

Review Note: 

Risk: Reputational damage - social media impact of reputational damage through social media is 
a significant risk that warrants inclusion on the Authority’s risk register. 

Effects (Impact/Severity): 

Causes (Likelihood): 

Service: Communications   

Current Status: Medium 
(10)

Current Risk Severity: 5 - Very 
High  

Current Risk Likelihood: 2 - 
Low  

Service Manager: Jane Lewis 

Review Note: Now that there is a full time Communication Officer in post this provides the 

council with improved social media monitoring and we are more likely to respond in a timely 
manner. The media policy and social media guidelines are also currently being reviewed and will be 
taken to the Community PDG in November 2018. 

Risk: Reputational re Council Housing Stock Handling a disaster/mistake properly would 
prevent any reputation damage. 

Effects (Impact/Severity): 

Causes (Likelihood): 

Service: Housing Services   

Current Status: Medium 
(10)

Current Risk Severity: 5 - Very 
High  

Current Risk Likelihood: 2 - 
Low  

Service Manager: Claire Fry 

Review Note: the assessment of the risk remains the same but there are adopted policies and 

procedures which should mitigate the risk of a disaster happening. Furthermore, we have trained 
and experienced staff.  

Printed by: Catherine Yandle SPAR.net
Print Date: 06 September 2018 

15:21

Page 13 of 16SPAR.net - Risk Report Appendix 6

06/09/2018http://mddcweb5n/sparnet/default.aspx?id=5218&type=30&nogif=0

Page 175



Risk Report Appendix 6

Risk: S106 Agreement  Inability of the legacy systems to provide a full overview of the
‘trigger points’ for all of the s106 agreements 

Effects (Impact/Severity): 

Causes (Likelihood): 

Service: Planning   

Current Status: High 
(15)

Current Risk Severity: 5 - Very 
High  

Current Risk Likelihood: 3 - 
Medium  

Service Manager: None 

Review Note: 

Risk: School Swimming Sessions School Swimming Sessions 

Effects (Impact/Severity): 

Causes (Likelihood): 

Service: Leisure Services   

Current Status: Medium 
(10)

Current Risk Severity: 5 - Very 
High  

Current Risk Likelihood: 2 - 
Low  

Service Manager: Darren Beer, Heather Hargreaves 

Review Note: 

Risk: Stress Legal work is often high stakes and relatively urgent, with little control over the timing 
of instructions and work volumes. Officers in the team have to change priorities on a daily basis, 
leading to frustration and discord with services. The time allowed to do the work properly first time is 
almost always underestimated, leading officers to feel that they are on a conveyer-belt with little 
appreciation. 

Effects (Impact/Severity): 

Causes (Likelihood): 

Service: Legal Services   

Current Status: Medium 
(9)

Current Risk Severity: 3 - 
Medium  

Current Risk Likelihood: 3 - 
Medium  

Service Manager: Kathryn Tebbey 

Review Note: 

Printed by: Catherine Yandle SPAR.net
Print Date: 06 September 2018 

15:21

Page 14 of 16SPAR.net - Risk Report Appendix 6

06/09/2018http://mddcweb5n/sparnet/default.aspx?id=5218&type=30&nogif=0

Page 176



Risk Report Appendix 6

Risk: Stress The physical and mental well-being of Officers could be affected by work environment 
and pressures caused by work demands and work relationships. 

Effects (Impact/Severity): 

Causes (Likelihood): 

Service: Housing Services   

Current Status: Medium 
(12)

Current Risk Severity: 4 - 
High  

Current Risk Likelihood: 3 - 
Medium  

Service Manager: Claire Fry 

Review Note: In the case of potential stress and related conditions, Managers should undertake 

regular supervision meetings to monitor the situation and provide support.  

Risk: Swimming Lessons Swimming Lessons 

Effects (Impact/Severity): 

Causes (Likelihood): 

Service: Leisure Services   

Current Status: Medium 
(10)

Current Risk Severity: 5 - Very 
High  

Current Risk Likelihood: 2 - 
Low  

Service Manager: Darren Beer, Heather Hargreaves 

Review Note: 

Risk: Swimming Pool  Swimming pool & spectator walkway 

Effects (Impact/Severity): 

Causes (Likelihood): 

Service: Leisure Services   

Current Status: Medium 
(10)

Current Risk Severity: 5 - Very 
High  

Current Risk Likelihood: 2 - 
Low  

Service Manager: Darren Beer, Heather Hargreaves 

Review Note: 

Risk: Tenants with Complex Needs As our housing stock shrinks, the proportion of such tenants 
will increase. 

Effects (Impact/Severity): 

Causes (Likelihood): 

Service: Housing Services   

Current Status: Medium 
(12)

Current Risk Severity: 4 - 
High  

Current Risk Likelihood: 3 - 
Medium  

Service Manager: Claire Fry 

Review Note: Good links with other partners including the Police, Social Services, support 

agencies etc.  

Printed by: Catherine Yandle SPAR.net
Print Date: 06 September 2018 

15:21

Page 15 of 16SPAR.net - Risk Report Appendix 6

06/09/2018http://mddcweb5n/sparnet/default.aspx?id=5218&type=30&nogif=0

Page 177



Risk Report Appendix 6
Risk: Widespread fire in block of flats Fire in our multiple occupancy properties, could result in 
widespread damage, injury or even death 

Effects (Impact/Severity): 

Causes (Likelihood): 

Service: Housing – Building Maintenance   

Current Status: No 
Data

Current Risk Severity: 5 - Very 
High  

Current Risk Likelihood: 1 - Very 
Low  

Service Manager: Mark Baglow 

Review Note: All flats are subjected to an annual fire risk assessment and recommendations 

implemented. All alarms, emergency lighting and other fire prevention equipment is tested in 
accordance with legislation. We have introduced a new fire risk policy for the flats that requires all 
stairwells and common area to be kept clear with no storage or flammable items including floor 
coverings. All external cladding has bee tested and found to present a trivial risk of fire. 

Printed by: Catherine Yandle SPAR.net
Print Date: 06 September 2018 

15:21

Page 16 of 16SPAR.net - Risk Report Appendix 6

06/09/2018http://mddcweb5n/sparnet/default.aspx?id=5218&type=30&nogif=0

Page 178



Risk Matrix

Report 
For MDDC - Services

Current settings

5 - Very 
High

No Risks No Risks No Risks No Risks No Risks

4 - High No Risks 1 Risk 2 Risks 1 Risk 2 Risks

3 - Medium No Risks 1 Risk 10 Risks 15 Risks 5 Risks

2 - Low 2 Risks 14 Risks 38 Risks 21 Risks 24 Risks

1 - Very 
Low

4 Risks 6 Risks 8 Risks 9 Risks 16 Risks

1 - Very Low 2 - Low 3 - Medium 4 - High 5 - Very High

Risk Severity

Printed by: Catherine Yandle SPAR.net
Print Date: 06 September 2018 

15:23

Page 1 of 1SPAR.net - Risk Matrix

06/09/2018http://mddcweb5n/sparnet/default.aspx?id=4590&type=30&nogif=0

Page 179



This page is intentionally left blank



Mid Devon District Council Cabinet Forward Plan – September 2018

MID DEVON DISTRICT COUNCIL – NOTIFICATION OF KEY DECISIONS 

October 2018

The Forward Plan containing key Decisions is published 28 days prior to each Cabinet meeting

Title of report and 
summary of decision

Decision 
Taker

Date of 
Decision

Officer contact Cabinet Member Intention to 
consider report in 

private session 
and the reason(s)

Unauthorised Encampment 
Policy
To receive a *report of the 
Group Manager for 
Corporate Property and 
Commercial Assets 
presenting a policy regarding 
Illegal Encampment

Cabinet

Council

25 Oct 2018

19 Dec 2018

Andrew Busby, 
Group Manager for 
Corporate Property 

and Commercial 
Assets Tel: 01884 

234948

Cabinet Member 
for Community 

Well Being 
(Councillor Colin 

Slade)

Open

Complaints Policy
To receive a review of the 
Complaints Policy from 
Group Manager for Business 
Transformation and 
Customer Engagement

Scrutiny 
Committee

Cabinet

8 Oct 2018

25 Oct 2018

Lisa Lewis, Group 
Manager for 

Business 
Transformation and 

Customer 
Engagement Tel: 

01884 234981

Cabinet for the 
Working 

Environment and 
Support Services 

(Councillor 
Margaret 
Squires)

Open

Tiverton Town Centre 
Masterplan following 
public consultation
To consider the masterplan.

Cabinet 25 Oct 2018 Jenny Clifford, Head 
of Planning, 

Economy and 
Regeneration Tel: 

01884 234346

Cabinet Member 
for Planning and 

Economic 
Regeneration 

(Councillor 
Richard 

Chesterton)

Open

P
age 181

A
genda Item

 15.



Title of report and 
summary of decision

Decision 
Taker

Date of 
Decision

Officer contact Cabinet Member Intention to 
consider report in 

private session 
and the reason(s)

Mid Devon District Council Cabinet Forward Plan - September 2018

Planning Section 106 
Governance
To consider a report 
regarding the governance of 
S106 contributions

Cabinet 25 Oct 2018 Jenny Clifford, Head 
of Planning, 

Economy and 
Regeneration Tel: 

01884 234346

Cabinet Member 
for Planning and 

Economic 
Regeneration 

(Councillor 
Richard 

Chesterton)

Open

Culm Garden Village - 
Cullompton (c)
To consider the project 
constraints, opportunities, 
issues (masterplanning)

Cabinet 25 Oct 2018 Jenny Clifford, Head 
of Planning, 

Economy and 
Regeneration Tel: 

01884 234346

Cabinet Member 
for Planning and 

Economic 
Regeneration 

(Councillor 
Richard 

Chesterton)

Open

Greater Exeter Strategic 
Partnership (GESP) - 
update and consideration 
of GESP
To consider matters with 
regard to the Greater Exeter 
Strategic Plan including 
proposed consultation 
documents

Cabinet

Council

25 Oct 2018

19 Dec 2018

Jenny Clifford, Head 
of Planning, 

Economy and 
Regeneration Tel: 

01884 234346

Cabinet Member 
for Planning and 

Economic 
Regeneration 

(Councillor 
Richard 

Chesterton)

Open

Establishment of a Member 
Development Delivery 
Advisory Group
To consider the 

Cabinet 25 Oct 2018 Jenny Clifford, Head 
of Planning, 

Economy and 
Regeneration Tel: 

Cabinet Member 
for Planning and 

Economic 
Regeneration 

Open

P
age 182



Title of report and 
summary of decision

Decision 
Taker

Date of 
Decision

Officer contact Cabinet Member Intention to 
consider report in 

private session 
and the reason(s)

Mid Devon District Council Cabinet Forward Plan - September 2018

establishment of such a 
group to deal with the 
delivery of development.

01884 234346 (Councillor 
Richard 

Chesterton)

Cullompton Town Centre 
Masterplan
To consider the contract 
award

Cabinet 25 Oct 2018 Jenny Clifford, Head 
of Planning, 

Economy and 
Regeneration Tel: 

01884 234346

Cabinet Member 
for Planning and 

Economic 
Regeneration 

(Councillor 
Richard 

Chesterton)

Open

Tiverton Eastern Urban 
Extension Area B 
Masterplanning
To consider the outcome of 
the tender process

Cabinet 25 Oct 2018 Jenny Clifford, Head 
of Planning, 

Economy and 
Regeneration Tel: 

01884 234346

Cabinet Member 
for Planning and 

Economic 
Regeneration 

(Councillor 
Richard 

Chesterton)

Part exempt

Statement of Community 
Involvement Review 2018
Report to seek authority to 
consult on the draft revised 
text

Cabinet 25 Oct 2018 Jenny Clifford, Head 
of Planning, 

Economy and 
Regeneration Tel: 

01884 234346

Cabinet Member 
for Planning and 

Economic 
Regeneration 

(Councillor 
Richard 

Chesterton)

Open

P
age 183



Title of report and 
summary of decision

Decision 
Taker

Date of 
Decision

Officer contact Cabinet Member Intention to 
consider report in 

private session 
and the reason(s)

Mid Devon District Council Cabinet Forward Plan - September 2018

Medium Term Financial 
Plan
To consider the MTFP.

Cabinet 25 Oct 2018 Andrew Jarrett, 
Deputy Chief 

Executive (S151) 
Tel: 01884 234242

Cabinet Member 
for Finance 

(Councillor Peter 
Hare-Scott)

Open

Draft 19/20 General Fund 
and Capital Programme
To consider options available 
in order for the Council to set 
a balanced budget 
for2019/20.

Cabinet 25 Oct 2018 Andrew Jarrett, 
Deputy Chief 

Executive (S151) 
Tel: 01884 234242

Cabinet Member 
for Finance 

(Councillor Peter 
Hare-Scott)

Open

Information Security
To consider a revised policy

Cabinet 25 Oct 2018 Catherine Yandle, 
Group Manager for 

Performance, 
Governance and 
Data Security Tel: 

01884 234975

Cabinet Member 
for Community 

Well Being 
(Councillor Colin 

Slade)

Open

Information Security 
Incident
To consider a revised policy

Cabinet 25 Oct 2018 Catherine Yandle, 
Group Manager for 

Performance, 
Governance and 
Data Security Tel: 

01884 234975

Cabinet Member 
for Community 

Well Being 
(Councillor Colin 

Slade)

Open

Modernisation of Council 
Homes 2018-2023
To consider the outcome of 
the tender process.

Cabinet 25 Oct 2018 Andrew Pritchard, 
Director of 

Operations Tel: 
01884 234950

Cabinet Member 
for Housing 

(Councillor Ray 
Stanley)

Part exempt

P
age 184



Title of report and 
summary of decision

Decision 
Taker

Date of 
Decision

Officer contact Cabinet Member Intention to 
consider report in 

private session 
and the reason(s)

Mid Devon District Council Cabinet Forward Plan - September 2018

Fitness Equipment at 
Lords Meadow Leisure 
Centre
To consider a refit of the 
Lords Meadow Leisure 
Centre.

Cabinet 25 Oct 2018 Andrew Pritchard, 
Director of 

Operations Tel: 
01884 234950

Cabinet Member 
for Community 

Well Being 
(Councillor Colin 

Slade)

Open

Schedule of Meetings 
2019/20
To consider the Schedule of 
Meetings.

Cabinet

Council

25 Oct 2018

19 Dec 2018

Stephen Walford, 
Chief Executive Tel: 

01884 234201

Leader of the 
Council 

(Councillor Clive 
Eginton)

Open

Market  Rights Policy
A report proposing the 
adoption of a new Market 
Policy. 

Economy 
Policy 

Development 
Group

Cabinet

Council

8 Nov 2018

22 Nov 2018

19 Dec 2018

Adrian Welsh, 
Group Manager for 
Growth, Economy 
and Delivery Tel: 
01884 234398

Cabinet Member 
for Planning and 

Economic 
Regeneration 

(Councillor 
Richard 

Chesterton)

Open

Economic Strategy
To consider a new policy.

Economy 
Policy 

Development 
Group

Cabinet

8 Nov 2018

22 Nov 2018

Adrian Welsh, 
Group Manager for 
Growth, Economy 
and Delivery Tel: 
01884 234398

Cabinet Member 
for Planning and 

Economic 
Regeneration 

(Councillor 
Richard 

Chesterton)

Open

P
age 185



Title of report and 
summary of decision

Decision 
Taker

Date of 
Decision

Officer contact Cabinet Member Intention to 
consider report in 

private session 
and the reason(s)

Mid Devon District Council Cabinet Forward Plan - September 2018

Council 19 Dec 2018

Void Management Policy
To receive a report from the 
Group Manager for Building 
Services presenting the 
revised Void Management 
Policy.

Homes Policy 
Development 

Group

Cabinet

13 Nov 2018

22 Nov 2018

Mark Baglow, Group 
Manager for Building 
Services Tel: 01884 

233011

Cabinet Member 
for Housing 

(Councillor Ray 
Stanley)

Open

Corporate Asbestos Policy
To receive a report from the 
Group Manager for Building 
Services presenting the 
revised Corporate Asbestos 
Policy.

Homes Policy 
Development 

Group

Cabinet

13 Nov 2018

22 Nov 2018

Mark Baglow, Group 
Manager for Building 
Services Tel: 01884 

233011

Cabinet Member 
for Housing 

(Councillor Ray 
Stanley)

Open

Asbestos Management 
Plan
To receive a report from the 
Group Manager for Building 
Services presenting the 
revised Asbestos 
Management Plan.

Homes Policy 
Development 

Group

Cabinet

13 Nov 2018

3 Jan 2019

Mark Baglow, Group 
Manager for Building 
Services Tel: 01884 

233011

Cabinet Member 
for Housing 

(Councillor Ray 
Stanley)

Open

Supply and Demand Policy
To receive a report from the 
Group Manager for Housing 
presenting the revised 
Supply and Demand Policy.

Homes Policy 
Development 

Group

Cabinet

13 Nov 2018

22 Nov 2018

Claire Fry, Group 
Manager for 

Housing Tel: 01884 
234920

Cabinet Member 
for Housing 

(Councillor Ray 
Stanley)

Open

P
age 186



Title of report and 
summary of decision

Decision 
Taker

Date of 
Decision

Officer contact Cabinet Member Intention to 
consider report in 

private session 
and the reason(s)

Mid Devon District Council Cabinet Forward Plan - September 2018

Severe Weather 
Emergency Protocol and 
Extended Winter Provision 
Protocol
To receive a report from the 
Group Manager for Housing 
presenting an updated 
Severe Weather Emergency 
Protocol and Extended 
Winter Provision Protocol.

Homes Policy 
Development 

Group

Cabinet

13 Nov 2018

22 Nov 2018

Claire Fry, Group 
Manager for 

Housing Tel: 01884 
234920

Cabinet Member 
for Housing 

(Councillor Ray 
Stanley)

Open

Community Safety 
Partnership Plan
To consider a review of the 
partnership plan.

Community 
Policy 

Development 
Group

Cabinet

20 Nov 2018

3 Jan 2019

Andrew Pritchard, 
Director of 

Operations Tel: 
01884 234950

Cabinet for the 
Working 

Environment and 
Support Services 

(Councillor 
Margaret 
Squires)

Open

Community Engagement 
Strategy (inc Action Plan)
To receive a report from the 
Director of Corporate Affairs 
and Business Transformation 
updating Members on 
progress made with the 
Community Engagement 
Action Plan and to review the 
strategy and focus for 

Community 
Policy 

Development 
Group

Cabinet

20 Nov 2018

3 Jan 2019

Jill May, Director of 
Corporate Affairs 

and Business 
Transformation Tel: 

01884 234381

Cabinet Member 
for Community 

Well Being 
(Councillor Colin 

Slade)

Open

P
age 187



Title of report and 
summary of decision

Decision 
Taker

Date of 
Decision

Officer contact Cabinet Member Intention to 
consider report in 

private session 
and the reason(s)

Mid Devon District Council Cabinet Forward Plan - September 2018

2018/2019.

Safeguarding Policy 
Guidance and Procedures
To provide Members with the 
updated policy and a review 
of best practice

Community 
Policy 

Development 
Group

Cabinet

20 Nov 2018

3 Jan 2019

Jill May, Director of 
Corporate Affairs 

and Business 
Transformation Tel: 

01884 234381

Cabinet for the 
Working 

Environment and 
Support Services 

(Councillor 
Margaret 
Squires)

Open

Treasury Management 
Strategy and Mid-Year 
Review Report
To consider a report of the 
treasury performance during 
the first 6 months of the 
financial year.

Cabinet

Council

22 Nov 2018

19 Dec 2018

Andrew Jarrett, 
Deputy Chief 

Executive (S151) 
Tel: 01884 234242

Cabinet Member 
for Finance 

(Councillor Peter 
Hare-Scott)

Open

ICT Strategy
Report regarding a review of 
the ICT Strategy 

Cabinet 22 Nov 2018 Jill May, Director of 
Corporate Affairs 

and Business 
Transformation Tel: 

01884 234381

Cabinet Member 
for Community 

Well Being 
(Councillor Colin 

Slade)

Open

Proposals for 
improvements  to Tiverton 
Town Centre
To receive a presentation on 
proposals for improvements 

Cabinet 22 Nov 2018 Andrew Jarrett, 
Deputy Chief 

Executive (S151) 
Tel: 01884 234242

Cabinet Member 
for Housing 

(Councillor Ray 
Stanley)

Fully exempt

P
age 188



Title of report and 
summary of decision

Decision 
Taker

Date of 
Decision

Officer contact Cabinet Member Intention to 
consider report in 

private session 
and the reason(s)

Mid Devon District Council Cabinet Forward Plan - September 2018

to Tiverton Town Centre, 
seeking authority to go out to 
tender with a view to 
progress project work’.

Design Supplementary 
Planning Document
To consider a report seeking 
approval to consult on the 
draft Supplementary 
Planning Document.

Cabinet 22 Nov 2018 Jenny Clifford, Head 
of Planning, 

Economy and 
Regeneration Tel: 

01884 234346

Cabinet Member 
for Planning and 

Economic 
Regeneration 

(Councillor 
Richard 

Chesterton)

Open

Vehicle Maintenance 
Contract
To consider the maintenance 
contract.

Cabinet 3 Jan 2019 Stuart Noyce, Group 
Manager for Street 
Scene and Open 

Spaces Tel: 01884 
244635

Leader of the 
Council 

(Councillor Clive 
Eginton)

Open

Tax Base Calculation
To consider the Tax Base 
Calculation using information 
as at 30 November.

Cabinet

Council

3 Jan 2019

27 Feb 2019

Andrew Jarrett, 
Deputy Chief 

Executive (S151) 
Tel: 01884 234242

Cabinet Member 
for Finance 

(Councillor Peter 
Hare-Scott)

Open

Statement of Community 
Involvement Review 2018 - 
post consultation
To consider the review post 
consultation and make 
recommendation to Council

Cabinet

Council

3 Jan 2019

27 Feb 2019

Jenny Clifford, Head 
of Planning, 

Economy and 
Regeneration Tel: 

01884 234346

Cabinet Member 
for Planning and 

Economic 
Regeneration 

(Councillor 
Richard 

Chesterton)

Open

P
age 189



Title of report and 
summary of decision

Decision 
Taker

Date of 
Decision

Officer contact Cabinet Member Intention to 
consider report in 

private session 
and the reason(s)

Mid Devon District Council Cabinet Forward Plan - September 2018

Public Health Enforcement 
Policy
To receive the 2 yearly 
review of the Public Health 
Enforcement Policy from 
Group Manager for Public 
Health and Regulatory 
Services.

Community 
Policy 

Development 
Group

Cabinet

22 Jan 2019

7 Feb 2019

Simon Newcombe, 
Group Manager for 
Public Health and 

Regulatory Services 
Tel: 01884 244615

Cabinet for the 
Working 

Environment and 
Support Services 

(Councillor 
Margaret 
Squires)

Open

Cleaning Contractors
To approve the outcome of 
the procurement exercise.

Cabinet 7 Feb 2019 Andrew Jarrett, 
Deputy Chief 

Executive (S151) 
Tel: 01884 234242

Cabinet for the 
Working 

Environment and 
Support Services 

(Councillor 
Margaret 
Squires)

Open

National Non-Domestic 
Rates
To consider a report 
requesting approval of the 
NNDR1

Cabinet

Council

7 Feb 2019

27 Feb 2019

Andrew Jarrett, 
Deputy Chief 

Executive (S151) 
Tel: 01884 234242

Cabinet Member 
for Finance 

(Councillor Peter 
Hare-Scott)

Open

Budget
To consider proposals for the 
General Fund and HRA for 
2019/20

Cabinet

Council

7 Feb 2019

27 Feb 2019

Andrew Jarrett, 
Deputy Chief 

Executive (S151) 
Tel: 01884 234242

Cabinet Member 
for Finance 

(Councillor Peter 
Hare-Scott)

Open

Capital Programme
To consider a report seeking 
approval of the Capital 
Programme for 2019/20.

Cabinet

Council

7 Feb 2019

27 Feb 2019

Andrew Jarrett, 
Deputy Chief 

Executive (S151) 
Tel: 01884 234242

Cabinet Member 
for Finance 

(Councillor Peter 
Hare-Scott)

Open

P
age 190



Title of report and 
summary of decision

Decision 
Taker

Date of 
Decision

Officer contact Cabinet Member Intention to 
consider report in 

private session 
and the reason(s)

Mid Devon District Council Cabinet Forward Plan - September 2018

Establishment
To consider a report outlining 
the overall structure of the 
Council.

Cabinet

Council

7 Feb 2019

27 Feb 2019

Jane Cottrell, Group 
Manager for Human 

Resources Tel: 
01884 234919

Cabinet for the 
Working 

Environment and 
Support Services 

(Councillor 
Margaret 
Squires)

Open

Policy Framework
To consider a report 
requesting endorsement of 
the Policy Framework.

Cabinet

Council

7 Feb 2019

27 Feb 2019

Stephen Walford, 
Chief Executive Tel: 

01884 234201

Leader of the 
Council 

(Councillor Clive 
Eginton)

Open

Bereavement Services 
Fees & Charges
To receive the annual review 
of Bereavement Services 
Fees & Charges from the 
Director of Operations. 

Environment 
Policy 

Development 
Group

Cabinet

5 Mar 2019

4 Apr 2019

Andrew Pritchard, 
Director of 

Operations Tel: 
01884 234950

Leader of the 
Council 

(Councillor Clive 
Eginton)

Open

Play Area Safety 
Inspection Policy
To receive a 3 year review 
from the Director of 
Operations of the Play Area 
Safety Inspection Policy

Environment 
Policy 

Development 
Group

Cabinet

5 Mar 2019

4 Apr 2019

Andrew Pritchard, 
Director of 

Operations Tel: 
01884 234950

Leader of the 
Council 

(Councillor Clive 
Eginton)

Open

Design Supplementary Cabinet 7 Mar 2019 Jenny Clifford, Head Cabinet Member Open

P
age 191



Title of report and 
summary of decision

Decision 
Taker

Date of 
Decision

Officer contact Cabinet Member Intention to 
consider report in 

private session 
and the reason(s)

Mid Devon District Council Cabinet Forward Plan - September 2018

Planning Document  - post 
consultation
To consider the 
Supplementary Planning 
Document post consultation

of Planning, 
Economy and 

Regeneration Tel: 
01884 234346

for Planning and 
Economic 

Regeneration 
(Councillor 

Richard 
Chesterton)

Treasury Management 
Strategy and Annual 
Investment Strategy
To consider the proposed 
Treasury Management 
Strategy and Annual 
Investment Strategy for 
2019/20

Cabinet

Council

7 Mar 2019

24 Apr 2019

Andrew Jarrett, 
Deputy Chief 

Executive (S151) 
Tel: 01884 234242

Cabinet Member 
for Finance 

(Councillor Peter 
Hare-Scott)

Open

ASB Policy and 
Procedures
To receive a report from the 
Group Manager for Housing 
presenting the revised Anti-
Social Behaviour Policy and 
Procedures.

Homes Policy 
Development 

Group

Cabinet

12 Mar 2019

4 Apr 2019

Claire Fry, Group 
Manager for 

Housing Tel: 01884 
234920

Cabinet Member 
for Housing 

(Councillor Ray 
Stanley)

Open

Tenancy Strategy
To consider a report 
regarding the revised 

Homes Policy 
Development 

Group 12 Mar 2019

Claire Fry, Group 
Manager for 

Housing Tel: 01884 

Cabinet Member 
for Housing 

(Councillor Ray 

Open

P
age 192



Title of report and 
summary of decision

Decision 
Taker

Date of 
Decision

Officer contact Cabinet Member Intention to 
consider report in 

private session 
and the reason(s)

Mid Devon District Council Cabinet Forward Plan - September 2018

strategy.
Cabinet 4 Apr 2019

234920 Stanley)

Regulation of Investigatory 
Powers
To receive the 3 yearly 
review of Regulation of 
Investigatory Powers from 
the Director of Corporate 
Affairs and Business 
Transformation.

Community 
Policy 

Development 
Group

Cabinet

19 Mar 2019

4 Apr 2019

Jill May, Director of 
Corporate Affairs 

and Business 
Transformation Tel: 

01884 234381

Cabinet for the 
Working 

Environment and 
Support Services 

(Councillor 
Margaret 
Squires)

Open

Corporate Health & Safety 
Policy
To receive the annual review 
of the Corporate Health & 
Safety Policy from the 
Director of Corporate Affairs 
and Business 
Transformation.

Community 
Policy 

Development 
Group

Cabinet

19 Mar 2019

4 Apr 2019

Jill May, Director of 
Corporate Affairs 

and Business 
Transformation Tel: 

01884 234381

Cabinet for the 
Working 

Environment and 
Support Services 

(Councillor 
Margaret 
Squires)

Open

Greater Exeter Strategic 
Plan
To consider a report of the 
Head of Planning, Economy 
and Regeneration regarding 
a draft strategic plan.

Cabinet

Council

Not before 
20th May 2019

Not before 
31st May 2019

Jenny Clifford, Head 
of Planning, 

Economy and 
Regeneration Tel: 

01884 234346

Cabinet Member 
for Planning and 

Economic 
Regeneration 

(Councillor 
Richard 

Chesterton)

Open

P
age 193



Title of report and 
summary of decision

Decision 
Taker

Date of 
Decision

Officer contact Cabinet Member Intention to 
consider report in 

private session 
and the reason(s)

Mid Devon District Council Cabinet Forward Plan - September 2018

P
age 194


	Agenda
	4. Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	5. Exe Valley Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty
	6. Review of Building Services Recharges Policy
	Recharges Policy V3.2 - September 2018 MDL amends (2), 11/09/2018 Homes Policy Development Group

	7. Review of Building Services Gas Safety Policy
	Gas Safety Policy V8.0 - September 2018 (AP) (3), 11/09/2018 Homes Policy Development Group

	8. Neighbourhood Management Policy
	20180815_Neighbourhood_Mngt_Policy_draft_v3, 11/09/2018 Homes Policy Development Group

	9. Historic Local Improvement Schemes - recommendation from the Scrutiny Committee
	Assest Management Plan 2016-2020, 10/09/2018 Scrutiny Committee

	10. Customer Care Policy
	Customer Care Policy 2018 v3, 18/09/2018 Community Policy Development Group

	11. Channel Access Strategy
	Channel_Access_Strategy_mid devon v5

	13. Performance and Risk
	Environment PDG Performance Report Appendix 1
	Homes PDG Performance Report Appendix 2
	Economy PDG Performance report Appendix 3
	Community PDG Performance Appendix 4
	Corporate Performance and Report Appendix 5_
	Risk Report Appendix 6
	Risk Matrix Appendix 7

	15. Notification of Key Decisions

